STATE OF

IDAHO

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

. _.’-r l‘I:'Ik.
- e
SRR

Bl bl LI

S S ot 5o 2 ' -r'"- -
i .] 5 = i T
133333 7 LI =

. [ . '
Hdddd FIARMEFEP &

For Fiscar Year ENDING

Juone 30,

1999




Idaho’s second territorial seal, designed by Caleb Lyon (Idaho’s 2nd territorial Governor).
The seal was used (with minor modifications) from 1886 - 1890.

The cover photo is an architect’s rendering of the capitol building with the “new” wings added, drawing dated 1909.
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This year’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) is dedicated to Hal W. Turner who served as
Idaho’s Chief Deputy State Controller from 1981 to 1999. He was employed in Idaho State government first
by Governors Cecil Andrus and John Evans, and then by State Auditor Joe R. Williams and State Controller
J.D. Williams. Hal, while in the State Controller’s Office, was a key player in the development of the
statewide financial management structure by helping to determine the vision required to produce Idaho’s
financial statements as we know them today. He significantly assisted in identifying the critical need for a new
accounting and financial reporting system in the late 1980’s and guided various projects since then that were
necessary to produce these financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP). Also, during his tenure with the State Controller’s Office, Hal oversaw a major modernization of the
statewide payroll system during the early 1990’s. Throughout the years he helped to oversee and guide the
State’s Computer Service Center through various technological upgrades that brought the State from the time
of mechanized punched cards all the way into today’s electronic commerce technology. Prior to his service
with the State Controller’s Office, Hal was the State’s Director of Information Systems and Management
Analysis; Administrator, Division of Budget, Policy Planning, and Coordination; and Director, Executive Office
of the Governor during the years from 1971 to 1977. He also served on boards of various public organizations
including the Student Loan Fund of Idaho, Inc., Boise Samaritan Village Health Care Facility, Department of
Defense’s Employer Support for the Guard and Reserve (ESGR) program, Boise State University’s
Community and Government Professional Training Development, and the State’s Deferred Compensation
Board (PEBSCO).

Hal Turner retired from professional life on October 29, 1999. Governor Cecil Andrus and Boise Mayor Dick
Eardley joined Hal’s many friends, family, and associates at a banquet to give him a royal send-off. Hal should
not just be celebrated for his professional accomplishments, but for the outstanding personal characteristics he
brings to his work and his life. He has shown his ability to work with all people on a non-partisan basis, no
matter who or what they represented. He gained much respect and loyalty from his co-workers through his
interest, pride, compassion, and support for them by sharing his time and talents.

It is with great honor and appreciation that we dedicate this CAFR to Hal, a true professional and gentleman
who has always outwardly shown a sincere interest and dedication to the citizens of the State of Idaho.
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Photograph from the Bisbee Collection
Probably taken in the Magic Valley area, ca 1920
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December 15, 1999

TO: Citizens and Taxpayers of Idaho
The Honorable Dirk Kempthorne, Governor
Members of the State Legislature

Ladies and Gentlemen:

It is with great pleasure and a real sense of profe
sional satisfaction by my staff and me that we
transmit the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (most often referred to as the CAFR) to you
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. Thisntepo
represents ldaho’s continued commitment to sound
and effective fiscal management and to responsible
financial reporting based on recognized standards.
This CAFR, which includes the State’s independ-
ently audited general purpose financial statements,
will provide you and the financial community with
the information necessary to assess Idaho’s fiahnci
position, results of operations, and management of
its financial resources.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presdnt
data and the completeness and fairness of presenta-
tion, including all disclosures, rests with the iCdf

of the State Controller. As the State’s Chief &isc
Officer, | am confident the data presented is aateur

in all material respects. It is presented in a mean
that fairly sets forth the financial position areults

of state operations as measured by the financial
activity of its various funds. All disclosures ese
sary to enable the reader to gain an understamding
the State’s financial position and results of opera
tions have been included.

The ultimate reasons for producing the CAFR are:

» to assess whether current year revenues are
sufficient to pay for services provided and de-
termine whether future taxpayers will be re-
quired to assume burdens for services provided
to past generations;

STEVE ). ALLISON
ADMINISTRATOR
DIVISION ETATEWIDE ACCOUNTING

* to compare the financial performance of the
State from one fiscal year to another; and

» to avoid potential pitfalls and problems through
trend development and analysis supported by
timely and reliable financial information.

Enormous strides in statewide financial reporting
have been made in Idaho during the past few years.
That trend must be ongoing. As the State continues
to expand through economic diversification, this
new system of financial accountability will provide
us with the knowledge needed to chart a solid course
for the future.

The overall CAFR is presented in three sections:
Introductory, Financial, and Statistical.

The Introductory Section includes this transmit-
tal letter, the Certificate of Achievement for Ex-
cellence in Financial Reporting, a state organiza-
tional chart, and a list of elected officials okth
State.

The Financial Sectionincludes the independent

auditor’'s opinion, general-purpose financial state-
ments, required supplementary information, and
combining financial statements with supporting
schedules and fund descriptions.

The Statistical Sectionincludes selected fiscal,
social, and demographic information about the
State.

The CAFR is prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as estab-

MISSION: TO ENSURE THAT STATE GOVERNMENT IS ACCOUNTABLE TO EVERY IDAHO CITIZEN.



lished by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), professional standards of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(AICPA), recommendations of the Government
Finance Officers Association (GFOA), and State
finance law requirements. A summary of significant
accounting policies of the State is found in the
footnotes of the general-purpose financial state-
ments.

In addition to the CAFR, the Office of the State
Controller issues other financial reports. It is
important to realize that the financial data used i
each is derived from the same sources.
Accumulating and compiling the data in order to
create these financial statements does not require
duplicative effort, but instead utilizes
complementary information. Some of these reports
are:

Legal Basis Financial Report This report
provides a “budget-to-actual comparison” in
accordance with appropriations adopted by the
Legislature. It reflects the financial information
by individual agency, fund, program, and
expenditure object as dictated by appropriation.
State policy makers and agency directors are the
most likely users of the State’s Legal Basis
Financial Report.

The Idaho Citizen’s Report  This report
provides a brief, highly condensed overview of the
State’s financial position and operations for the
specified period. The general public is the most
likely user of this report.

Idaho Financial Focus This easy-to-read two-
page report graphically presents the State’'s
financial results of operations, highlights some of
the results of major state programs, and provides
websites and phone numbers of key public offices
and officials.

Reporting Entity

The State of Idaho was admitted into the Union as
the 43" state in 1890. It covers 84,437 square miles
bordered on the south by Utah and Nevada, on the
east by Wyoming and Montana, on the West by
Washington and Oregon, and on the north by
Canada. It has an estimated population of approxi-
mately 1.3 million. State government is dividetbin

three branches. The Executive Branch is comprised
of the Governor, Lieutenant Governor, Secretary of
State, State Controller, State Treasurer, Attorney
General, and the Superintendent of Public Instruc-
tion. The Legislative Branch is comprised of two
houses, a 35-member Senate and a 70-member
House of Representatives. The Judicial Branch is
presided over by the Supreme Court which is led by
the Chief Justice, elected by the four other Justices.

This report includes all funds and account groups o
the State of Idaho. Within the funds are the wegio
departments, agencies, and other organizational units
governed by the State Legislature and/or constitu-
tional officers. The State provides services sagh
education, health and human services, highway
maintenance and construction (i.e. transportation),
law enforcement, judicial system, public safety
programs, natural resource management, and
community and economic development programs.
This report reflects costs of these services irh bot
detail and summary.

In addition to general government activities, derta
component units have been included in this report.
Component units are legally separate entities which
are financially accountable to the State, or foiclwh
the nature and significance of their relationshithw
the State is such that exclusion would cause this
report to be misleading or incomplete. The compo-
nent units that are part of this report include:

* Idaho State Building Authority,
» Idaho Housing and Finance Association,

» Idaho Life and Health Insurance Guaranty
Association, and

e Petroleum Clean Water Trust Fund.

Economic Condition and Outlook

Idaho’s economy has entered a period of distinct
slowing. After last growing by less than 3% in

1987, Idaho total nonfarm employment grew by
2.5% in 1998 and is estimated to have grown by
2.3% in 1999. The outlook for the period through
2003 has Idaho employment growth staying below
3% each year.

Idaho’s goods producing sector (manufacturing,
mining, and construction) has been behind the recent



slowing. This broad category has not exceeded the
overall growth rate since 1994 and is expecteceto b
flat (0% growth) in 1999. Service sector growtls ha
also slowed but by a smaller amount. After averag-
ing growth of 4.5% from 1988 to 1995, service
sector growth slowed to an average of 3.1% over the
past three years. Further slowing into the range of 2-
2%% is expected over the next several years.
Despite this pronounced slowing, Idaho has man-
aged to grow faster than the nation in all but one
year (1998) since 1987 and is expected to continue
doing so for the next several years. However,
instead of enjoying employment growth that is
double or triple the national rate, Idaho’s marign
expected to be in the range of 10-100%.

Highlights of Idaho’s recent economic performance
includes:

Employment grew by 2.5% in 1998, and is
estimated to have grown by 2.3% in 1999.

» Personal income grew by 5.1% in 1998, and is
estimated to have grown by 6.1% in 1999.

e Per capita income grew by 3.4% in 1998, and is
estimated to have grown by 4.3% in 1999.

» Real (inflation-adjusted) personal income grew
by 4.2% in 1998, and is estimated to have grown
by 4.5% in 1999.

 Real (inflation-adjusted) per capita personal
income grew by 2.5% in 1998, and is estimated
to have grown by 2.7% in 1999.

* Population grew by 1.7% in 1998, and is
estimated to have grown by 1.7% in 1999.

* Net migration was 10,000 in 1998, and is
estimated at 10,500 in 1999.

Idaho’s economic outlook is bright.  Although
growth is expected to slow, it is also expected to
remain above 2%. This is substantially faster than
forecasted U.S. job growth. Gem State employment
growth is expected to average 2.2% in both 2000 and
2001, vs. 1.7% and 1.6% for national job growth.
Strength is likely to come from the service-
producing sector in 2000 and the goods-producing
sector in 2001.

Income growth in Idaho is expected to average 5.4%
over the next two years, which is slower than 1899’
estimated 6.1% growth, but slightly better than
1997's 5.3% and 1998'’s 5.1%.

Population growth for 2000 is expected to match
1998's and 1999's rate of 1.7%. This is more than
double the U.S. population growth of 0.8%. Idaho’s
population growth is expected to slow a bit in 2001
to 1.4%. Not surprisingly, net migration also stow
a bit from the recent rate of about 10,000 to 7,500
2001.

Major Initiatives
Education

Nearly a quarter-million students are enrolled in
Idaho’s public schools. Among the states, ldaho
ranks near the top in the percentage of its pojpmlat

in the 5 to 17 school-age bracket. That means
maintenance of a public school system is a real
commitment on the part of Idaho citizens.

In Governor Dirk Kempthorne’s inaugural address,
he declared this the “Generation of the Child.” To
help nurture our children and ultimately develop th
next generation of a workforce in Idaho, the Gover-
nor proposed giving children a healthy start. The
Governor proposed, and the Legislature approved,
an aggressive package of bills to help studentd rea
by the third grade. Funds were made available to
urge teachers to develop innovative ways of educat-
ing students, and financial incentives were created
for teachers who become nationally certified.

Additional funding was provided to the program
English as a Second Language to allow school
districts the opportunities to invest in new andreno
efficient ways to address special needs of this
population. This is an important step in elimingti
the high dropout rate.

In higher education, the Governor identified a need
to retain and hire qualified professors—particylarl
in areas such as high-technology where it is in-
creasingly difficult to compete with other states.
The Governor's program for salary incentives for
higher education faculty won legislative approws,
did more scholarship support for college students.

The Division of Professional-Technical Education
was awarded a three-million dollar grant by the. J.A
and Kathryn Albertson Foundation to provide
additional funds to ldaho’s secondary schools for
Technology Network Training. The Technology
Network Training plan is a statewide network of



information technology programs which bring
together existing resources from both secondary and
post-secondary education with business and indus-
try. The program provides students with the
opportunity to acquire and use skills that aid stho
districts with installation, maintenance, repainda
troubleshooting of their information technology
infrastructure.

In fiscal year 1999, five professional technical
schools were approved and began operation. To
date, a total of eight professional technical s&hoo
have been approved.

Endowment Fund Investment Board

In November 1998, voters approved a change to the
Idaho Constitutionallowing for investment reform.
This reform lifts restrictions on the types of iste
ments that are available. These enhanced investment
options will allow the Endowment Fund Investment
Board to generate higher returns on the endowment
funds under its management. The reform also
combines cash flows from the Endowment Fund
with receipts from endowment lands managed by the
Department of Lands. This integration will provide
for more reliable cash flows from year to year,sthu
giving the Endowment Fund Investment Board
greater flexibility to choose investments on thesiba

of total return rather than income return. This
reform will produce millions more to the Endow-
ment Fund for school children in the years to come.

Health and Welfare

As part of Governor Kempthorne’s focus on healthy
and well-educated children, the Governor requested
and received $728,000 in additional funds for
children’s vaccines; the Legislature appropriatad a
additional $500,000 to establish a voluntary state-
wide immunization registry to assist physicians and
parents in keeping effective and current records on
immunizations; funding was provided for the
Children’s Health Insurance Program; and more
funding was made available for dental treatment of
children from lower-income families.

Law Enforcement

The Department of Law Enforcement provides many
services that ultimately contribute to the safatyg a
well being of Idaho’s citizens. Governor Kemp-
thorne proposed and received an increased appro-
priation of $697,000 from the Legislature on a

Xi

package of get-tough measures for manufacturers
and distributors of methamphetamine. Methamphet-
amine is a drug more addictive than heroine and is
plaguing ldaho and much of the Western United
States. The Methamphetamine Program adds
additional detectives to detect methamphetamine
laboratories and apprehend the criminals operating
them, additional forensic laboratory criminalists t
more quickly deal with evidence analysis, equip-
ment, and additional training for all of Idaho’sage
officers to help them recognize and safely handle
methamphetamine laboratories. The Legislature
approved mandatory minimum penalties for manu-
facturing or attempting to manufacture methamphet-
amine.

Financial Section
Internal Control

The State’s management is responsible for estab-
lishing and maintaining an internal control struetu
designed to ensure the State’s assets are adgguatel
protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure
that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow
for the preparation of financial statements. 1949

the formalized Statewide Management Control
System (MCS) was developed to provide reasonable
assurance that these organizational objectives are
met. This system includes both financial and
administrative controls and provides a framework
for managers to work within their own organiza-
tional structures to promote efficient and effeetiv
operations in the State. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that the cost of a controldgho
not exceed the projected benefits likely to be
received. The valuation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management.

Budgetary Control

Budgetary controls are incorporated into the State-
wide Accounting and Reporting System (STARS).
The annual state budget is established through
separate appropriations by the Legislature and
approved by the Governor for individual depart-
ments for specific purposes, special outlays, and/o
operating expenditures. All claims presented for
payment must be certified by the appropriate
department that the expenditure is for a purpose
intended by law and a sufficient existing and
unexpended appropriation balance is available.



STARS also performs various edits to ensure
expenditures do not exceed authorized appropria-
tions. In addition to these centralized contreksch
department director is required to maintain expen-
ditures within appropriated limits. Extensive use
made of on-line tables and reports, updated dtily,
provide detailed and management level reports to
state agencies and budget authorities. Detailed
monthly reports are prepared to assure expenditures
are being executed according to plan. Deviatioas a
identified and budget or spending modifications are
made on a continuing basis.

Investments

In Idaho (except for certain organizations witHie t
State’s reporting entity having independent powers
to manage and invest their own cash), the State
Treasurer is responsible for investing the State’s
cash. The State Treasurer’s investments are made i
compliance with the provisions tdaho Code Title

67, Chapter 12. The State Treasurer also manages
an investment pool for local governments’ cash
balances under the same legal provisions. Legal
requirements for the investment of funds maintained
in the State’s cash and investment pools are dis-
cussed in Note 1 to the Financial Statements. Each
month the State Treasurer allocates interest income
earned to various funds designated by law to receiv
the earnings. The allocation is calculated in acco
dance with a formula based on average daily cash
balances invested over the month.

General Government Functions
Revenues
The following is a summary of the general govern-

ment revenues for all governmental fund types for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999:

1999 Governmental Fund Type Revenues

Interest and Other
Investment Income
2.8%

Sales Tax

Grants and
Contributions

Individual and Corp.
Income Tax
31.1%

Licenses, Permi
and Fees
4.7%

Miscellaneous
Revenue
4.2%

Changes in revenues from 1998 to 1999 were
highlighted by:

Continued growth in Idaho’s core revenue
sources with Sales Tax rising 7.3% and Individ-
ual and Corporate Income Tax rising 5.3%.
These increases reflect the continued strength of
Idaho’s economy.

Increase in Licenses, Permits, and Fees of 6.3%
related to a $4 million increase in educational

fees and a $2.5 million increase in fees for court
costs.

Increase in Interest and Other Investment
Income of 5.8% resulted in higher returns on
invested assets.

Expenditures
The following is a summary of the general govern-

ment expenditures for all governmental fund types
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999:

1999 Percent Increase Percent
Expenditures I in of (Decrease)  of
by Function: Millions Total from 1998 Change
1999  Percent Increase Percent General Government $378.7 105%  ($34.6) (8.4)%
in of  (Decrease) of Public Safety & Corrections $190.6  5.3% 164 94 %
Revenues by Source: Millions Total from 1998 Change Agriculture & Econ. Development ~ $156.1 4.3% 11.6 8.0 %
Sal§§ Tax $712.3  20.0% $48.4 7.3% Natural Resources $116.6 3.2% 7.7 71 %
InFi|V|dua| and Corp. Income Tax 1,109.1 31.1% 56.0 5.3% Health & Human Services $835.5 23.3% 62.9 8.1 %
g{ﬁif'f;f;‘;“s Revenue 3;:27 10‘.15/2/" ;37'4 2%3?’ Public Education $1,1345 31.6% 1290 128%
Licenses, Permits and Fees 168.2 4.7% 10.0 6.3%;?;?;0533:; :j;j; ;'g://;) 527451 21;?;:/?
Grants and Contributions 940.4 26.4% 374 4.1% Intergovernmental $207'.3 5..8% (13'.0) (5'.9)%
Interest and Other Invest. Income 103.3 2.8% 5.7 5.8%
Total Revenues $3,5685 1000%  $1786 _ 5.3% $35920 1000% $2616  7.9%
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1999 Governmental Fund Type Expenditures

Public Safety &
General Government Corrections

10.5% 5.3% Agriculture & Econ.

Development
4.3%

Natural Resources
Health & Human

Services
23.3%

Intergovernmental
5.8%

Capital Outlay \
9.0%
Transportation
7.0% N

Public Education
31.6%

Changes in expenditures from 1998 to 1999 were
highlighted by:

» The 12.8% increase for Public Education is
largely due to a $95 million dollar boost in
school apportionment from growing property tax
revenues.

» The 21.6% increase in Capital Outlay costs was
mainly due to a $27 million dollar increase in
road building costs by the Idaho Transportation
Department and upgrading of the State’s com-
puter resources (for Y2K compliance and mod-
ernization).

* The 8.1% increase ($62.9 million) in Health and
Human Services cost was due to a $70 million
dollar rise in Medicaid costs.

Proprietary Operations

Activities of government that are similar to prigat
sector businesses are accounted for in enterpise a
internal service funds.

Enterprise Funds are established to account for
services provided to the public for which revenues
derived by the activity will support those services
The State Lottery is the largest enterprise fund.
Revenues generated by the State Lottery, after
allowances for prizes and expenses, are distributed
equally between the Permanent Building Fund and
the Public School Income Funds. The Liquor
Dispensary, the State's second largest enterprise
fund, generates revenue through the sale of aleohol
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beverages. Surpluses are transferred to the State’
General Fund, the Public School Income Fund, other
state funds, and to Idaho counties and cities.

Internal ServiceFunds provide services to state and
local governments and are financed through user
charges. Most funds attempt to operate on a break-
even basis. Rates are adjusted annually for aver o
under recovery of costs. While the State’s interna
service funds reside primarily within the Departinen
of Administration and include Group Insurance,
Risk Management, postal, and communication
services; the State Controller's Office also has
internal service funds for data processing, account
ing, and payroll costs.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held
by the State in a trustee capacity or as an ageat i
custodial capacity. Fiduciary funds include expend
able trust, nonexpendable trust, pension trust,
investment trust, and agency funds. They are
established through trust agreements that specify
how the funds will operate. The expendable trust
fund, the Unemployment Compensation Fund, from
which unemployment benefits are paid, is a fund
where both principal and income can be spent.
Nonexpendable trust funds, such as the Endowment
Fund, are funds for which the principal cannot be
spent but the income may. The State’s pension trus
funds include the Public Employee Retirement
System of Idaho Plan, the Firemen's Retirement
Fund, the Idaho Super Saver 401(k) Plan, and the
Judges’ Retirement Fund. The State’s investment
trust fund accounts for the Joint Exercise of Pewer
an investment pool that other Idaho governmental
entities (cities, counties, etc.) can place extasds

in to earn higher interest rates.

Constitutional Debt Limitation

Article VIII, Section 1, of theldaho Constitution
was amended in 1998 to specify that the Legislature
shall not create any debts or liabilities, excapt i
extreme emergencies, unless authorized by law and
then approved by the people in a general election.
This section shall not apply to liabilities incusiréor
ordinary operating expenses, nor shall it apply to
debts or liabilities that are repaid by the endhaf
fiscal year. The debts or liabilities of independent



public bodies corporate and politic created by law
and which have no power to levy taxes or obligate
the general fund of the state are not debts oiliiab
ties of the State of ldaho. The provisions of this
section shall not make illegal those types of findncia
transactions that were legal on or before November
3, 1998.

Debt Administration

The State has no outstanding general obligation
debt.

Risk Management

The State maintains a combination of commercial
and self-insurance to cover the risk of losses to
which it may be exposed. The Risk Management
Fund manages property and general liability rigk.
self-insures general liability up to $500,000 per
claim and property damage claims up to $250,000
per claim. Commercial insurance is purchased for
property and general liability risks not self-insdr
The Group Insurance Fund manages life, health, and
disability insurance programs. While the State
purchases commercial insurance to cover losses for
these programs, losses that exceed 100% of the
annual carrier premiums are paid by the Statepup t
114% of the premium (110% for life insurance).
The insurance carrier then assumes the risk of loss
for claims above these amounts.

Independent Audit

In accordance witlhdaho Code Section 67-429, the
Legislative Audit staff of the State Legislaturesha
audited the State’s financial statements for thar ye
ended June 30, 1999. The audit was conducted in
accordance with generally accepted governmental
auditing standards (GAGAS), and the auditor's
opinion is included in the Financial Section ofsthi
report. Audit testing for compliance with the feale
Single Audit Act of 1984 and related OMB Circular
A-133 is performed at the statewide level.
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Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association
(GFOA) of the United States and Canada awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to the State of Idaho for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1998. This was the
second consecutive year that the State of Idaho has
achieved this prestigious award. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government
must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal require-
ments.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a periofl

one year. We believe that our current comprehen-
sive Annual Financial Report continues to meet the
Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements,
and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine
its eligibility for another certificate. We are roe
mitted to this ongoing effort and intend to maintain a
highly qualified and professional staff to make
Idaho’s certification possible.

One of the State’s agencies, The Public Employee
Retirement System of IdaBERSI), has prepared a
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the
fund covering the last eight years and PERSI should
be recognized for this major accomplishment.

Acknowledgments

The State Controller’'s Office takes great prid¢hia
compilation of this comprehensive report. It is an
honor to recognize our staff for their extraordinar
diligence and excellence in preparing the CAFR.
The professionalism, dedication, and extra effaoit p
forth by all the individuals involved has been
exemplary.

Sincere appreciation is extended to Governor Dirk
Kempthorne for his support in preparing this report
His support makes it possible to prepare a complete
and accurate report of the State’s financial positi
and results of operations. This report allows
managers in the State to adequately plan for Idaho’
future in order to maintain a strong financial posi
tion. This report also reflects the commitment and
efforts of the Division of Financial Management



staff led by Jeff Malmen. The State’s economist,
Michael H. Ferguson, provided information con-
tained in the economic condition and outlook portion
of this letter.

Sincere appreciation is extended to the budget and
accounting officers throughout State government for
their major efforts in providing timely information
necessary to complete this report. In additioe, th
strong support of the Legislature and particularly the
Joint-Finance Appropriation Committee (JFAC) has
made this cornerstone of accountability available t
our citizens.
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Finally, the auditing staff at Legislative Servided

by Larry Kirk must be recognized for true dedicatio
and professionalism. Their independent and ctitica
review of this CAFR has truly served the citizefis o
Idaho. Much of the credit for our success, and in
being able to submit this report on a timely basis
the ldaho Legislature and other state policy makers
goes to them.

Respectfully submitted,

S (s

J. D. Williams
Idaho State Controller



Certificate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

State of
Idaho

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 1998

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

C&" QRMW
e

Executive Director




Legislative Branch

1998-99 Organization Chart

Idaho State Government
State agencies based on gubernatorial appointment authoyi

Citizens of Idahc

Executive Branct

Judicial Brancl

Senate - House of Representatives

Budget & Policy Analysi

Performance Evaluatio

Supreme Court

Court of Appeal

Judicial Counc

Legislative Audit Research & Legislatic District Cour Law Library
Guardian Ad Liter Magistrate Cou
Judges Retireme Supreme Cou
Statewide Elected Officer
Attorney State Lieutenant Secretary State Superintendent
General Treasurer Governor Governor of State Controller of Public Instruction
Office of the
Govlernor
Natural General Health and Human Economic Transportation red
Educatior Resource Governmen Service: Developmen Public Safety

Commission on
Women's Programs

Department of
Water Resources
H&W - Division of
Environmental Quality

Agencies with Executive Appointed by the Governor

Department of
Administration
Division of Financial
Management
Liquor Dispensary
Lottery Commission
Tax Commission

Departraént

Health and Welfare
Commission ofiging

Athletic Commission

Bureau of Occup. Licenses
Department of Agriculture
Department of Commerce
Department of Finance
Department of Insurance
Department of Labor
Division of Building Safety

Department of
uvedile Corrections
Department of
Law Enforcement
Military Division

Board of Education

Boise State University

Commission on the
Arts

Eastern Idaho
Technical College

Historical Society

Idaho State University

Lewis-Clark State
College

Public Broadcasting

School for the Deaf
and the Blind

State Library

University of Idaho

Vocational Education

Department of Fish
and Game
Department of Lands
Department of Parks
and Recreation
Lava Hot Springs
Foundation

Agencies with Executive Appointed by a Board

Commission on
atigpAffairs

Board of Tayégs
Commission on
Idaho Code
Commission on
State Uniform Laws
Endowment Fund
Investment Board
Personnel Commission
Public Employee
Retirement System

Prepared by the Division of Financial Managemeut mdified by the Office of the State Controller.

Xvii

Board of: Accountancy,
Dentistry, Engineers,
Geologists, Optometry,
Medicine, Nursing, Pharmacy,
and Veterinary Medicine.
Brand Inspector
Certified Shorthand Reporters
Commission for the Blind
Commission on Human Rights
Disabilities Determinations
Industrial Commission
Outfitters and Guides
Public Utilities Commission

Coioael Industries
Department of
Corrections
Transportation
Department

Public Works Contractor's License

Racing Commission
Real Estate Commission
Vocational Rehabilitation




ELECTED OFFICIALS OF
THE STATE OF IDAHO

DIRK KEMPTHORNE
Governor

PETE T. CENNARUSA C.L. “BUTCH” OTTER
Secretary of State Lieutenant Governor

J. D. WILLIAMS RON CRANE
State Controller State Treasurer

A

MARILYN HOWARD
Superintendent of
Public Instruction

ALAN G LANCE
Attorney General

BRUCE NEWCOMB JERRY T. TWIGGS
Speaker, Idaho House of

Representatives

President, Pro Tempore
Idaho State Senate

LINDA COPPLE TROUT
Cheif Justice,
Idaho Supreme Court



Financial Section

St. Teresa’s Academy in Boise, 1928



State Capitol
F.O. Box 83720
Boise, ID 83720-0054
208/334-2475; Fax 334-2125

December 15, 1999 IndependenAuditor’s Report

Honorable Dirk Kempthorne
Honorable J.D. Williams, Controller
Honorable Members of the Legidature

We have audited the accompanying general -purpose financia statements of the State of Idaho as of and for
the year ended June 30, 1999, as listed in the table of contents. These general-purpose financial statements
are the responsibility of the State of Idaho’s management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on the
general-purpose financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of
certain agencies of the primary government and the blended component unit, which statements reflect the
indicated percent of total assets (liabilities) and total revenues, respectively, of the specia revenue fund
(3% and less than 1 %), enterprise ftmd (83% and 57%), trust and agency fund (86% of assets), general
fixed assets account group (15% of assets), general long-term debt account group (69% of liahilities), and
colleges and universities (100% and 100%). We aso did not audit the financial statements of the discretely
presented component units. Those financia statements were audited by other auditors, whose reports
thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those
component units and agencies, is based on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generaly accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standardsssued by the Comptroller Genera of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general-purpose financial
statements are free of material misstatement. The financia statements of the discretely presented
component unit, the Idaho Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association, was not audited in accordance
with Government Auditing Standardssued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and
accordingly, is not covered by our reports in accordance with Government Auditing Standard&n audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general-
purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general-purpose financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

Research & Legislation Budget & Folicy Analysis Legislative Audits
Mike Nugent, Supervisor Jeff Youtz, Supervisor Larry Kirk, Supervisor
208/334-2475; Fax 334-2125 208/334-3531; Fax 334-2668 208/334-3540; Fax 334-2125
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Page 2
December 15, 1999

In our opinion, based upon our audit and the reports of other auditors, the general-purpose financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in al materia respects, the financial position of the State of
Idaho as of June 30, 1999, and the results of its operations, the cash flows of its proprietary fund types,
similar trust funds and discretely presented component units, the changes in net assets of its pension trust
ftmds and investment trust fund, and the changes in fund balances and current funds revenues,
expenditures, and other changes of college and university funds for the year then ended in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standardsur report on consideration of the State of Idaho’s
internal control over financia reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants will be issued under separate cover in the Single Audit Report.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the genera -purpose financia
statements of the State of Idaho taken as a whole. The combining statements and schedules and
required supplementary information listed in the accompanying table of contents are presented for
the purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general-purpose financial
statements of the State of Idaho. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our
audit and the reports of other auditors, isfairly presented in all material respectsin relation to the
general-purpose financial statements taken as awhole.

The year 2000 supplementary information on pages 87 to 89 is not a required part of the basic financia
statements, but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we
did not audit the information and do not express an opinion on it. In addition, we do not provide assurance
that the State of Idaho is or will become year 2000 compliant, that the State’s remediation efforts will be
successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which the State does business are or will become year
2000 compliant.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections, and accordingly,
express no opinion thereon.

Legidative Audits

Larry B Kk CPA
'
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State of Idaho

Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types, Account Groups, dn
Discretely Presented Component Units

June 30, 1999

Proprietary Fund Fiduciary
Governmental Fund Types Types Fund Types
Specia Internal Trust and
General Revenue Enterprise Service Agency
Assets and Other Debits
Cash Equity with Treasurer $221,012,834 $374,512,119 $26,541,195 $63,595,610 $189,524,523
Cash and Cash Equivalents 85,370 17,640,601 218,187 250,958,040
Investments 58,144,911 35,083,578 8,081,554,651
Accounts Receivable, Net 119,601,834 26,032,997 3,017,154 782,801 47,990,418
Due from Other Funds 491,107 448,429 473,868 1,831,269
Due from Other Entities 464,574 108,034,297
Deferred Bond Financing Costs
Notes/Mortgages Receivable, Net 75,393 52,345,034 2,596,400
Grand Prizes Receivable 87,455,524
Other Assets 7,659,059 1,356,411 10,285,586 2,187,964 121,604,627
Fixed Assets, Net 10,277,132 5,460,161 10,112,145
Amount Available for Debt Service
Amount to be Provided for Long-Term Debt
Amount to be Provided for Capital Leases
Total Assets and Other Debits $407,535,082 $615,453,466 $138,268,646 $73,857,805  $8,704,340,804
Liabilities, Equity, and Other Credits
Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $20,892,907 $162,813,659 $14,329,395 $2,162,025 $209,389,075
Payroll and Compensated Absences Payable 51,913,872 25,648,243 1,204,290 2,100,078 16,417
Deposits 873,274 16,707,808 11,000 133,763,248
Due to Other Funds 746,275 2,049,797 67,667 380,934
Dueto Other Entities 16,574,274 2,535 66,781,404
Deferred Revenue 9,079,520 16,797,416 12,623 5,455,233 7,132,944
Notes/Bonds/Contracts Payable 1,835,286
Grand Prizes Payable 87,455,524
Policy Claim Liabilities 34,323,926
Capital Leases 2,154,040 226,009
Total Liabilities 100,080,122 224,019,458 107,069,825 44,648,205 417,083,088
Equity and Other Credits
Other Credits
Investment in Genera Fixed Assets
Equity
Contributed Capital 2,981,847
Retained Earnings
Reserved 10,464,768
Unreserved 31,198,821 15,762,985
Fund Balances
Reserved 31,235,531 118,592,618 7,932,313,430
Unreserved 276,219,429 272,841,390 354,944,286
Total Equity and Other Credits 307,454,960 391,434,008 31,198,821 29,209,600 8,287,257,716
Total Liabilities, Equity, and Other Credits $407,535,082 $615,453,466 $138,268,646 $73,857,805  $8,704,340,804

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

State of Idaho

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Account Groups Tptal Tot_al
Primary Reporting
General Government Entity
General Long- Colleges and (Memorandum Component (Memorandum
Fixed Assets Term Debt Universities Only) Units Only)

$875,186,281 $5,075,227 $880,261,508
$99,633,168 368,535,366 31,952,203 400,487,569
153,429,138 8,328,212,278 428,168,192 8,756,380,470
43,349,642 240,774,846 240,774,846
13,076,456 16,321,129 16,321,129
108,498,871 108,498,871
7,213,004 7,213,004 18,037,000 25,250,004
21,913,301 76,930,128 1,207,778,000 1,284,708,128
87,455,524 87,455,524
8,142,418 151,236,065 2,488,730 153,724,795
$761,482,390 887,643,838 1,674,975,666 9,057,790 1,684,033,456
$2,587,970 2,587,970 2,587,970
142,162,097 142,162,097 142,162,097
3,693,578 3,693,578 3,693,578
$761,482,390 $148,443,645 $1,234,400,965 $12,083,782,803 $1,702,557,142 $13,786,339,945
$64,275,802 $473,862,863 $7,482,418 $481,345,281
$35,079,396 115,962,296 115,962,296
752,262 152,107,592 14,063,000 166,170,592
13,076,456 16,321,129 16,321,129
83,358,213 83,358,213
8,733,750 47,211,486 4,266 47,215,752
109,670,671 192,064,208 303,570,165 1,493,308,000 1,796,878,165
87,455,524 87,455,524
34,323,926 4,476,892 38,800,818
3,693,578 4,599,829 10,673,456 10,673,456
148,443,645 283,502,307 1,324,846,650 1,519,334,576 2,844,181,226
$761,482,390 755,837,472 1,517,319,862 1,517,319,862
2,981,847 2,981,847
10,464,768 52,853,000 63,317,768
46,961,806 130,369,566 177,331,372
117,884,093 8,200,025,672 8,200,025,672
77,177,093 981,182,198 981,182,198
761,482,390 950,898,658 10,758,936,153 183,222,566 10,942,158,719
$761,482,390 $148,443,645 $1,234,400,965 $12,083,782,803 $1,702,557,142 $13,786,339,945

State of Idaho

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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State of Idaho

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Chaggin Fund Balances
All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Fiduciary
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type
Tota
Specia Expendable (Memorandum
General Revenue Trust Only)
Revenues
Sales Tax $707,513,659 $4,800,130 $712,313,789
Individual and Corporate Taxes 1,109,126,415 1,109,126,415
Other Taxes 36,595,745 348,885,448 $70,289,700 455,770,893
Licenses, Permits, and Fees 9,431,562 158,757,918 168,189,480
Sale of Services, Goods, and Property 6,335,378 75,938,092 63,482 82,336,952
Grants and Contributions 5,224,089 935,135,600 831,376 941,191,065
Interest and Other Investment Income 85,752,397 17,552,759 27,599,700 130,904,856
Rent and Lease Income 6,493,966 8,229,280 14,723,246
Miscellaneous Income 18,535,392 34,327,808 4,549,867 57,413,067
Net Inc (Dec) in Fair Vaue of Investments (106,487) (1,887,397) (1,993,884)
Total Revenues 1,985,008,603 1,583,520,548 101,446,728 3,669,975,879
Expenditures
Current
General Government 336,523,217 42,184,726 378,707,943
Public Safety and Correction 139,955,346 50,669,334 190,624,680
Agriculture and Economic Development 26,881,237 129,187,469 109,726,305 265,795,011
Natural Resources 28,838,026 87,726,301 116,564,327
Health 11,202,885 600,542,545 611,745,430
Public Education 1,117,873,686 16,600,822 1,134,474,508
Human Services 595,239 223,187,037 223,782,276
Transportation 8,096,568 240,439,139 248,535,707
Capital Outlay 56,218,164 267,969,383 114,612 324,302,159
Intergovernmental 43,396,152 163,936,077 207,332,229
Total Expenditures 1,769,580,520 1,822,442,833 109,840,917 3,701,864,270
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 215,428,083 (238,922,285) (8,394,189) (31,888,391)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In 952,915,575 269,250,578 1,222,166,153
Operating Transfers Out (1,229,981,244) (61,837,672) (1,191,818,916)
Proceeds from Bond Issues 5,040,535 5,040,535
Capital Leases Incurred 18,949 18,949
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (177,046,720) 212,453,441 35,406,721
Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 38,381,363 (26,468,844) (8,394,189) 3,518,330
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year, as
Adjusted 269,073,597 417,902,852 363,338,475 1,050,314,924
Fund Balances - End of Year $307,454,960 $391,434,008 $354,944,286 $1,053,833,254

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

State of Idaho 9 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



State of Idaho

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Chaggin Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) - General Fund and SpediRevenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

General Fund

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Sales Tax $699,934,805 $699,934,805
Individual and Corporate Taxes 1,106,269,291 1,106,269,291
Other Taxes 37,440,243 37,440,243
Licenses, Permits, and Fees 9,432,736 9,432,736
Sale of Services, Goods, and Property 4,536,682 4,536,682
Grants and Contributions 6,484,519 6,484,519
Interest and Other Investment Income 73,109,927 73,109,927
Rent and Lease Income 6,649,432 6,649,432
Miscellaneous Income 2,004,590 2,004,590
Total Revenues 1,945,862,225 1,945,862,225
Expenditures
General Government 490,240,743 381,312,017 $108,928,726
Public Safety and Correction 162,136,830 156,783,394 5,353,436
Agriculture and Economic Development 27,907,946 27,276,833 631,113
Natural Resources 33,473,602 30,261,980 3,211,622
Health 11,829,800 11,274,719 555,081
Public Education 1,192,943,607 1,162,983,469 29,960,138
Human Services 3,915,200 3,914,871 329
Transportation 8,966,784 8,243,331 723,453
Total Expenditures $1,931,414,512 1,782,050,614 $149,363,898

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 163,811,611

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating Transfers In 952,915,575

Operating Transfers Out (1,129,981,244)

Proceeds from Bond Issues

Capital Leases Incurred 18,949
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (177,046,720)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (13,235,109)

Reconciling Items

Changes Effected by Accrued Revenues 39,146,378
Changes Effected by Accrued Expenditures 12,470,094
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year, as Adjusted 269,073,597
Fund Balances - End of Year $307,454,960

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Special Revenue Funds

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$4,800,000 $4,800,000

351,954,581 351,954,581

158,509,680 158,509,680

68,912,749 68,912,749

912,675,802 912,675,802

17,815,024 17,815,024

8,031,823 8,031,823

26,803,611 26,803,611

1,549,503,270 1,549,503,270
91,573,989 89,798,056 $1,775,933
77,314,128 59,188,278 18,125,850
165,890,363 148,054,252 17,836,111
159,751,982 117,775,922 41,976,060
687,609,635 666,522,609 21,087,026
150,499,355 107,012,961 43,486,394
160,834,809 147,516,276 13,318,533
536,425,437 430,342,248 106,083,189
$2,029,899,698 1,766,210,602 $263,689,096

(216,707,332)

269,250,578

(61,837,672)

5,040,535

212,453,441

(4,253,891)

34,017,278

(56,232,231)

417,902,852

$391,434,008
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State of Idaho

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes i

Retained Earnings/Fund Balances - All Proprietary Fund Tyms, Similar Trust Funds, and
Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Fiduciary
Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type Total
Primary
Non- Government
Internal expendable (Memorandum
Enterprise Service Trust Oonlv)
Operating Revenues
Other Taxes $42,513 $42,513
Licenses, Permits, and Fees $1,000 16,210 17,210
Sale of Services, Goods, and Property 158,428,504 115,665,257 $56,550,795 330,644,556
Interest and Other Investment Income
Rent and Lease Income 5,095,338 5,095,338
Miscellaneous Income 699,818 5,572,377 6,272,195
Total Operating Revenues 159,129,322 126,391,695 56,550,795 342,071,812
Operating Expenses
Personnel Costs 9,480,471 17,200,118 26,680,589
Services 11,437,770 13,303,760 24,741,530
Travel 69,928 221,536 291,464
Supplies 39,732,034 1,813,087 41,545,121
Insurance, Utilities, and Rent 2,927,767 3,167,450 6,095,217
Miscellaneous 1,907,315 1,440,603 3,347,918
Depreciation 1,075,548 2,183,537 3,259,085
Awards and Claims 52,322,417 92,406,183 144,728,600
Payment as Agent 10,289,145 34,605 10,323,750
Total Operating Expenses 129,242,395 131,770,879 261,013,274
Operating Income (Loss) 29,886,927 (5,379,184) 56,550,795 81,058,538
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest Income 488,864 3,505,270 3,994,134
Investment Income
Net Inc (Dec) in Fair Vaue of Investments (15,666,892) (15,666,892)
Interest Expense (323,667) (48,598) (372,265)
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (7,145) (7,1245)
Other
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 158,052 3,456,672 (15,666,892) (12,052,168)
Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers 30,044,979 (1,922,512) 40,883,903 69,006,370
Operating Transfers In 41,005 41,005
Operating Transfers Out (28,795,000) (1,593,242) (30,388,242)
Net Income (Loss) 1,249,979 (3,474,749) 40,883,903 38,659,133
Beginning Retained Earnings/Fund Balances,
as Adjusted 29,948,842 29,702,502 727,865,845 787,517,189
Ending Retained Earnings/Fund Balances $31,198,821 $26,227,753 $768,749,748 $826,176,322

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Total

Reporting
Entity
Component (Memorandum
units onlv)

$42,513

$8,677,601 8,694,811
39,401 330,683,957
78,438,000 78,438,000
5,095,338

2,174,475 8,446,670
89,329,477 431,401,289
4,280,972 30,961,561
5,035,679 29,777,209
291,464

41,545,121

11,720 6,106,937
862,755 4,210,673
750,056 4,009,141
2,280,660 147,009,260
10,323,750

13,221,842 274,235,116
76,107,635 157,166,173
637,206 4,631,340
19,537,072 19,537,072
(6,165,507) (21,832,399)
(82,370,000) (82,742,265)
(7,145)
(1,622,000) (1,622,000)
(69,983,229) (82,035,397)
6,124,406 75,130,776
41,005
(30,388,242)

6,124,406 44,783,539
177,098,160 964,615,349
$183,222,566 $1,009,398,888

State of Idaho
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State of Idaho

Combined Statement of Cash Flows - All Proprietary Fund Typs, Similar Trust Funds, and
Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Fiduciary
Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type
Non-
Internal expendable
Enterprise Service Trust
Increase (Decrease) in Cash, Cash Equivalents, afsh
Equity with Treasurer
Cash Flows from Qperating Activities
Receipts from Customers, Loan Interest, and Fees $152,298,564 $9,742,144 $58,677,983
Receipts from State Agency Customers 5,147,885 115,022,240
Loan Principal Payments
Payments to Suppliers (54,391,873) (15,784,975)
Payments to Employees for Services and Benefits (9,355,885) (17,077,144)
Payments to State Agency Suppliers (248,953) (3,668,112)
Payments of Awards and Claims (52,322,417) (89,991,736)
Loan Principal Additions
Payments as Agent (6,776,237)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 34,351,084 (1,757,583) 58,677,983
Cash Flows from Noncaital Financing Activities
Operating Transfers In 41,005
Operating Transfers Out (28,795,000) (1,593,242)
Deferred Bond Financing Cost
Interest Paid
Payment of Bonds
Bonds Issued
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Aivities (28,795,000) (1,552,237)
Cash Flows from Caital and Related Financirg Activities
Proceeds from Disposition of Capital Assets 1,150 11,938
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (4,126,360) (2,683,414)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Fancing Activities (4,125,210) (2,671,476)
Cash Flows from Investirg Activities
Receipt of Interest and Dividends 488,864 3,505,266 517,761
Purchase of Investments (5,692,893,838)
Redemption of Investments 5,634,917,874
Investment Income
Other Investing Activities (150,351)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 338,513 3,505,266 (57,458,203)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Cash
Equity with Treasurer 1,769,387 (2,476,030) 1,219,780
Beginning Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Cash
Equity with Treasurer 24,989,995 66,071,640 60,030
Ending Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Cash
Equity with Treasurer $26,759,382 $63,595,610 $1,279,810

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Continued

Total Total
Primary Reporting
Government Entity
(Memorandum CompC_Jnent (Memorandum
Only) Units Only)
$220,718,691 $87,443,118 $308,161,809
120,170,125 120,170,125
162,339,000 162,339,000
(70,176,848) (3,304,027) (73,480,875)
(26,433,029) (4,280,972) (30,714,001)
(3,917,065) (3,917,065)
(142,314,153) (7,460,096) (149,774,249)
(235,851,000) (235,851,000)
(6,776,237) (6,776,237)
91,271,484 (1,113,977) 90,157,507
41,005 41,005
(30,388,242) (30,388,242)
(3,287,000) (3,287,000)
(79,099,000) (79,099,000)
(145,476,000) (145,476,000)
256,265,000 256,265,000
(30,347,237) 28,403,000 (1,944,237)
13,088 49 13,137
(6,809,774) (668,000) (7,477,774)
(6,796,686) (667,951) (7,464,637)
4,511,891 4,511,891
(5,692,893,838) (1,332,971,973) (7,025,865,811)
5,634,917,874 1,291,053,013 6,925,970,887
2,705,688 2,705,688
(150,351) 16,959,439 16,809,088
(53,614,424) (22,253,833) (75,868,257)
513,137 4,367,239 4,880,376
91,121,665 32,660,191 123,781,856
$91,634,802 $37,027,430 $128,662,232

State of Idaho
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State of Idaho

Combined Statement of Cash Flows - All Proprietary Fund Typs, Similar Trust Funds, and

Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Fiduciary
Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type
Non-
Internal expendable
Enterprise Service Trust

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities:

Operating Income (L0oss) $29,886,927 ($5,379,184) $56,550,795
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
(Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities

Amortization of Deferred Loan Discounts

Depreciation 1,075,548 2,183,537

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable, Net (1,653,547) (524,880) 1,501,654

(Increase) Decrease in Notes and Mortgages Receivable 625,534

(Increase) Decrease in Grand Prize Receivables 3,376,743

(Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Funds (28,175) (515,791)

(Increase) Decrease in Other Assets 645,151 (438,874)

(Increase) Decrease in Customer Loan Principal

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities 4,242,754 156,203

Increase (Decrease) in Interest Payable

Increase (Decrease) in Grand Prizes Payable (3,376,743)

Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue 8,910 (228,185)

Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds 48,930 119,174

Increase (Decrease) in Deposits

Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences 124,586 194,923

Increase (Decrease) in Policy Claim Liabilities 2,675,494
Total Adjustments 4,464,157 3,621,601 2,127,188
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $34,351,084 ($1,757,583) $58,677,983

Noncash Transactions:

Noncash transactions are investing and financing activities that affect assets and liabilities but do not result in cash receipts or payments. The
following noncash transactions occurred during theyear: The State Lottery, an enterprise fund, reported accretion of grand prize annuities
receivable from the Multi-State Lottery Association, with a corresponding increase in the grand prizes payable totaling $5,993,257. Internal
service funds received contributions of fixed assets with afair market value of $5,040 and acquired fixed assets through capital leasein the

amount of $54,139.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Cash Equity with Treaser Reconciliation to Combined Balance Sheet

Total Trust and Agency
Less: Expendable Trust Fund
Investment Trust Fund
Pension Trust Funds
Agency Funds

Nonexpendable Trust Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Cla€quity with Treasurer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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(264,647,240)
(150,953,284)
(2,645,918)
(20,956,311)

$1,279,810
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Total Total
Primary Reporting
Government Entity
(Memorandum Component (Memorandum
Only) Units Only)
$81,058,538 $76,107,635 $157,166,173
(2,230,000) (2,230,000)
3,259,085 750,056 4,009,141
(676,773) (216,000) (892,773)
625,534 162,339,000 162,964,534
3,376,743 3,376,743
(543,966) (543,966)
206,277 1,966,594 2,172,871
(235,851,000) (235,851,000)
4,398,957 (5,026,333) (627,376)
716,000 716,000
(3,376,743) (3,376,743)
(219,275) (219,275)
168,104 168,104
625,000 625,000
319,509 319,509
2,675,494 (294,929) 2,380,565
10,212,946 (77,221,612) (67,008,666)
$91,271,484 ($1,113,977) $90,157,507

State of Idaho
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State of Idaho

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Pension Trust Funds and Investment Trust Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Public Employee Firemen's Idaho Super
Retirement System Retirement Saver - 401(k)
of Idaho Plan Fund Plan
Additions
Contributions:
Member $106,138,849 $330,366 $4,431,282
Employer 173,090,883 8,568,755
Pool Participant Deposits
Total Contributions and Deposits 279,229,732 8,899,121 4,431,282
Investment Income:
Net Appreciation (Depreciation) in Fair Value of Investments 458,719,034 14,522,478 683,911
Interest and Other Investment Income 179,360,699 5,678,338 620,535
Less: Investment Expenses (19,317,166) (611,558)
Net Investment Income 618,762,567 19,589,258 1,304,446
Licenses, Permits, and Fees
Miscellaneous Income 411,586
Total Additions 898,403,885 28,488,379 5,735,728
Deductions
Services 3,565,106 31,691
Plan Benefits and Refunds Paid to Plan Members 208,154,132 11,446,307 363,596
Earnings Distribution
Pool Participant Withdrawals
Total Deductions 211,719,238 11,446,307 395,287
Increase in Net Assets 686,684,647 17,042,072 5,340,441
Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits and
External Investment Pool Participants:
Beginning of Year, as Adjusted 5,506,379,913 179,009,669 9,486,315
End of Year $6,193,064,560 $196,051,741 $14,826,756

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Judges’

Retirement Joint Exercise
Fund of Powers
$227,404
265,304
$1,491,437,425
492,708 1,491,437,425
(1,842,167)
11,080,496 32,757,929
(194,765) (136,656)
10,885,731 30,779,106
1,293,836
12,672,275 1,522,216,531
30,299
1,575,824
35,482,945
1,354,845,217
1,606,123 1,390,328,162
11,066,152 131,888,369
49,741,242 566,924,862
$60,807,394 $698,813,231

State of Idaho
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State of Idaho

Combined Statement of Changes in Fund Balances

All College and University Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Current Funds

Unrestricted Auxiliary Restricted Student Loan
Revenues and Other Additions

Unrestricted Current Funds Revenues $348,374,252 $83,646,308

Student Fees $7,803
Private Gifts, Grants, and Contracts $18,999,859 19,094
Government Grants and Contracts 172,124,553 623,569
Government Appropriations 30,805,110

Investment Income 4,082 109,841
Interest on Loans Receivable 480,552

Expended for Plant Facilities

Retirement of Indebtedness

Changein Unrealized Appreciation on Securities (20,408)
Proceeds from Issuance of Bonds and Notes Payable

Public Works Projects Completed

Other Additions 3,877,035 149,932

Total Revenues and Other Additions 348,374,252 83,646,308 225,810,639 1,370,383

Expenditures and Other Deductions

Educational and General 338,937,317 221,834,373

Auxiliary Enterprises Expenditures 78,933,960

Indirect Costs Recovered 5,821,796

Loan Cancellations and Write-Offs 422,669

Expended for Plant Facilities
Retirement of Indebtedness
Interest on Indebtedness
Disposal of Plant Facilities
Additions to Indebtedness
Additions to Capital Leases

Other Deductions 231,094
Total Expenditures and Other Deductions 338,937,317 78,933,960 227,656,169 653,763
Transfers

Principal and Interest (7,668,268) (5,646,358) (61,271)

Loans and Matching Grants (1,408,119) (9,311) 1,270,840 146,590

Net Transfers (Voluntary) (7,077,464) 1,400,357 1,282,411 (8,058)
Total Transfers (16,153,851) (4,255,312) 2,491,980 138,532
Net Increase (Decrease) for the Year (6,716,916) 457,036 646,450 855,152
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 40,933,277 13,721,302 6,807,152 22,872,685
Fund Balances - End of Year $34,216,361 $14,178,338 $7,453,602 $23,727,837

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Plant Funds

Unexpended Renewal and Retirement of Net Investment
Endowment Plant Replacement Indebtedness in Plant Total
$432,020,560
7,803
$1,951,821 $2,350,449 $3,329,798 26,651,021
278,693 $449,749 685,000 174,161,564
30,805,110
3,406,799 4,907,555 $54,245 1,432,643 9,915,165
480,552
55,357,216 55,357,216
11,882,566 11,882,566
4,256,658 (688,148) (74,240) (113,862) 3,360,000
28,194,356 7,192,613 35,386,969
8,010,329 8,010,329
217,554 249,342 2,500 (307) 17,892 4,513,948
9,832,832 35,292,247 (17,495) 8,960,836 79,282,801 792,552,803
560,771,690
78,933,960
5,821,796
422,669
21,861,372 554,744 22,416,116
11,882,566 11,882,566
9,700,182 9,700,182
14,710,780 14,710,780
35,386,969 35,386,969
162,175 162,175
3,476,031 4,636 517,477 4,229,238
3,476,031 21,866,008 554,744 22,100,225 50,259,924 744,438,141
(1,458,601) 14,834,498
5,954,431 2,411,540 (3,963,217)
4,495,830 2,411,540 10,871,281
6,356,801 17,922,069 1,839,301 (2,268,108) 29,022,877 48,114,662
74,294,121 50,077,827 4,341,355 27,779,354 661,956,923 902,783,996
$80,650,922 $67,999,896 $6,180,656 $25,511,246 $690,979,800 $950,898,658
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State of Idaho

Combined Statement of Current Funds Revenues, Expendites, and Other Changes

All College and University Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Unrestricted Auxiliary Restricted Total
Revenues
Appropriated General Education Revenues
State General Account - General Education $189,100,790 $5,333,637 $194,434,427
Endowment Income 11,386,659 11,386,659
Student Fees and Miscellaneous Receipts 57,663,814 57,663,814
Idaho Dental Education Program 564,300 564,300
Museum of Natural History 505,000 505,000
Family Practice 369,200 369,200
Other State General Accounts 448,826 $26,382,861 26,831,687
Federal Appropriations 4,211,215 4,211,215
Vocational Education 19,019,691 19,019,691
Federal Grants and Contracts 181,486 149,525,272 149,706,758
State Grants and Contracts 282,891 24,030 16,456,448 16,763,369
Private Gifts, Grants, and Contracts 4,688,668 1,510,906 21,211,555 27,411,129
Other Student Fees 37,516,883 19,997,541 384,882 57,899,306
Sales and Services of Educational Departments 9,997,961 791,998 10,789,959
Sales and Services of Auxiliary Enterprises 286,942 56,228,012 56,514,954
Indirect Costs Recovered 5,835,299 62,933 5,898,232
Other Sources 11,458,083 553,230 2,887,426 14,898,739
Net Inc (Dec) in Fair Value of Investments (932,241) (1,048) (933,289)
Total Revenues 348,374,252 83,646,308 221,914,590 653,935,150
Expenditures and Mandatory Transfers
Educational and General
Ingtruction 168,153,477 25,028,520 193,181,997
Research 14,848,859 46,397,934 61,246,793
Public Service 4,897,382 18,546,115 23,443,497
Academic Support 36,311,729 1,052,300 37,364,029
Libraries 15,537,625 52,285 15,589,910
Student Services 19,305,489 2,419,475 21,724,964
Institutional Support 35,766,991 356,744 36,123,735
Operations and Maintenance of Plant 32,225,788 1,442,189 33,667,977
Scholarships and Fellowships 11,889,977 126,538,811 138,428,788
Educational and General Expenditures 338,937,317 221,834,373 560,771,690
Mandatory Transfers for Loans and Matching Grants 1,408,119 (1,270,840) 137,279
Mandatory Transfers for Principal and Interest 7,668,268 61,271 7,729,539
Total Educational and General 348,013,704 220,624,804 568,638,508
Auxiliary Enterprises
Expenditures 78,933,960 78,933,960
Mandatory Transfers for Principal and Interest 5,646,358 5,646,358
Matching Grants 9,311 9,311
Total Auxiliary Enterprises 84,589,629 84,589,629
Total Expenditures and Mandatory Transfers 348,013,704 84,589,629 220,624,804 653,228,137
Other Transfers and Additions (Deductions)
Excess (Deficiency) of Restricted Receipts Over
Transfers to Revenue (1,925,747) (1,925,747)
Net Transfers (Voluntary) (7,077,464) 1,400,357 1,282,411 (4,394,696)
Total Other Transfers and Additions (Deductions) (7,077,464) 1,400,357 (643,336) (6,320,443)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balances ($6,716,916) $457,036 $646,450 ($5,613,430)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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State of Idaho

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements of the State of 1daho have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). GASB is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles.

Preparation of the financia statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosuresin the financial statements. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

The accompanying financial statements present the financial position of the various fund types and
account groups, the results of operations of the various fund types, and the cash flows of the proprietary
and nonexpendable trust funds. The financia statementsinclude the various departments, agencies, and
other organizational units governed by the Idaho State L egidature and/or Constitutional Officers of the
State of Idaho.

Thefinancial statements are presented as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, except for the State Bar
(presented in the Regulatory Special Revenue Fund) whose statements are as of and for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1998; the Idaho Dairy Products Commission (presented in the Agriculture and
Natural Resources Special Revenue Fund) whose statements are as of and for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998; the Idaho Potato Commission (presented in the Agriculture and Natural Resources
Specia Revenue Fund) whose statements are as of and for the year ended August 31, 1999; the Petroleum
Clean Water Trust Fund and the Idaho Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association (discretely
presented component units) whose financia statements are as of and for the year ended December 31,
1998.

B. Financial Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the State hasincluded all funds, agencies, boards, commissions,
authorities, and account groups. The State has a so considered potential component units for whichitis
financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationships with the State are such that exclusion woadde the State’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. As defined by GASB, financigbantability exists, generally, if the State
appoints a voting majority of the organization’s govegrtieard and (1) the State is able to impose its
will on the organization, or (2) if there is a potentialtfoe organization to provide specific financial
benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens onStiage.

As required by GAAP, these financial statements presertidte of Idaho (primary government) and its

component units. The component units are included iStte’'s reporting entity because of the
significance of their operational or financial relatibips with the State.
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Blended Component Unit

The following component unit is legally separate from the State but is reported as part of the State and
blended into the appropriate fund and account groups.

Idaho State Building AuthorityThe Idaho State Building Authority was created by 1daho Code,
Title 67, Chapter 64, to finance and construct facilities, such as office buildings and parking

garages, to be used and leased by the State. Following the guidance provided by the National
Council on Governmental Accounting (NCGA) Statement Sc@dunting and Financial
Reporting Principles for Lease Agreements of State and Gmarnments,” and Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14, “Then€iahReporting Entity,” the Idaho
State Building Authority is presented as a blended compiounit in a special revenue fund, the
General Long-Term Debt Account Group, and the General FAgedts Account Group. GASB
14 requires the Idaho State Building Authority to be prieskas a blended component unit
because the Board is appointed by the Governor, the Aythalies entirely on the State’s
leasing agreements, resulting in a significant findr@aefit/burden relationship, and the
Authority provides services entirely to the State of Idaldaho Code, Section 67-6419 states,
“The notes, bonds or other obligations of the authorig)l stot be or become an indebtedness or
obligation of the state of Idaho...nor shall such noteadb or obligations of the authority
constitute the giving or loaning of the credit of theestatldaho....” The General Long-Term
Debt Account Group includes $102.1 million of the Authosiebt. Idaho State Building
Authority’s fixed assets of $115.6 million, presentethia General Fixed Assets Account Group,
are titled in the name of the Authority. The Authoritysld report, dated August 4, 1999, was
issued under separate cover for the fiscal year endeB0ut699.

Discretely Presented Component Units

These component units are organizations which are yegglarate from the State but are financially
accountable to the State or their relationships wittStlage are such that exclusion would cause the
State’s financial statements to be misleading or incampl€he component units are reported in a
separate column to emphasize that they are legally seframatéhe primary government and are
governed by separate boards. Following is a brief desmripfithe three discretely presented component
units:

The Idaho Housing and Finance Associatidrhe Idaho Housing and Finance Association was
created by the Idaho Legislature in Idaho Code, TitleéO8iapter 62, for the purpose of building
and rehabilitating residential housing for persons of lmwine. The Governor appoints the
Board to fixed overlapping four-year terms. A financiaidfé/burden relationship exists
between the State and the Association. The Associatemitked to appropriation from the state
sales tax account to back certain capital reserve fumdshds outstanding. After January 1,
1996, the Association was precluded from issuing debteoblok an appropriation from the state
sales tax account. As of June 30, 1999, the outstandimg leaiitled to a continuing
appropriation from the state sales tax accountedtd54,810,000. The Association is presented
discretely as an enterprise fund. Their audit replated August 27, 1999, was issued under
separate cover for the year ended June 30, 1999.

Idaho Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Associatidhe Idaho Life and Health Insurance
Guaranty Association is a nonprofit organization aritieal by the Idaho Life and Health
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Insurance Guaranty Association Act of 1977, 1daho Code, Title 41, Chapter 43. The Act was
passed to provide a mechanism for the payment of covered claims under certain insurance
policies where the insurer becomes insolvent. The Act applies to direct and supplemental life and
disability policies and annuity contracts. All insurance companies, which sell the type of
insurance covered under the Act, are required to be members of the Association as a condition of
their authority to transact insurance businessin Idaho. The Board members are selected by
member insurers, however, the director of Insurance has veto power and may dismiss
management at will. Insurers may offset assessments against their premium taxes to the extent of
twenty percent of the amount of such assessment for each of the five calendar years following the
year in which the assessment was paid. An allowable offset, or portion thereof, not used in any
calendar year cannot be carried over or back to any other year. Thisimposes a potentia direct
financia burden on the State. The Association is presented discretely as an enterprise fund.
Their audit report, dated March 23, 1999, was issued under separate cover for the year ended
December 31, 1998.

Petroleum Clean Water Trust Funtdaho Code, Title 41, Chapter 49, created the Petroleum
Clean Water Trust Fund to provide pollution liability insurance to eligible owners and operators
of petroleum storage tanks. The Fund is subject to the direction and supervision of the manager of
the State Insurance Fund. The State approves and may modify the Fund's annual budget and
thereby has the ability to impose its will on the Fund. The Fund is presented discretely as an
enterprise fund. Their audit report, dated August 4, 1999, was issued under separate cover for the
year ended December 31, 1998.

Complete financia statements for each of the individual component units may be obtained from their
respective administrative offices, asfollows:

Idaho State Building Authority Idaho Life and Health Insurance Guaranty
P.O. Box 2802 Association
Boise, ID 83701 P.O. Box 7367
Boise, ID 83707
Idaho Housing and Finance Association Petroleum Clean Water Trust Fund
P.O. Box 7899 P.O. Box 83720
Boise, ID 83707 Boise, ID 83720-0044

Related Organizations

The State Insurance Fun@he State Insurance Fund was created by 1daho Code, Title 72, Chapter 9.
Board members are appointed by the Governor but there is no ability for the State to impose its will on
the organization and thereis no financial benefit/burden relationship. Therefore, the State Insurance Fund
is considered arelated organization of the State of Idaho.

C. Constitutional Debt and Liability Limitation

Article V111, Section 1, of the Idaho Constitution was amended in 1998 to specify that the Legislature
shall not create any debts or liahilities, except in extreme emergencies, unless authorized by law and then
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approved by the people at a genera election. This section shall not apply to liabilitiesincurred for
ordinary operating expenses, nor shall it apply to debts or liabilities that are repaid by the end of the fiscal
year. The debts or liabilities of independent public bodies corporate and politic created by law and which
have no power to levy taxes or obligate the general fund of the state are not debts or liabilities of the State
of 1daho. The provisions of this section shall not make illegal those types of financial transactions that
werelegal on or before November 3, 1998.

D. Fund Accounting

The financial activities of the State are recorded in individual funds and account groups which are used to
report the financial position and results of the operations of the State. Fund accounting is used to demon-
strate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain
government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of
accounts. An account group isafinancial reporting device designed to provide accountability for certain
assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do not directly affect net expendable
available financial resources.

The State records its transactionsin four fund categories and two account groups. The fund categories
include governmental funds, proprietary funds, fiduciary funds, and college and university funds.
Account groups are composed of general fixed assets and general long-term debt.

1 Governmental funds are used to account for the State&rgeactivities, including collection and
disbursement of earmarked monies (special revenue fiardsgcquisition or construction of
general fixed assets. Governmental fund types incheléotlowing:

The General Fundis the principal operating fund of the State. It is used towaddor resources
that are not accounted for in other funds. These resoareaised to provide services that
include general government, public safety and correctamgriculture and economic
development, natural resources, health, public &ttt (other than those reported in the
university funds), human services, and transportatiansiStent with applicable legal
requirements, certain resources obtained from fedematgyand used to support general
governmental activities are accounted for in the Gelfranadl.

Special Revenue Fundare used to account for transactions related to resmofitained from
specific revenue sources (other than expendables}iiisit are legally restricted to expenditures
for specified purposes. Special revenue funds accoungeftain federal grant programs, taxes

levied with statutorily defined distributions, and athesources restricted as to purpose. Special

revenue funds include the financial activities relateBish and Game, Health and Welfare,
Transportation, Federal, Regulatory, Agriculture anduN&tResources, Miscellaneous, and the
Idaho State Building Authority.

2. Proprietary funds are used to account for activiieslar to those found in the private sector,
where the determination of net income is necessary anldsefsound financial administration.

Goods or services from such activities can be providbdreio outside parties (enterprise funds)

or to other departments or agencies primarily withingineernment (internal service funds).
Proprietary funds include the following:
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Enterprise Funds are established to account for governmental operations that functionin a
manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the State isthat the cost of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges. Enterprise fundsinclude Correctional Industries, Liquor
Dispensary, and State L ottery.

Internal Service Fundsare used to account for a variety of independent operations that render
services and/or provide goods to other state agencies or governmental units on a cost-
reimbursement basis. Internal service fundsinclude the financia activities of General Services,
Data Processing Services, Group Insurance, and Risk Management.

3. Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the State in atrust or agency capacity. Fiduciary fund
types include the following:

The Expendable Trust Fundaccounts for assets held by the State in atrustee capacity.
Principal and income may be expended in the course of designated operations. The only
expendable trust fund for the State is Unemployment Compensation.

The Investment Trust Fundis used to account for the investments related to external
participantsin the Joint Exercise of Powers Trust Fund.

Nonexpendable Trust Fundsaccount for the transactions, assets, liabilities, and fund equity of
the State Endowment Funds. The Endowment Funds were created from federal Enabling Act
land grants and the sale of such lands. Endowment Fund properties may be exchanged for other
assets. The fund'’s principal is nonexpendable. Earmingke principal are used to support
education, mental health, corrections, and public mgkli

Pension Trust Fundsaccount for transactions, assets, liabilities, anésstts available for plan
benefits of the State’s retirement systems.

Agency Fundsaccount for various taxes, deposits, and propertyatetleor held by the State,
acting in a custodial capacity, for distribution toatgovernmental units or designated
beneficiaries.

4, College and university funds account for the finanmisition and operations of the State's public
colleges and universities. Accordingly, college and ensity funds are an aggregation of the
following funds:

Current Funds are used primarily to account for amounts which are expkindgerforming the
primary and support objectives of the colleges and untiesse.g., instruction, research, public
service, academic support, libraries, student servigsttutional support, operations and
maintenance of plant, scholarships and fellowships gaxiliary activities. Funds included in
this classification consist of the following:

Unrestricted Funds are used to account for transactdated to the educational and
general operations of the colleges and universitiégsd funds may be used at the

State of Idaho 27 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



State of Idaho

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

discretion of the governing board or their designee to meet current expenditures for any
purpose.

Aucxiliary Enterprise Funds are used to account for transactions of substantially self-
supporting activities that primarily provide services to students, faculty, and staff.
Auxiliary enterprisesinclude, but are not limited to, student housing, food services,
bookstore, and intercollegiate athletics.

Restricted Funds are used to account for current funds expended for operating purposes
but restricted by donors or other outside agencies as to the specific purpose for which
they may be used. Revenues of the restricted funds are reported in the Statement of
Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures, and Other Changes only to the extent they are
expended for current operating purposes. The excess or deficiency of receipts over
expendituresis included as an addition or deduction directly to fund balances during the
year.

Student Loan Fundsaccount for transactions of related resources obtained and used for loans to
students.

Endowment and Similar Fundsaccount for resources held by the institutions that must be
administered in accordance with trust agreements restricting the use of the principal. Quasi-
endowment funds have been established for the same purposes as the endowment funds; however,
any portion of such funds can be expended.

Plant Funds are used to account for the transactions relating to investment in college and
university properties. Plant fundsinclude (1) Unexpended Plant Funds, (2) Renewal and
Replacement Funds, (3) Retirement of Indebtedness Funds, and (4) Net Investment in Plant
Funds. The Unexpended Plant Funds are comprised of amounts which have been appropriated or
designated for land, improvements, buildings, and equipment. The Renewal and Replacement
Funds are comprised of amounts provided for renewa and replacement of certain properties. The
Retirement of Indebtedness Funds represent bond sinking funds used to provide for payment of
principal and interest pursuant to terms of bond indentures. Net Investment in Plant Funds
represents the accumulated cost of property, buildings, and equipment over related liabilities.

Agency Fundsaccount for amounts held in custody for students, institution-related organi-
zations, and others.

5. Account groups consist of the following:

The General Fixed Assets Account Groups used to account for land, buildings and
improvements, construction in progress, improvements other than buildings, machinery and
equipment, and capital leases of the governmental fund types. Fixed assets of the proprietary
fund types, nonexpendable trust funds, pension trust funds, and colleges and universities are
accounted for separately in their respective funds.

The General Long-Term Debt Account Groupaccounts for the State’s unmatured long-term
obligations related to capital lease obligations; corsgtt absences; and notes, bonds, and
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contracts payable. Long-term obligations of the proprietary fund types, nonexpendable trust
funds, pension trust funds, and the college and university funds are accounted for in their
respective funds.

E. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
Accounting and financial reporting treatments applied to funds are described as follows:

All governmental funds and the expendable trust fund are accounted for using a flow of current financial
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, generally only current assets and current
liabilities are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increasesin
spendabl e resources as revenues and other financing sources, and decreases in spendable financial
resources as expenditures and other financing uses.

All governmental funds, the expendabl e trust fund, and agency funds use the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under the modified accrua basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when measurable
and available to finance operations of the current fiscal year. Available means collected in the current
year or soon enough after year end to liquidate liabilities existing at the end of the year. Significant
revenue sources, which are susceptible to accrual, include sales taxes, individua income taxes, corporate
income taxes, and federal grants. Licenses, fees, permits, and other miscellaneous revenues are recog-
nized when received, since they normally are measurable only at that time. Expenditures are recorded
when the fund liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, are required
to apply al applicable GASB pronouncements, aswell as the following pronouncements issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements. Statements and I nterpretations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB),
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARBS) of the
Committee on Accounting Procedures. In addition, a proprietary activity may apply all FASB Statements
and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements. The State has elected not to follow FASB pronouncementsissued after November 30,
1989, for proprietary funds.

All proprietary funds, nonexpendable trust funds, the investment trust fund, and pension trust funds are
accounted for on aflow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all
assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet.
This aso applies to the three discretely presented component units, which are accounted for as proprietary
activities.

All proprietary funds, nonexpendabl e trust funds, the investment trust fund, pension trust funds, and the
three discretely presented component units use the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized at the time liabilities are
incurred. Fund equity is segregated into Contributed Capital and Retained Earnings for proprietary funds
and fund balances for nonexpendable trust, investment trust, and pension trust funds.

The college and university funds are reported using the accrual basis of accounting with the following
exceptions. depreciation expenses related to plant fund assets are not recorded and revenues and
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expenditures of summer sessions are reported within the fiscal year in which the total summer sessions
program is predominantly conducted.

F. Budgetary Process

By November of each year, al agencies of the State submit requests for appropriations to the Division of
Financia Management in the Governor’s Office so an Executive Budget may be prepared for the
upcoming legidative session. The budget is generally prepared by agency, fund, program, and object.
Legd level of budgetary contral is usually maintained at the fund level, except as described below. The
budget presentation includes information on the past year, current year estimates, and requested
appropriations for the next fiscal year.

In January and February, the Governor’s proposed budget recommendations are presented to the

Legidature for review, change, and preparation of the annual appropriation acts for the various agencies.
Appropriated funds include the General Fund, the specia revenue funds, the internal service funds, the
enterprise funds, the pension plans, and the collegerawersities’ current and endowment funds. The
appropriated funds are either appropriated annually @ @ontinuous basis. For those funds
appropriated on a continuous basis, appropriatioals@xpenditures. Budgets are adopted in
accordance with Idaho Code, Title 67, Chapters 35 and 3th HBases of the Legislature must pass the
appropriation acts by a simple majority vote. The apjmitipn acts become the State's authorized
operating budget upon the Governor's signature, or iivatlp become law without the Governor’s
signature.

Once the budget has been adopted, limitations eegsirding the extent to which management may make
modifications (management includes the Divisiofriofancial Management and the Board of Examiners).
At no time, without legislative authority, may appaopriation be transferred from one fund to anothe
However, with the appropriate approval, the followiduatments may be made:

Idaho Code, Section 67-3511(1), allows agencies to #aspénding authority between objects
within a fund and program, with the exception of persboosts. Appropriation for personnel
costs may be transferred to other objects, but approprimticther costs may not be transferred
to personnel. Appropriations for capital outlay may notdsxlfor any other purpose, per Idaho
Code, Section 67-3511(3); however, appropriations fegradbjects may be transferred to capital
outlay. The Board of Examiners must approve object teagisf

Idaho Code, Section 67-3511(2), allows agencies to #aspénding authority from one program
to another within an agency, provided the transferisnaye than 10 percent cumulative change
from the appropriated amount for any program affected birdéimsfer. The Division of Financial
Management and the Board of Examiners must approvettheséers. Transfers above 10
percent cumulative change must be approved by the lixggstgppropriation process.

Should any change occur that is not within the aboveitiesclimitations, legal compliance is not
achieved.

The State utilizes encumbrance accounting for budgetatyot@urposes. Obligations incurred for

goods or services that have not been received or rendeydoemacorded to reserve that portion of the
applicable fund balance.
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The State uses cash basis records as the basis forpheagicn of the State’s legally adopted annual
budget or legal basis, even though encumbranceslaveed for budgetary control purposes. The legal
basis emphasizes accountability and the budgetary toftappropriations. The State issues a separate
Legal Basis Financial Report which demonstrates legapliante with the budget. A copy of this report
may be obtained by contacting the Office of the State Cdartrél.O. Box 83720, Boise, Idaho, 83720-
0011.

The seven district health departments in the Stateuperdsed by boards that are appointed by the
County Commissioners of the counties served. They famets separate legal entities and are fiscally
independent. Therefore, they are not included in theStreporting entity either as part of the primary
government or as component units. Although they are mandially dependent upon the State, the
Legislature appropriates funds for the district hedéhartments. For that reason, they are included in the
budgetary Legal Basis Financial Report. Below is the reltati@n from the Legal Basis Financial
Report, Summary Schedule of Current Year Appropriatiodsspenditures Including Prior Year
Encumbrances by Fund Type, by Program-Budgetary Basis ©ombined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance—Budget andlABudgetary Basis)-General Fund and
Special Revenue Funds (included in this report) foisteas made from the General Fund to the district
health departments:

Total
Adjusted Budget Actual
General Fund Expenditures (Legal Basis) $1,923,141,812 $1,773,777,914
Transfersto District Health Departments 8,272,700 8,272,700
General Fund Expenditures (CAFR) $1,931,414,512 $1,782,050,614

As shown in the Legal Basis Financial Report, revenuegarerally recognized when cash is received.
Expenditures are recorded when the related cash déshens occurs. Encumbrances are not recognized
as expenditures but reduce available spending aythorit

Throughout Idaho Code, the Legislature has establish#thaous or perpetual appropriations for certain
funds and programs. No annual amount of appropriatiorteésrdieed during the legislative session.
Expenditures are allowed to the extent they are matteawailable cash.

As part of the budgetary process, agencies may requesbadd(positive supplemental) appropriations
for the current year, which may be granted under the attlodithe Legislature. If it is anticipated
expenditures may exceed available cash, Idaho Code, 156@t8512, provides authorization to reduce a
portion of the General Fund appropriation by the StatedBoGExaminers (upon investigation and report
by the Division of Financial Management) or by the Legiska Furthermore, Idaho Code, Section 67-
3512A, provides for a temporary reduction of spending aityhoy Executive Order of the Governor.
When this occurs, it is recorded in the accounting syaemnegative supplemental appropriation. See
Note 2 for a Supplemental Appropriations schedule.

At fiscal year end, unexpended appropriation balancasally revert to unreserved fund equity balances
and are available for future appropriations. Howevey tan also be reappropriated as part of the
spending authority for the future year or they can beethforward to subsequent years as outstanding
encumbrances, with the approval of the Division of FifeliManagement.
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Revenues are not budgeted for any funds. For financial reporting purposes, the budget columns for
revenues on the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expesdand Changes in Fund Balance—Budget
and Actual are reflected as being equal to actual revdouall revenue categories.

G. Assets and Liabilities
Cash Equity with Treasurer

Cash Equity with Treasurer represents each fund’s sitgren internal investment pool
maintained by the State Treasurer. Cash balances of tatestusds are pooled and invested by
the State Treasurer. Interest earned on pooled casbcatad to the internal service funds, the
expendable trust fund, and certain special revenue fuhds 8o directed by law. All earnings
not otherwise allocated are General Fund revenue. Callagsrfurther discussed in Note 3, is
pledged by the various banks and securities dealers tesstate funds. As an exception to the
above policy, certain organizations within the State'sntaq entity have independent powers to
manage and invest their own cash.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents consist of bank accounts, pglityasal short-term investments.
Cash equivalents are generally considered short-teghlyHiquid investments with a maturity
of three months or less from the purchase date.

Investments

The State Treasurer handles investments of state &nmwtiginds of other qualified entities within
the State, in accordance with Idaho Code, Title 67, ChagteAllowed investments include
bonds, treasury bills, interest bearing notes, othkgattons of the United States, obligations for
which the full faith and credit of the United States asglgéd for the payment of principal and
interest, general obligation or revenue bonds of the ,Statmy county, city, or metropolitan
water district, municipal utility district or school distrof this state or of the institutions of
higher education of this state, notes, bonds, debenturether similar obligations issued by the
farm credit system, bonds, debentures and other obligatibany federal home loan bank board
or the federal national mortgage association, and any offigations issued or guaranteed by
agencies or instrumentalities of the government of thee $tf Idaho or of the United States;
money market funds whose portfolios consist of any atbimvestment specified in ldaho Code
Section 67-1210; funds of any public agency investedupnigo joint exercise of powers
agreements; and bonds, debentures or notes of any d@panaanized, controlled and
operating within the United States which have, at the tiileeir purchase, an A rating or higher
by a commonly known rating service; funds of any prime baskeceptances and prime
commercial paper, sales and repurchase of call optiahsemmrities lending agreements,
registered warrants, tax anticipation bonds and nistesme and revenue anticipation bonds and
notes, time deposits, share and savings accounts withBtdibe of Idaho, public corporation
notes, bonds, debentures, and repurchase agreements.
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In accordance with GASB Statement 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools, the State reports certain investments at fair value
rather than at cost and the external portion of the Setéesnal investment pool is reported in
an investment trust fund at fair value.

The Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho (PERSI)isifted to make investments in
accordance with the Idaho Uniform Prudent Investor Aatti@es 68-501 through 68-514 of the
Idaho Code. PERSI invests in domestic equities, intermrateguities (including international
hedges), fixed income investments, real estate ahdstde investment trusts, mortgages, and
certain other short-term investments. These invessvaa recorded at fair value.

Certain other entities are also responsible for their iowestments.
Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable in governmental and fiduciary fymritearily consist of timber sales (which
are recorded when earned), taxes subject to accruallynsales taxes and income taxes, and
public assistance receivables which represent ambilled to other health care providers by the
Department of Health and Welfare. Other receivables irciudounts collectible for invest-
ments sold, as well as contributions receivable in thsipe trust funds. Proprietary fund
receivables occur as part of the ordinary course ofibasi Transportation receivables consist
mainly of gas taxes receivable. The college and univdtsity receivables include money due
for tuition, fees, loans, and accrued interest incoBee Note 6 for an Accounts Receivable
schedule.

Due From/Due To Other Funds

During the course of operations, numerous transactiang between individual funds within the
State for goods provided or services rendered. Theseablas and payables are classified as
Due From Other Funds and Due To Other Funds, respectivetiiedalance sheet. With the
exception of intrafund operating transfers, no elifimpentries have been made for transactions
occurring between funds. See Note 7 for a Due From/Due Aer Gtinds schedule.

Due From Other Entities

The amounts reflected as Due From Other Entities are ¢ggdpnainly of federal grant
revenues receivable.

Deferred Bond Financing Costs

Deferred Bond Financing Costs consist of the costs imtuelated to bond issuance. These
costs are capitalized and amortized over the term of theéshasing the straight-line method.

Notes and Mortgages Receivable, Net

Long-term receivables are reported as Notes and MordRegeeivable.
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Grand Prizes Receivable/Payable

Grand Prizes Receivable/Payable consist of the annuities purchased to settle State L ottery grand
prize obligations. See Note 16 for a schedule of Grand Prize Obligations.

Other Assets

Other Assetsinclude prepaid expenses, inventories, advances to sub-grantees, interest receivable,
assetsin liquidation, non-cash assets, and other miscellaneous items.

Prepaid expenses shown in the proprietary fund types represent amounts paid in the current
period for goods or services which will benefit future periods. Prepaid expenses include rent,
insurance, postage, and telephone charges. Prepaid expenses for the fiduciary fund types relate to
warrants issued for retirement benefits prior to the due date, so that beneficiaries will receive
payment on the due date.

Proprietary fund type inventories of supplies and materials are stated at cost, which approximates
market, generally using the first-in, first-out method. No inventories are included for
governmental fund types. Supplies and materials, which might be held in inventory for
governmental funds, are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase.

Fixed Assets, Net

Fixed Assetsinclude land, building and improvements, improvements other than buildings, book
volumes and collections, machinery and equipment, furniture, vehicles, construction in progress,
assets under capital |ease, and depreciation, when applicable.

Fixed Assets used in governmental fund type operations are recorded as expendituresin the
governmental funds and related assets are recorded in the General Fixed Assets Account Group.
Assets in the General Fixed Assets Account Group are not depreciated.

Fixed Assets held in the proprietary and similar trust fund types are valued in the same manner as
those held in the General Fixed Assets Account Group and are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives.

A more detailed description and schedules reflectinghbages in the State’s general fixed
assets and the proprietary fixed assets by function divitaas well as by class and source, can
be found in Note 8.

Amount Available for Debt Service

Debt service transactions and related cash balancespamrted in the Special Revenue funds
with a reservation of fund balance for debt servicateel to the Idaho Building Authority.

Amount to be Provided for Long-term Debt
Amount to be provided for long-term debt is the amoutet@rovided for repayment of general

long-term debt.
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Amount to be Provided for Capital Leases

Amount to be Provided for Capital Leasesisthe present value of the minimum lease payments
and is part of the General Long-Term Debt Account Group.

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities consists of accrued accounts payable, taxes payable,
outstanding checks and warrants, contingent liabilities, unclaimed property, and other accrued
liabilities.

Accounts payabl e represents amounts due for goods or services received but not paid for at June
30, 1999.

Taxes payable represent the amounts deducted from employees’ salaries and those amounts
contributed by the State for social security, federaldaard state taxes not yet paid. Also
included are sales or other taxes collected by statei@gdout not remitted to the State Tax
Commission or to other states.

Payroll and Compensated Absences Payable

Payroll and Compensated Absences Payable includesdquayroll payable, vacation and
compensatory time earned but not paid, and sick leave baltmpay health insurance benefits
for retired employees. Accrued payroll payable incls#daries and benefits earned but not paid
as of the fiscal year end.

Employees earn vacation based on hours worked and cortgrgrisae based on hours worked
in excess of forty hours per week. Upon termination of eympént, an employee is paid for
unused vacation time and earned administrative leave.mplloyees covered by the Fair Labor
Standards Act are paid compensatory balances at teioninat

Employees earn sick leave hours based on hours worked.e&iekhours are expensed when
used. Upon termination, employees are not paid for unidetbave. However, upon
retirement, 50 percent of an employee’s unused sick ledue ynot to exceed 336 hours) is used
by the Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho to paechaalth insurance for the retiree.
As explained in Note 10, the State funds a portion ofdtslsave compensated absences liability
and the funded portion is shown in the General Fund.

Compensated absence liabilities related to governmiemas are recorded in both governmental
funds and the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. ®hiop of the liability expected to

be funded by current available resources is recoginiztied governmental fund. The portion of
the liability that is not expected to be funded by curesailable resources is recognized in the
General Long-Term Account Group. For all other fund typtgortions of the compensated
absence liability other than sick leave are recordeddrgdual fund liabilities.

As of June 30, 1999, the total value of vacation and eoisgtory time accrued by employees in

the governmental funds and the General Long-Term DeluktdGroup was $9,095,116 and
$28,479,396, respectively. The funded sick leave ltgbikecorded in the General Fund, is
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$40,713,544. An unfunded sick leave liability, in the amount of $6,600,000, is classified as
General Long-Term Debt.

Deposits

In the course of normal operations, afund may hold cash or other assets of an individual or entity
as adeposit until certain conditions of an agreement are met, at which time the asset is returned to
the owner. Occasionaly, the owner will default on the conditions and the asset held as a deposit
becomes the property of the State and is recorded as revenue at that time.

Due To Other Entities

Due to Other Entities primarily represents amounts collected from the federal government but not
disbursed to subgrantee governmental units.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenues arise when potential revenue does eothmee'available” criterion for
recognition in the current period and when resourceseasved by the government before it has
a legal claim to them, e.g., when grant monies are recefi@d@ incurring qualifying
expenditures. In subsequent periods, when the revenagnition criterion is met or when the
government has a legal claim to the resources, the tiatuti deferred revenue is removed from
the balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

Notes, Bonds, and Contracts Payable

Notes, Bonds, and Contracts Payable consist of notes add tssued for the construction or
acquisition of facilities; for funding various projectsr contracts payable; and for contract
retentions that are a percentage of payments owed tortraators that are withheld until the
construction projects reach a certain stage of complef@e. Note 15 for further information on
Notes, Bonds, and Contracts Payable.

Policy Claim Liabilities

Policy Claim Liabilities relate to the Petroleum Cleant&/d rust Fund, the Risk Management
Fund, and the Group Insurance Fund. A liability for a claimstablished if information
indicates it is probable that a liability has been iredignd the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amounti@mms that have been incurred but not
reported. Claim liabilities are calculated based orefftienated ultimate cost of settling the
claim, considering the effects of inflation, recentrmlaiettiement trends, including frequency
and amount of pay-outs, and other economic and sociat$acClaim liabilities include any
specific, incremental claim adjustment expense. Any mahestimated recoveries are deducted
from the liability for unpaid claims.
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Capital Leases

Capital Leases are lease contracts entered into by the State that are in substance a purchase.
L ease commitments are discussed further in Note 14.

H. Fund Equity

Contributed capital is recorded in the internal service funds, which have received fixed assets and cash
from donations and other funds.

Reservations of fund balances and retained earnings identify assets that are not available for subsequent
year appropriations.

Designations represent portions of unreserved fund equity that reflect tentative management plans or
intent for financial resource utilization in afuture period. See Note 18 for a Fund Equity schedule.

I. Total (Memorandum Only)

Total columns on the financial statements are captionethl“Memorandum Only” to indicate they are
presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Thaltoblumn represents an aggregation of the
combined financial statement fund types. These amotmtsoh comparable to a consolidation and do
not represent the total resources available for uské$tate. Interfund eliminations have not been made
in the aggregation of this data.

NOTE 2. SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS

Below is the Supplemental Appropriations schedule fery#ar ending June 30, 1999. Supplemental
Appropriations include additional appropriations floe current fiscal year and appropriations for the
following fiscal year that can be used early due to angeney. Negative appropriations represent an
amount reduced by the Governor, the Board of Examinea (impestigation and report by the Division
of Financial Management), or the Legislature.

Supplemental Appropriations

General Fund $28,208,700
Special Revenue Funds
Fish and Game 307,900
Regulatory 124,600
Transportation 21,203,900
Miscellaneous 893,700
Internal Service Fund
General Services (400,000)
Total _$50,338,800
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NOTE 3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND CASH EQUITY WITH TREASURER

Authority for cash and investments: The State maintains a cash and investment pool that is available
for use by al funds. The pool includes cash and other investments. The State Treasurer is the investment
officer for the monies on deposit in the State Treasury. Investment policies of the State Treasurer are
governed by ldaho Code, Sections 67-1210 and 67-1210A. Each fund’s portion sfgbol is
summarized by fund type on the Combined Balance Sheet @akh Equity with Treasurer account.

The State Treasurer maintains an investment pool fal gmvernments. See Note 5 for more
information on the External Investment Pool.

Deposits: Cash and Cash Equivalents are deposited with nine fedanstitutions and are carried at
cost. _Idaho Code does not require collateralization abdgiep The State Treasurer controls the receipt
and disbursement of amounts owned by agencies included pritnary government and certain
component units other than the Endowment Funds, the Cleser Wetroleum Trust Fund, the State
Lottery, the Public Employees Retirement System of IdaB®R&?), the Potato Commission, the Dairy
Products Commission, the Wheat Commission, the StatdHgaldaho State Building Authority, and
some of the college and university funds. Other disgretelsented component units control receipt and
disbursement of their own funds. The following summaegsents the amount of primary government
and discretely presented component units’ deposits, Amef30, 1999, by the following categories:

1. Deposits which are insured or collateralized with séesrheld by the State or its agent in
the State’s name;

2. Deposits which are collateralized with securities hglthle pledging financial institution’s
trust department or agent in the State’s name; or

3. Deposits which are not collateralized or are collditard by the pledging financial institution
or the pledging institution’s trust department or ageuitniot in the State’s name.

Primary Government (in thousands)

Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Total
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Cash Equity with Treasurer $512,415 $99,789 $6,219 $618,423
Discretely Presented Component Unit§in thousands)

Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Total
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Cash Equity with Treasurer $34,550 $2,477 $37,027

Reconciliation of Primary Government Risk Categorizd Cash to Cash per Financial Statements
(in thousands)

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Cash Equity with Treasurer per Risk Categorization $618,423
Less: Outstanding Warrants (53,505)
Plus. Timing Difference 9

Idle Pool Cash Included with Investments For Note Disclosure Purposes 678,813
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Cash Equity with Treasurer per Financial Statements $1,243,722
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NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS

Investments: The State’s investments are classified in three categof credit risk to give an indication
of the level of risk assumed by the State as of the yearBmelthree categories of credit risk are:

1. Investments that are insured or registered or for whielsécurities are held by the State or
its agent in the State’s name;

2. Uninsured and unregistered investments for which thearisies are held by the
counterparty’s trust department or agent in the State’sham

3. Uninsured and unregistered investments for which theries are held by the counterparty,
or by its trust department or agent but not in the State’&nam

Some investments are made directly by an agency rathebyttae State Treasurer. Only a few agencies
are authorized to make such investments and then only fafispeograms.

All investments are valued in accordance with GASB 31, ssritbed in Note 1. The following

summaries identify the level of credit risk assumed by thee$ind the total fair value of state
investments at fiscal year end:
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Primary Government (in thousands)

Credit Risk Categories
I nvestments 1 2 3 Fair Value
Certificates of Deposit $1,982 $775 $1,867 $4,624
Repurchase Agreements 13,132 13,132
US Government Obligations 369,438 25,943 5,594 400,975
US Agency Obligations 1,011,904 123,294 1,135,198
Marketable Securities 4,455,914 178,259 44,977 4,679,150
Corporate Bonds 1,839,803 12,103 1,851,906
Other 223,477 223,477
Risk Classified Investments $7,915650 $204,977  $187,835 8,308,462
Investments Not Subject To Classification Due to Their Nature Fair Value
Pooled Short Term Investment Fund 282,913
Idaho Commercial Mortgages 198,424
Real Estate 75,254
Private Equity 61,194
Mutual Fund Holdings (401K) 14,827
Index Fund and Fixed Income Fund Holdings in Agency Fund 65,951
Total Non-Classified Investments 698,563
Tota Investments $9,007,025
Discretely Presented Component Unit§in thousands)
Credit Risk Categories

I nvestments 1 2 3 Fair Value
Repurchase Agreements $44,855 $44,855
Government Obligations 197,090 197,090
US Agency Obligations 76,185 76,185
Other 26,435 26,435
Risk Classified Investments $344,565 344,565
Investments Not Subject To Classification Due To Their Nature

Investment Agreements 81,069
Interest Receivable 2,534
Total Investments $428,168

Reconciliation of Primary Government Risk Categorized Investments to Investments per
Financial Statements(in thousands)

Investments per Risk Categorization $9,007,025
Less: Idle Pool Cash Included with Investments

for Note Disclosure Purposes (678,813)
Investments per Financial Statements $8,328,212
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Repurchase AgreementsRepurchase agreements are purchases of securities with simultaneous
agreements to resell those same securities in the future at the same price plus a contract rate of interest.
These investments are made throughout the year for short periods of time.

Securities Lending Agreementsidaho Code, Section 67-1210, authorizes the State Treasurer to invest
excess funds, other than endowment funds. The State Treasurer participatesin securities lending

programs with both the External Investment Pool and Idle Pool funds with broker-dealers and other

entities (borrowers) for collateral that will be returned for the same securitiesin the future. The

Treasurer's securities custodian manages the secueitigimty program. During the year, the custodian
loaned US government securities, equity securities, anmbrate bonds or notes in return for collateral
for cash and government securities. The investmentolateralized at 102 percent of the market and
restated to the market value on a daily basis. There aestriztions on the amount of loans that can be
made. Either the State or the borrower can cancel aitises loaned upon demand.

The cash collateral received is invested by the custadidreld in a separate account in the name of the
State Treasurer. Cash is only reinvested in repurchaseragnts with terms equally matching the actual
securities lent. The Treasurer is indemnified fesldue to default on the part of the borrowers and
failure to maintain the daily mark-to-market on the loaAsyear-end the State Treasurer had no credit
risk exposure to borrowelmecause the collateral exceeded the amount borrowede Whes no loaned
securities as of June 30, 1999.

In accordance with Idaho Code, Section 57-722, the EndotwBuand engages in securities lending
activities, whereby certain securities (U.S. governmsenurities and government issues) are loaned to
specific entities. The securities borrower will pay aestgoremium to the Endowment Board that will be
remitted monthly. At the time the securities are loanedEtidowment Board receives cash or other
collateral. Securities lending collateral is compriskdentain U.S. government issued or U.S.
government agency securities and is received valuee atguired margin of 102 percent of the market
value of the securities loaned. The securities lendgrgement requires daily monitoring of the market
value or the securities loaned and collateral receivt#dagditional collateral obtained as necessary to
meet margin requirements.

The Endowment Board is indemnified for fraudulent or negligacts performed by the Trustee (Key
Trust Company National Association and the Bank of New Yarnp@ration), and should loaned
securities not be returned as specified, the Trusteeklwe required to make the Endowment Board
whole. As such, credit risk exposure is limited underafensactions. The carrying amount and fair
value of the loaned securities from the Public School #&ntmnt Fund were $143,286,000 and
$150,422,324, respectively, as of June 30, 1999. Thgmgamount and fair value of the loaned
securities from the Pooled Endowment Fund were $93,113d&$91,071,597, respectively, as of June
30, 1999.

Other Investing Activities: The Public Employee Retirement (System) purchases foregariacts for
certain international investments and United Statescyggumaranteed collateralized mortgage obligations
for the purpose of enhancing liquidity, reducing tranieacdr other costs, or partially hedging an existing
exposure. The System does not incur any costs for fdreaantracts until the settlement date. Future
potential obligations for the forward contracts arersobgnized until the contract expiration date.

The System has entered into forward foreign exchangeactsito purchase or sell currency at various
dates in the future at a specific price. The value of fareigrency to be purchased or sold fluctuates
continuously. As such, it is possible that the foreigmency market price at the specified time to
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purchase or sell may be lower than the price at which the System is committed to buy or sell. The System
could sdll the forward contract at aloss, or if it were to continue to hold the contract, the System may
make a termination payment to the counterparty to cancel its obligation under the contract and then buy
the currency on the open market. The System is also exposed to the failure of the counterparty to fulfill
the contract. The terms of the contract include provisions for recovering the cost in excess of the
guaranteed price from the counterparty should the System have to purchase currency on the open market.
Unrealized gains of $28,404,985 at June 30, 1999, were recognized, which represents the gain that would
occur from executing forward foreign exchange contracts at June 30, 1999.

In accordance with investment laws, the Endowment Board engagesin sales (writing) of call optionsto
increase yield for certain securities that are owned. These options are usualy outstanding for periods of
one week to one month and the Endowment Board receives cash for the sale of the call. During the time
the options are outstanding, the Endowment Board is exposed to market risk, or the risk of changesin
interest rates. Asinterest rates decrease and bond prices increase to or above the exercise price as
specified in the option, the security could be called, and the Endowment Board would be forced to sell the
security at the call price, giving up the potential yield on the security. If the bond is called, and the
Endowment Board does not want to lose the security, they will buy back the call option at aloss. For the
year ended June 30, 1999, the Endowment Board recognized no gain on the sale of covered call options.
At year end the Endowment Board had no outstanding call options.

The Endowment Board also invests in collateralized mortgage obligations. These securities are based on
cash flows from principal and interest payments on underlying mortgages. Therefore, they are sensitive
to prepayments by mortgagees, which may result from a decline in interest rates.

Boise State University investsin interest-only U. S. Treasury strips (a derivative) to maximize yields.
These investments are based on cash flows from interest payments on underlying U.S. Treasury
Securities. The underlying securities are guaranteed by the U.S. Government and do not present the same
level of risk as do other forms of derivatives.

NOTE 5. EXTERNAL INVESTMENT POOL
Overview of the State Treasurer’'s Authority

Following Idaho Code, Section 67-2328, authorizing the Joint Exercise of Powers, the dected State

Treasurer sponsors an investment pool that other Idaho governmental entities (cities, counties, school
districts, etc.) can voluntarily place excess funds in to earn higher interest rates. The Joint Exercise of

Powers Trust Fund is also referred to asthe Local Government Investment Pool. The State Treasurer may
also invest State money in the Joint Exercise of Powerst Fund. The Treasurer’'s Office must operate
and invest the funds according to its state investmditlydor the benefit of the participants. The Pool
is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Conumiss any other regulatory body.

Investments are converted to fair value at June 30 or@ance with GASB Statement 31. Fair value is
defined as the market value (bid) if the investmemtiddd on a recognized exchange or the value of the
investment in a current transaction with a willing buydseothan a forced liquidation sale. Investments
were valued through a quoted market price. The Pool opexatereports to participants on an amortized
cost basis. Specifically, the Pool distributes earniagle participants monthly based on their relative
participation during the month. Distributed earnings ateutated based on (1) realized gains and losses
calculated on an amortized cost basis; (2) interest iag(@h amortization of discounts and premiums on

State of Idaho 42 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



State of Idaho

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

astraight-line basis; and (4) administrative expenses. This method differs from the fair value method

used to value investments in these financial statements because the amortized cost method is not designed

to distribute to participants all unrealized gains anddesn the fair values of the Pool's investments.
Thus the participant’s share of the Pool is not basediomdlue. The Treasurer does not provide any
legally binding guarantees to support the value of sharbetparticipants. No separate reports of the
external investment pool have been issued. The asshesmnotes will not agree to the asset amounts
included in the combining financial statements for thestment Trust Fund because GASB Statement
31 requires that only the external portion of the investmeol assets be reported in that fund. The
internal portion of assets must be reported in the apédndividual fund or component units.

Summary of Fair Value
(in thousandsg

Amortized Fair Purchase

Security Cost Value Yield Maturity
Commercial Paper* $150,412 $150,412 5.016% - 6.541% 7/99 - 9/99
Repurchase Agreements* 4 4 5.000% 7/99
United States Treasury Notes 70,310 70,073 2.586% - 5.686% 8/99 -11/00
Federal Home Loan Bank 96,178 95,094 4.950% - 6.149% 7/99 -12/03
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. 93,319 92,399 4.861% - 6.007% 8/99 - 1/03
Federal National Mortgage 304,812 302,486 4.709% - 6.260% 7/99 - 2/04
Association

Certificates of Deposit* 4,600 4,600 4.713% - 5.550% 7/99 - 4/00
Purchase Accrued Interest* 425 425 0.000% 7/99 - 9/99

Total $720,060 $715,493

*Represents Cash and Cash Equivalents

All investments for the Joint Exercise of Powers Trustd-are entirely insured or collateralized with
securities held by the Fund or by its agent in the FundienaDeposits are not insured or otherwise
guaranteed by the State of Idaho.

The administrative costs associated with the Joint Eeeaf Powers Trust Fund are paid to the State
Treasurer’s Office on a monthly basis by a transfer fronddive Exercise of Powers Trust Fund to the
State Treasurer’s operating fund.

Calculation of Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value
The State uses the aggregate method for determining tleasecfdecrease) in fair value of the

investments in the Joint Exercise of Powers Trust FuredowBis a schedule showing the decrease in the
fair value of investments during fiscal year 1999 (in gands):

Fair Value at June 30, 1999 $715,493

Add: Proceeds of Investments Sold in FY 99 7,244,720

Less: Cost of Investments Purchased in FY 99 (7,392,612)
Fair Value at June 30, 1998 (569,500)

Decrease in Fair Value of Investments During FY 99 $(1,899)

The following Joint Exercise of Powers Trust Fund cosddrfinancial statements, inclusive of external
and internal participants, for the fiscal year endetw B0, 1999, are as follows:
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Joint Exercise of Powers Trust Fund
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 1999
(in thousands)

Assets
Investments, at Fair Value $560,053
Cash and Cash Equivalents 155,441
Interest Receivable to the Pool 7,212
Total Assets 722,706
Liabilities
Accounts Payable (3,119)
Total Liabilities (3,119)
Net Assets Held in Trust for Pool Participants $719,587
Net Assets Consist of:
External Participant Units Outstanding ($1.00 par) $699,272
Internal Participant Units Outstanding ($1.00 par) 20,788
Undistributed and Unrealized Gains (L osses) (473)
Total Participant Units Outstanding ($1.00 par) 719,587
Net Assets Held in Trust for Pool Participants $719,587

Participant Net Asset Value, Offering Price and Redemption
Price per Share ($719,587/720,060) $1.00

Joint Exercise of Powers Trust Fund
Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999

(in thousands)

Investment Income

Interest Income $34,536

Net Decrease in Fair Value of Investments (1,899)
Total Investment Income 32,637
Expenses

Administrative Fees (147)
Net Investment Income (net increase in net assets a result of operations) 32,490
Distributions to Participants

Distributions Paid and Payable (37,350)
Share Transactions at Net Asset Value of $1.00 p8hare

Purchase of Units 1,553,581

Redemption of Units (1,401,081)

Net Increasein Net Assets and Shares Resulting From Share Transactions 152,500

Tota Increase in Net Assets 147,640
Net Assets Held in Trust for Pool Participants

Beginning of Period, as Restated 571,947

End of Period $719,587
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NOTE 6. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Below is a schedule of Accounts Receivable balances at June 30, 1999:

Accounts Receivable

Accounts Allowance for Net Accounts
Fund Receivable Doubtful Accounts Receivable
Genera Fund $134,269,959 $14,668,125 $119,601,834
Specia Revenue Funds
Fish and Game 163,561 163,561
Health and Welfare 8,216,489 8,216,489
Transportation 13,900,753 13,900,753
Federal 17,600 17,600
Regulatory 230,594 21,184 209,410
Agriculture and Natural Resources 2,168,124 8,528 2,159,596
Miscellaneous 1,651,238 285,650 1,365,588
Total Special Revenue Funds 26,348,359 315,362 26,032,997
Enterprise Funds
Correctiona Industries 155,935 155,935
Liquor Dispensary 45,063 3,962 41,101
State L ottery 2,820,118 2,820,118
Total Enterprise Funds 3,021,116 3,962 3,017,154
Internal Service Funds
General Services 164,913 164,913
Data Processing Services 9,576 9,576
Group Insurance 216 216
Risk Management 608,096 608,096
Total Internal Service Funds 782,801 0 782,801
Fiduciary Funds
Unemployment Compensation 31,006,057 1,246,791 29,759,266
Endowment Fund 4,193,401 4,193,401
Public Employees Retirement System 12,599,536 12,599,536
Firemen’s Retirement Fund 546,281 546,281
Judges' Retirement Fund 166,971 166,971
Sick Leave/lnsurance Reserve Fund 724,963 724,963
Tota Fiduciary Funds 49,237,209 1,246,791 47,990,418
Colleges and Universities 43,896,604 546,962 43,349,642
Total Reporting Entity $257,556,048 $16,781,202 $2404,846
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NOTE 7. DUE FROM/DUE TO OTHER FUNDS

Below is a schedul e of the Due From/Due To Other Funds balances at June 30, 1999:

Due From/Due To Other Funds

Due From Due To
Fund Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund $491,107 $746,275
Specia Revenue Funds
Fish and Game 8,995 41,210
Health and Welfare 9,202 828,282
Transportation 25,544 330,148
Federal 231,216 419,814
Regulatory 33,642 115,120
Agriculture and Natural Resources 261,418
Miscellaneous 139,830 53,805
Total Special Revenue Funds 448,429 2,049,797
Enterprise Funds
Correctional Industries 473,868 2,963
Liquor Dispensary 64,704
Total Enterprise Funds 473,868 67,667
Internal Service Funds
General Services 788,539 209,640
Data Processing Services 835,858 20,977
Group Insurance 8 1,342
Risk Management 206,864 148,975
Tota Internal Service Funds 1,831,269 380,934
Colleges and Universities 13,076,456 13,076,456
Total Reporting Entity $16,321,12 $16,321,129

NOTE 8. FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations are recorded as expendituresin the governmental
funds and as assets in the General Fixed Assets Account Group at cost or estimated historical cost, if
actual cost isnot available. Fixed assetsinclude the purchase price or construction cost plusinterest of
self-constructed assets. Donated fixed assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of
donation. Assetsin the General Fixed Assets Account Group are not depreciated.

Fixed assets held in the proprietary and similar trust fund types are valued in the same manner as those
held in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. For al major asset classes, the fixed assets of these
funds are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, and improvements other than buildings are
depreciated using the following schedule:
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Assets Years
Buildings 30-40
Improvements Other Than Buildings 5-40
Machinery, Equipment and Other 5-30

Assets with a cost of $5,000 or greater and a useful life of more than two years are capitalized. Interest
incurred during construction is capitalized.

Land is recorded at historical cost or fair market value at date of acquisition. In cases where historical
cost isnot available, land is valued using comparables indexed forward or backward with the consumer
priceindex (CPl). Donated land isvalued at estimated fair value at its donation date. Federd grant land
isvalued at one dollar per acre.

Public domain general fixed assets or infrastructure, e.g., freeways, bridges, sidewalks and other assets
that are immovable and of value only to the State, are not capitalized or reported. The cost of land
associated with infrastructure is not included in the financial statements.

The college and university funds account for fixed asset acquisitions at cost. Construction projects are
included in the plant fund while the project is being constructed. These funds capitalize interest
expenditures during construction but do not record depreciation.

The following schedules present changes in the State&sa@dixed assets by function and activity, as
well as by class and source:
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Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by Function andtiity

Function and Activity
General Government:

Executive Administration

Financial Administration

Tax Administration

Legal Administration

Legislative

Other Internal Operations
Public Safety and Corrections:

Court System

Police Services

Civil Defense

Adult and Juvenile Corrections
Agriculture and Economic Development:

Employment and Rehabilitation

Economic Development

Business and Professional Regulation
Natural Resources:

Natural Resources and Recreation Management

Energy Management

Environmental Health
Health:

Physical Health

Mental Health

Medical Assistance

Ingtitutional and Residential Care
Public Education:

Education Policy Development

Elementary and Secondary Education

Higher Education

Vocational Education

Cultural Affairs
Human Services:

Individual Income Assistance

Other Social Services
Transportation:

Capital Budget

Highways

Aeronautics

Other Transportation
Total General Fixed Assets

State of Idaho

General
Fixed Assets
June 30, 1998

General
Fixed Assets

(as adjusted) Additions Deletions June 30, 1999
$996,287 $116,609 $49,506 $1,063,390
208,093 41,607 24,266 225,434
3,703,911 1,062,775 593,691 4,172,995
683,727 23,758 81,242 626,243
579,862 218,988 109,332 689,518
22,651,331 2,566,415 239,023 24,978,723
1,510,494 32,029 17,000 1,525,523
15,508,569 15,673,219 1,937,583 29,244,205
10,496,956 1,919,221 669,373 11,746,804
103,306,906 41,090,585 531,490 143,866,001
18,336,384 4,385,332 741,490 21,980,226
626,664 30,203 71,686 585,181
11,237,395 1,420,441 488,826 12,169,010
178,958,885 9,100,039 3,565,799 184,493,125
14,000 0 0 14,000
1,218,150 267,703 12,666 1,473,187
3,172,624 31,840 7,052 3,197,412
18,949,332 651,249 230,857 19,369,724
606,698 0 110,036 496,662
49,325,730 406,327 222,980 49,509,077
62,467 0 0 62,467
11,957,120 391,812 128,481 12,220,451
11,261 0 11,261 0
110,700 54,038 33,455 131,283
15,977,452 3,262,212 655,497 18,584,167
1,689,791 223,137 354,585 1,558,343
2,241,149 83,604 207,934 2,116,819
118,152,850 9,725,977 11,483,620 116,395,207
85,827,711 14,401,471 3,431,728 96,797,454
1,008,901 841,517 183,652 1,666,766
356,980 223,163 57,150 522,993

$679,488,380 $108,245,271 $26,251,261 $761,482,390
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Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by Class and Source

General
Fixed Assets
June 30, 1998

General
Fixed Assets

Class (as adjusted) Additions Deletions June 30, 1999
Land $140,338,370 $2,322,146 $1,604,835 $141,055,681
Buildings and Improvements 302,918,974 57,310,100 11,969,209 348,259,865
Construction in Progress 43,686,973 14,206,736 886,187 57,007,522
Improvements Other Than Buildings 6,951,740 935,472 101,098 7,786,114
Machinery and Equipment 180,900,892 33,276,501 11,579,225 202,598,168
Capital Leases 4,691,431 194,316 110,707 4,775,040

Total General Fixed Assets

Funding Source
General Fund

Specia Revenue Funds
Total General Fixed Assets

$679,488,380

$108,249,27 $26,251,261

$761,482,390

127,219,286
552,269,094

22,957,791
85,287,480

3,777,182
22,474,079

146,399,895
615,082,495

$679,488,380

$108,248,27 $26,251,261

$761,482,390

Schedule of Proprietary, Fiduciary and Component Unit Fixed Assets

Primary Government

Component
Internal Colleges Unit
Enterprise Service Trustand and Proprietary
Funds Funds Agency Universities Funds
Land $297,943 $2,346,176 $18,915,819 $664,963
Buildings and Improvements 1,782,593 $1,074,799 5,391,692 536,572,463 6,062,114
Construction in Progress 36,076,361
Improvements Other Than Buildings 251,229
Machinery and Equipment 11,960,623 11,204,475 3,903,000 288,598,045 5,931,728
Accumulated Depreciation (6,515,256) (7,851,529) (1,528,723) (3,601,015)
Capital Leases 2,500,000 1,032,416 7,481,150
Total Fixed Assets $10,277,132 $5,460,161 $10,112,145 887$643,838 $9,057,790

NOTE 9. RETIREMENT PLANS

Summary of Plans

The State maintains a number of different retirement plans. The Public Employee Retirement System of

Idaho (PERSI) administers the Public Employee Retiremgste® of Idaho Plan, the Firemen’s

Retirement Plan, and the Idaho Super Saver — 401(k) Planld@ho Judicial Department, under the
direction of the Idaho Supreme Court, administers tdgeki Retirement Fund. The Idaho State Board

of Education administers an Optional Retirement Plathi®colleges and universities. The Idaho

State of Idaho
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Department of Labor administers a Closed Retirement Plan for employees of the Idaho Department of
Labor hired prior to October 1, 1980. Each of these plansis discussed individually below.

Public Employee Retirement Fund/Policemen’s Retiremenirfd (PERSI Plan)
and Firemen’s Retirement Fund (FRF)

Plan Description

Organization and Purpose

The Public Employee Retirement Fund/Policemen’s Retinéfrend (PERSI Plan) and Firemen’s
Retirement Fund (FRF) are both cost-sharing, multipipteyer defined benefit retirement plans. The
Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho (the Systeminglers both of these plans. A retirement
board, appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the Sexate, manages the System, which
includes selecting the funding agents and establishimdjrfg policy. Statutes governing the PERSI Plan
are_Idaho Code, Title 59, Chapter 13 and Title 50, ChapteBiatutes governing FRF are Idaho Code
Title 72, Chapter 14.

Membership

State agencies and school districts are employethees of the PERSI Plan. Political subdivisionshs
as county and city governments; water, sewer aatithdistricts; hospitals; libraries; and fire dists
contribute to the PERSI Plan and FRF. All state employatesovered by the other plans described
below, who normally work more than twenty hours per weekheave been employed by an employer
member for more than five consecutive months, are coverdtelERSI Plan. As of June 30, 1999, the
number of participating employer units in the PERSI Plas 817 and actual benefit recipients and
members in the PERSI plan were:

Retirees and Beneficiaries/Vested Terminated Employees 26,808
Current Active Employees 59,248
Total 86,056

For FRF, as of June 30, 1999, there were 19 participatipdpger units, consisting of city fire
departments, in PERSI. Total employee membership sho®ecetired members or beneficiaries
collecting benefits from the FRF and 1d&ive members.

The System issues a publicly available financial repattititludes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtainedrhiing to PERSI, P.O. Box 83720, Boise,
ID 83720-0078.

Benefits

The benefit structure for both the PERSI Plan and FRF aeg lmsmembers’ years of service, age, and
final compensation. In addition, benefits are providediisability, death, and survivors of eligible
members or beneficiaries. Members are eligible for raérd benefits upon attainment of the ages
specified for their employment classification or a bamation of age plus service. The annual service
retirement allowance was 1.917 percent (2.225 percepbfime and firefighters) at June 30, 1999, for
each month of credited service, of the average monthlyydalathe highest consecutive 42 months.

The benefit payments for both the PERSI Plan and FRF angatald using a benefit formula adopted by
the Idaho Legislature. The System is required to pravitigpercent minimum cost of living increase per
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year provided the Consumer Price Index increases 1 percent or more. The Retirement Board has the
authority to provide higher cost of living increases to a maximum of the Consumer Price Index movement
or 6 percent, whichever is less; however, any amount above the 1 percent minimum is subject to approval
by the Idaho Legidature. The cost of living increase for the FRF is based on the increase in the statewide
average firefighters’ wage.

The FRF covers a closed group of firefighters who were ieéore October 1, 1980, and who receive
benefits in addition to those provided under the PERS1.PI

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The System’s basic financial statements of the pensiuisfare prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting. For the financial statements of the perfsiots, employee and employer contributions are
recognized as revenues in the period in which employe&ssmare performed, investment income is
recognized when earned, and benefit payments, refumdigther expenses are recorded when incurred.
The pension funds are accounted for on a flow of econ@saurces measurement focus. The PERSI
Plan adheres to Statement No. 25 of the Governmental AtiwgBtandards Board (GASB No. 25),
Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans aoig isclosures for Defined Contribution
Plans.

The System'’s investments are presented at fair value. #axhnd sales are recorded at the trade date.
Investments held by PERSI and FRF are commingled. The fa& shinvestments is based on
published market prices and quotations from major invest brokers when available. Mortgages have
been valued on the basis of their future principal andast@ayments discounted at prevailing interest
rates for similar instruments. The fair value of reatesinvestments has been estimated based on
independent appraisals. Short-term investments areedpirmarket value when published market
prices and quotations are available or at cost plusieddnterest, which approximate market value.

Funding Policy

Contributions and Vesting

The System’s funding policy for the PERSI Plan and FRF, asedkby Idaho law, provides for periodic
employer contributions at actuarially determined rad®pressed as percentages of annual covered
payroll are sufficient to accumulate assets to payflienehen due. Level percentage of payroll
employer contribution rates are determined using the BgeyActuarial Cost Method. Under this
method, the actuarial present value of the projecteditengeach individual included in the actuarial
valuation is allocated on a level basis over the earnintfeadhdividual between entry age and assumed
exit age. The System amortizes the unfunded liabilisgtian a level percentage of payroll. The
maximum amortization period permitted under Idaho Codetj@e59-1322, is 25 years. The payroll for
employees covered by the PERSI and FRF was approximat&B4$100,000 and $31,000,000,
respectively.

The State’s PERSI Plan contributions required and paid $&9,534,906, $58,152,823, and
$62,194,310, for the years ended June 30, 1999, 1998987 respectively.

Actuarial valuations of the PERSI Plan are performed dhynughe last valuation of the PERSI Plan was

performed as of July 1, 1999. Actuarial valuations of tRE Bre performed biennially. The last FRF
valuation was performed as of July 1, 1998.
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Normal cost is 14.32 percent of covered payroll and the amount available to amortize the unfunded
actuarial liability is 1.59 percent of covered payroll for the PERSI Plan. Thereis no normal cost
associated with FRF and al contributions to FRF are available to reduce the unfunded actuarial liability.

At November 1, 1997, the Board temporarily reduced contribution rates by an aggregate total of 3
percent. At November 1, 1998, the Board made a 1 percent permanent rate reduction and a 2 percent
temporary rate reduction through October 31, 1999. At September 28, 1999, the Board extended the 2
percent temporary rate reduction through October 31, 2000. The contribution rates for the year ended
June 30, 1999, are as follows;

Employee Group Employer Employee
PERSI
General 9.77% 5.86%
Police and Fire 10.01% 7.21%
ORP Employees of Higher Education:
Colleges and Universities 3.03% N/A
Junior Colleges 3.83% N/A

FRF employer and employee contribution rates for firemen hired before October 1, 1980, are 25.89
percent and 4.24 percent, respectively, in addition to the PERSI Plan Police and Fire rates shown above.
The employer contribution rate for firemen hired after October 1, 1980, is 17.24 percent, in addition to the
PERSI Plan Police and Fire rates shown above.

Firemen’s Retirement Fund
Employer Contributions (Dollarsin Millions)

Year Annual Annual
Ended Required Required Percentage
June 30  Contribution Contribution Contributions
1997 $9.45 15.40% 79.2%
1998 9.45 17.24 84.7
1999 8.64 17.24 99.1

After five years of credited service (five months for elected or appointed officials), members become fully
vested in retirement benefits earned to date. Upon termination of employment, accumulated member
contributions plus interest, accrued at 4.75 percent (5.25 percent prior to January 1, 1999) compounded
monthly per annum, are refundable. Withdrawal of such accumulated contributions results in forfeiture of
the member’s accrued benefit; however, state law dokslmprovisions for reinstatement of forfeited
service upon repayment of the accumulated contoibsiplus interest.

Funding

Contributions from members, employers, and earnings iineastments fund the PERSI Plan and FRF
benefits. Additional FRF funding is obtained from recefpdm a fire insurance premium tax. Member
and employer contributions are a percentage of applicabmber compensation. Member contribution
rates are defined, by state law, as a percentage of tHeyempontribution rate. Employer contribution
rates are recommended by periodic actuarial valuatiaham@nsubject to the approval of the Retirement
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Board and set forth in state statute. Valuations are based on actuarial assumptions, the benefit formulas,
and employee groups of the PERSI Plan and FRF.

Costs of administering the plans are financed through the contributions and investment earnings of the
System.

Idaho Super Saver—401(k) Plan

Organization and Purpose

The Idaho Super Saver — 401(k) Plan is a qualified 40&fikdet contribution pension plan, open to all
employees of the State of Idaho. Statutes governing thisaRtaldaho Code, Title 59, Chapter 13. The
Plan is organized to provide investment managemenissrto state employees.

The administrator of this Plan is the Public EmployeerBaint System of Idaho (the System). The
System has entered into a contract with Scudder, Stevélarg, Inc. (Scudder), the Plan custodian and
recordkeeper, for services relating to nine investmembrptmanaged by Scudder. These options
include a U.S. Treasury Money Mutual Fund, an Income ®ufund, a Balanced Mutual Fund, and six
equity mutual funds. Participants direct their investnmeintwithout restriction and may elect to change
their salary deferral every pay period.

No retirement plan provisions changed during the yeaaffedtted the employees’ selected
contributions.

Membership
As of June 30, 1999, the Plan had 88 employer unitbkigp have participating employees and 2,797
actual participants in the 401(k) Plan.

Benefits

Benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to thephasninvestment earnings. Benefits are payable
to participating employees or their beneficiaries icoagance with the terms of the 401(k) contracts.
Distributions are allowed for the following: termirati of employment, disability, financial hardship,
retirement, and death. The financial hardship withdrasvallowed only for the purposes of paying for
college education, extraordinary medical expensesdiagoeviction, or purchasing a primary home.
Employees will be required to pay a 10 percent IRS penalteéoly withdrawal” if they are under the

age of 59%; in addition to regular income taxes.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies are the same as PERSI’

Contributions

The 401(k) Plan currently allows participants to maked@ferred contributions at 1 percent to 23
percent of their gross salary. Participants contrib#431,282 during the year ended June 30, 1999.
There are no employer contributions to the Plan.

Funding

The administrative expenses of the 401(k) Plan, most iwhwdre paid to Scudder, are funded by the
participants of the Plan.
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Judges’ Retirement Fund (JRF)
Plan Description

Organization and Purpose

The Judges’ Retirement Fund (JRF) is a single-emplafareti benefit retirement plan, which provides
retirement benefits for Justices of the Supreme CQaiyt of Appeals Judges, and District Court Judges,
hereinafter referred to as “members.” The Idaho Jaldizépartment, under the direction of the Idaho
Supreme Court, administers the JRF. In its administrathd management of investments, the JRF is
guided by the Prudent Man Investment Act and the Idaho,Smdtions 68-501 through 68-506. The
JRF is also governed in its fiduciary responsibility g Idaho Code, Section 59-1301, and is
empowered in its sole discretion to limit, control, andigieate the types and amounts of investments.
Statutes governing the JRF are Idaho Code, Title 1, Gti(pte

The Judges’ Retirement Fund issues a publicly avaifatadacial report that includes financial statements
and required supplementary information. That repost Ineaobtained by writing to the Idaho Supreme
Court, P.O. Box 83720, Boise, ID 83720-0101.

Membership
As of June 30, 1999, the JRF had 47 retired membersefitiaries collecting benefits, 10 terminated
members entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits, aractide members.

Benefits

The benefit structure is based on members’ years oftceesvid compensation. In addition, benefits are
provided for disability, death, and survivors of ellgimembers. The benefit payments for the JRF are
calculated using a benefit formula adopted by the Idahaslaggre. For the first 10 years of service,
benefits are credited at 4 percent per year of members’esmwapon. For the next nine years of service,
benefits are credited at 2V percent per year of membergarwation. The maximum benefit is 62%2
percent of compensation.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The JRF's financial statements are prepared using theahd@sis of accounting. Investment income
and filing fees are recognized when earned and benefitggagnrefunds, and other expenditures are
recorded when the obligation is incurred. Member andrtiegnt contributions are recognized as
revenues in the period in which the member’s servicepaafermed.

The Fund'’s investments are presented at fair value. diihedlue of investments is based on published
market prices and quotations from major investment losokben available. Short-term investments are
reported at market value when published market prices antdtimuns are available, or at cost plus
accrued interest, which approximate market value. Pseshand sales are recorded at the trade date.

Funding Policy

Contributions and Vesting

Members and the Judicial Department contribute to tiediRing their first 20 years of employment.
Member and department contributions are a percentagerabar compensation as defined by State law.
Contributions provide for department and member contdbhstat 7 percent and 6 percent, respectively,
of annual covered payroll for the year ended June 3.1%he payroll for members covered by the JRF
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was approximately $3,787,000. In addition, specified court filing feesin civil court actions are dedicated
to the JRF.

Based on the most recent actuarial valuation at July 1, 1999, the Annual Required Contributions (ARC)
were $1,545,000. Total contributions to the pension plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999,
amounted to $1,787,000, of which $265,000 and $227,000 were made by the Judicial Department and its
justices and judges, respectively. In addition, the JRF received contributions from court filing fees of
$1,294,000. Asof thelast actuarial valuation, since the state contributions plus the filing fee
contributions have been equal to the ARC, the Annual Pension Cost (APC) is equal to the ARC and the
Net Pension Obligation (NPO) is zero. There was no change in the NPO from the prior actuarial
valuation.

The State’s APC and NPO to JRF for the two most recent w@iyaetriods are as follows:

Fiscal Year Annual Pension Percentage of APC Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation (NPO)
6/30/96 no valuation
6/30/97 $1,495,000 100.0% $0
6/30/98 no valuation
6/30/99 $1,545,000 100.0% $0

Members become fully vested in their retirement benefi¢s four years of credited service. If a
member terminates from the JRF prior to four years of sgrthhe member’s contributions plus 6%
percent per annum will be returned. Members are eliffiblestirement benefits upon attainment of the
age 65 or 20 years of service.

Funding
The JRF’s benefits are funded by contributions from mesed the Judicial Department, earnings from
investments, and court filing fees.

The funding status and required contribution levelgevieewed periodically by an actuary using the
Entry Age Normal Cost Method. Under this method, the actuarésent value of the projected benefits
of each individual included in the actuarial valuati®allocated on a level basis over the earnings of the
individual between entry age and assumed exit age. Aalfwvatuations of the JRF are performed
biennially. The last valuation was performed as of Jul1999.

Costs of administering the JRF are financed througkdhé&ibutions and investment earnings of the
JRF.

College and University Optional Retirement Plan (ORP)

Organization and Purpose

Effective July 1, 1990, the Idaho State Legislature aizbdithe Idaho State Board of Education to
establish an Optional Retirement Plan (ORP), a definetfibation plan, for college and university
faculty and exempt employees. Statutes governing thisgrke Idaho Code, Sections 33-107A and 33-
107B. Vendor options include Teachers’ Insurance and inAgsociation, College Retirement
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Equities Fund (TIAA-CREF), and Variable Annuity Life Insurance Company. The Plan is administered
by TIAA-CREF and they may be reached at (800) 842-2009.

Membership

New faculty and exempt employees hired July 1, 1990, or thereafter, automatically enroll in the ORP and
select their vendor option. Faculty and exempt employees hired before July 1, 1990, had a one-time
opportunity to enroll in the ORP.

Contributions and Vesting

The employee contribution requirement for the ORP is based on a percentage of total payroll. Employer
contributions are determined by the State of Idaho. Although enrolleesin the ORP no longer belong to
PERSI, the employer isrequired to contribute 3.03 percent of the annual covered payroll to PERSI
through July 1, 2015. During the year ended June 30, 1999, this supplemental funding payment made to
PERSI was $3,029,000.

The contribution requirement and amount paid for the year ended June 30, 1999, was $14,672,000, which
consisted of $7,716,000 from the universities and $6,956,000 from employees. These contributions
represented approximately 7.72 percent and 6.97 percent of covered payroll.

Participants are immediately fully vested in the ORP. Retirement benefits are available either asalump
sum or any portion thereof upon attaining 55 years of age.

Department of Labor's Retirement Plan (LRP)

There are 140 current participating employees of the Idaho Department of Labor and 373 retired former
employees receiving benefits in the Labor's RetgetrPlan, which is an insured retirement plan. The
Retirement Plan provides retirement benefits fopleyees of the Idaho Department of Labor hiredmprio
to October 1, 1980. The authorities under whichelfies are provided and may be amended are Idaho
Code, Section 72-1335 and U.S. Department of L&des and Regulations. The employer payments
have been fully funded by Federal revenues from the UeBaBment of Labor.

The required contribution for employees is 7 percetth@f annual salary. For the fiscal year ended June
30, 1999, the State of Idaho’s contribution rate wla percent through the October 2, 1998, pay atade
zero percent thereafter. The total employer coation for fiscal year 1999 was $2,900. The retigat
benefit payments for the Retirement Plan are caledl using a benefit formula established by tha.Pla
This monthly benefit is payable for life, through annuity purchased by Prudential Investments, with
120 payments guaranteed. The State has no fuidbdity once the annuity is purchased. Prudéntia
Investments has guaranteed to pay for benefitsarevent of Prudential’s insolvency. At Septen@r
1998 (the last actuarial valuation date), there m@sinfunded liability. The normal service retikm
allowance is the average annual salary for thedsigthree consecutive years times the sum of:

1. 11/2 percent times each of the first five years of crediteds®r
2. 1 3/4 percent times each of the next five years of eckdirvice, and
3. 2 percent times each year of credited service in extéss gears.

According to the latest periodic actuarial valuation ept&8mber 30, 1998, the present value of future
retirement benefits is $116,672,000. The average askrat®of return used in determining the actuarial
present value of accumulated plan benefits was 7 perael®®8 and 1999. Net assets availébte
benefits are $140,361,000.
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The Labor Retirement Plan is administered by the Department of Labor, which may be reached at (208)
334-6187.

NOTE 10. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The State funds or partially funds two types of postemployment benefits. The authority establishing the
benefits and obligations to contribute is found in Idaho Code, Sections 67-5760 and 67-5761. These
benefits relate to health, disability, and life insurance and are described below.

A. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions
Retirees Health Insurance Subsidy

A retired officer or employee of a state agency, department, or ingtitution, including state officials and
elected officias, who are eligible to retire under the Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho

(PERSI) and whose unreduced PERSI monthly benefit at the time of retirement would meet or exceed the
monthly cost of single retiree health insurance coveragg,atect to have the State’s retiree health
insurance coverage for themselves and eligible depend@ntbe eligible, state employees must enroll
within sixty days of the date of their retirement and masehen or more years (20,800 or more hours)
of credited state service in a state-sponsored retivesystem. If the date of enrollment is deferred
beyond the original date of retirement, employees’ momttiyement benefit amount must equal or
exceed the single retiree premium at the time of the ddfermeliment.

The retiree coverage is different than that for activpleyees. The retiree pays the majority of the
premium cost (unless they are participating in the sicleléavd described later). However, the retiree
plan costs are “subsidized” by the active employee pldre State contributes four dollars per active
non-retired employee per month and the active employegstade an equal amount, which goes to a
reserve to offset the monthly costs of the retirees’ ben€kis per active employee amount remains
relatively constant from year to year. Other than an agipglgtion, there are no significant matters that
affect comparability of the State’s costs from one yednémext. For 1999, the State’s monthly
premium amount of $72,800 was approximately 4.2 percehedbtal annual premium cost of
$1,747,200. The State’s annual premium amount of thepiatadium cost was approximately $873,600.
As of June 30, 1999, 2,745 retired participants weréigo receive benefits. The Legislature has not
set aside any assets to pay future benefits. The benefpiggas-you-go.

Long-term Disability

Long-term disability benefits are available for disalbdenployees. Disabled employees are defined as
being unable to perform each of the substantial and madetias of the job for which they were hired
for the first 30 months of disability, or any job theteafor which they are reasonably qualified by
experience, education, or training. Additionally, t@alify for long-term disability, the waiting period of
the later of 26 weeks of continuous total disability or eskian of accrued sick leave must be met. The
gross benefit equals 60 percent of monthly salary or $3Wbi@hever is less). The State pays 100
percent of the cost of the program. Each fiscal yeapriment value of benefits for disabilities incurred
in that fiscal year is funded. In addition, funding disabilities incurred in prior fiscal years is adjusted
to reflect unanticipated changes in number of claimant&efit levels. Significant actuarial
assumptions include an interest rate of 5.75 percent stathdard disability termination table. Plan
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assets are valued at cost and as of June 30, 1999, the net assets available for future payments were
$12,424,395. Of this amount $534,395 will be released to cover other reserves. The actuarial accrued

liability for disabilitiesincurred in fisca year 1999 and all prior years was $11,890,000 as of June 30,

1999, and the unfunded liability was $0. The State’s datlyarequired contribution for the period was
0.352 percent of payroll, and actual contributions ferghriod were 0.352 percent of payroll. As of June
30, 1999, there were 252 active plan participants.

Payment of Life Insurance Premiums for Disabled Enogkes

The State pays 100 percent of the cost of basic life and diejpigife coverage while the employee is out
of work. Disabled employees are defined as being unabkrform each of the substantial and material
duties of the job for which they were hired for the fi@trBonths of disability, or any job thereafter for
which they are reasonably qualified by experience, &g or training. Each fiscal year, the present
value of benefits for disabilities incurred in thatfisyear is funded. In addition, funding for disabifitie
incurred in prior fiscal years is adjusted to reflatanticipated changes in number of claimants or benefit
levels. Significant actuarial assumptions include &er@st rate of 5.75 percent and a standard waiver of
premium life table. Plan assets are valued at cost amidlase 30, 1999, the net assets available for
future payments were $4,590,000. The actuarial acciafatity for disabilities incurred in fiscal year
1999 and all prior fiscal years was $4,590,000 as of Jun93@, and the unfunded liability was $0.

The funding for these reserves is built into the premipaid by the State to the life insurance carrier. As
of June 30, 1999, there were 433 active plan participants

Payment of Health Insurance Premiums for Disabled Emplege

For up to 30 months following the date of disability, that&pays 100 percent of the State’s share of
medical/dental premiums while the employee remairabtisl. The employee is required to pay the
normal contribution, if any, for these benefits. Eactdliyear, the present value of benefits for
disabilities incurred in the fiscal year is funded. dididion, funding for disabilities incurred in prior

fiscal years is adjusted to reflect unanticipated chaimgegmber of claimants or benefit levels.
Significant actuarial assumptions include expectaohtd of 600 percent of average claims for state
employees and a standard disability termination tablen &#sets are valued at cost, and as of June 30,
1999, the net assets available for future payments we38Ck800. The actuarial accrued liability for
disabilities incurred in fiscal year 1999 and all priocdisyears was $3,330,000 as of June 30, 1999, and
the unfunded liability was $0. The State’s actuariallynegl contribution for the period was $2.66 per
employee per month, and actual contributions for thexgevere $2.66 per employee per month. As of
June 30, 1999, there were 164 active plan participants.

B. Postemployment Healthcare Benefits Administeretly Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Sick Leave/lnsurance Reserve Fund

School districts and state agencies provide for the patyoieertain postretirement health insurance
premiums. The Sick Leave/Insurance Reserve Fund is efp@shent benefit that is not part of a
defined benefit plan but is a separate, statutorily pesvlbnefit available to retirees based on unused

accumulated sick leave at their retirement date.

The Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho (the PER&Ipa an agent for this fund on behalf of
the employers, who fund the program by remitting a percergagayroll to PERSI to cover future
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insurance premiums. The funds are held in the Sick Leave/Insurance Reserve Fund. The moniesare
presented in the General Fund for state retirees and in an agency fund for school district retirees.
Employers are responsible for any unfunded benefit afiigs. The State’s portion of the unfunded
benefit obligation is presented in the General Long-TeatB.ccount Group (GLTDAG). The sick
leave/insurance reserve fund assets are valued at malket v

Statutes governing this program are Idaho Code, Sectieb33, 33-1216, and 33-1228, which provide
for the transferring of amounts from the Sick Leaveflasae Reserve Fund to a retiree’s sick leave
account for the payment of postretirement health beragiimay be maintained by the employer.

School District Retirees For school district retirees, the unused sick leaveuatravailable for
benefits is based on one-half of their sick leave balanteze of compensation at retirement.

State Retirees State retirees are allowed to use one-half of their acsraleteave hours up to
the maximums described below:

Credited Maximum Allowable
Hours of State Service Sick Leave Hours
0 - 10,400 (0-5 years of service) 192
10,401 - 20,800 (5-10 years of service) 240
20,801 - 31,200 (10-15 years of service) 288
31,201 + (15 years of service or more) 336

Presented below is pertinent actuarial information freennhost recent actuarial valuation dated July 1,
1999:

State School Districts Total
Active Participants 43,017 16,231 59,248
Contributions Required and Paid $7,003,932 $6,852,022 $13,855,954
Rate of Contribution .65% 1.15%
Total Net Assets Available for
Future Payments $40,700,000 $66,700,000 $107,400,000
Unfunded Actuarial Liability $6,600,000 $18,300,000 $90,000
Actuarially Accrued Liability $47,300,000 $85,000,000  381300,000

Sick Leave/lnsurance Reserve Fund actuarial valuations are performed biennially.

Postretirement health insurance benefits are advaumzied with employer contributions on an
actuarially determined basis, using the Entry Age Actu@ust Method. Postretirement health
insurance premiums are paid from the retiree’s sick leeaeuat until the account balance is
exhausted.

NOTE 11. TAX ANTICIPATION NOTES

Idaho Code, Title 63, Chapter 32, authorizes the Stasesiirer, on approval of the State Board of
Examiners, to borrow money in anticipation of income oenexe from taxes. Such borrowing is for the
current year only and is limited to no more than 75 percetieahtome or revenue which is reasonably
anticipated to be collected during the current fiscat.yea
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External Tax Anticipation Notes sold on the open market were issued on July 1, 1998, in the principal
amount of $300,000,000. These notes were redeemed on June 30, 1999. The interest expense incurred
and paid was $13,462,500.

Internal Tax Anticipation Notes (issued by the General Fund to borrow from other available state funds or
accounts) were issued in the amount of $75,000,000 on June 11, 1999, and were redeemed on June 28,
1999. Idaho Code, Section 67-1210, states interest on investments, unless specified by law, shall be
deposited to the General Fund. Therefore, in effect, no interest was paid on the Internal Tax Anticipation
Notes issued.

NOTE 12. RISK FINANCING

The State maintains a combination of commercial and self-insurance to cover therisk of lossesto which it
may be exposed. Thisis accomplished through the Risk Management and Group Insurance Funds
(Internal Service Funds) and various outside entity insurance providers.

The Risk Management Fund manages property and general liability risk. The Fund aso finances and
accounts for other risks not covered by the Group Insurance and various outside entity insurance

providers. General liahility claims are self-insured up to the Idaho Tort Claims Act maximum of

$500,000 for each claim. Property damage claims are self-insured for up to $250,000 per claim, not to
exceed $750,000 annually. Comprehensive collision and physical damage to covered vehicles are self-
insured for replacement cost. The State purchases commercial insurance for claims not self-insured by

the above coverages and for all other identified risks sf lasluding workers’ compensation insurance.

The Group Insurance Fund is used to account for and find@chdalth, and disability insurance
programs. Long-term disability benefits within Group hagice are partially insured through others but
the majority is self-insured. The liability for self-ursince claims has been actuarially determined.
Policy claim liabilities are presented in the Group InsaeaFFund and are composed of the liability for
self-insured claims and the amounts required to funchipra payments of life and health coverage for
disabled employees. Life, short-term disability, andtheasurance programs are experience rated and
fully insured. However, when the claims exceed 100 peafehe annual premium paid to the insurer,
the State is responsible for up to an additional 14 peatghe annual premiums for health and 10
percent of the annual premiums for the life coverage. ifhaance carrier assumes the risk of loss for
claims above the contractual ceilings. The amount the Sta¢sponsible for is accounted for and
presented as reserved retained earnings in the Groupricsu-und. The State also maintains program
and premium stabilization balances in the catastropheat they exhaust reserved equity. These
amounts are included in unreserved retained earninge i@ritup Insurance Fund.

All state entities may participate in the Risk Managemedt@mup Insurance programs. Payments are
made to the Risk Management Fund based on actuarial estjritests experience, exposure, and asset
value covered. Payments made to the Group Insurance Fupasackon actuarial estimates of the
amounts needed to pay for negotiated coverage and progtaied experience. For fiscal years 1997
and 1999, claims settlements for both funds did not exiosedance coverage; however, during fiscal
year 1998, claims settlements exceeded insurance cousr&$y3,557.

The liabilities for the Risk Management and Group Insugdfunds for the State are based on the
requirements of the Governmental Accounting StandardsdBoStatement 10, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Instgdssues, which requires that a liability for
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claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statementsindicatesthat it is
probable aliability has been incurred at the date of the financia statements and the amount of the loss can
be reasonably estimated. Liabilities for Risk Management include claim adjustment costs, any anticipated
subrogation receipts, and are presented at their present value using a 4.5 percent discount interest rate.
The following table presents changes in policy claim liabilities for the fiscal years ending June 30, 1998,
and June 30, 1999:

Fiscal Beginning Changes Claims Ending
Year Balance in Estimate Payments Balance
Risk Management

1998 $11,083,133  $3,431,758  ($3,406,459) $11,108,432
1999 $11,108,432  $6,065,028  ($2,664,134) $14,509,326
Group Insurance

1998 $15,200,595  $5,339,405 $20,540,000
1999 $20,540,000  $(725,400) $19,814,600

The state records its premium liability using discounted amounts provided by actuaries. The discounted
liahilities take into account anticipated investment income.

NOTE 13. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

The State does not eliminate interfund transactions but does make eliminating entries for intrafund
operating transfers. The State has the following types of interfund transactions:

Quasi-external Transactionsare charges for services rendered by one fund to another, treated as
revenues of the recipient fund and expenditures or expenses of the disbursing fund.

Reimbursementsof expenditures or expenses made by one fund for another are recorded as
expenditures or expensesin the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures or expenses
in the reimbursement fund.

Operating (Statutory) Transfers are legally authorized cash transfers reported as operating

transfers. Transfers from the General Fund are transfers of appropriated or diverted tax revenues.
Thefollowing is aschedule of operating transfers:
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Operating Transfers

Fund Transfers In Transfers Out
General Fund $952,915,575 $1,129,981,244
Specia Revenue Funds
Health and Welfare 254,387,882 854,136
Transportation 13,251,026
Federal 119,263
Regulatory 47,111,260
Agriculture and Natural Resources 1,093,096
Miscellaneous 13,769,600 501,987
Enterprise Funds
Liquor Dispensary 8,295,000
State Lottery 20,500,000
Internal Service Funds
General Services 41,005 1,593,242
Total Operating Transfers $1,222,207,158 $1,2297,158

NOTE 14. LEASES
A. State as Lessee

The State leases office buildings, vehicles, and office/computer equipment. Although the lease terms
vary, most leases are subject to annual appropriations from the State L egislature to continue the lease
obligations. If alegidative appropriation is reasonably assured, leases are considered noncancel able for
financial reporting purposes. Any escalation clauses, sublease rentals, and contingent rents are considered
immaterial to the future minimum lease payments and current rental expenditures.

Operating Leases

Operating leases are leases for which the State will not gain title to the asset; therefore, the lease

agreements are not reflected as assets in the Sta@wdaheet. They contain various renewal options,
as well as some purchase options. Operating lease paymergs@ded as expenditures or expenses of
the related funds when paid or incurred. The total operigase expenditures for fiscal year 1999 were
$21,138,661 for the primary government, $39,272 for aomapt units, and $53,278 for colleges and
universities.

Capital Leases

Capital leases are leases the State has entered intoethatsaubstance, a purchase. At the date of
acquisition, the assets are valued on the balance shbetmtsent value of the future minimum lease
payments. Assets under capital leases originating in igansttal funds are recorded in the General
Fixed Assets Account Group and are not depreciated. Clagis® obligations for governmental funds
are reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Growgpit& lease assets and obligations for
proprietary fund types are recorded in the respectivdsfas fixed assets and long-term obligations.
Interest expense for capital leases is not capidlin either fund type.
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Future minimum |ease commitments for noncancel able operating and capital |eases as of June 30, 1999,
are asfollows:

Future Minimum Lease Commitments

Operating Leases Capital Leases
General
Colleges Long-Term Colleges
Primary ~ Component and Total Operating Debt Proprietary and Total Capital
Fiscal Year Government Units Universities Leases AccourBroup Funds Universities Leases
2000 $17,561,228 $20,335 $36,881 $17,618,444 $631,651 $549,081 $704,695 $1,885,427
2001 14,335,518 34,581 14,370,099 596,625 367,068 470,638 1,434,331
2002 11,967,515 27,786 11,995,301 440,399 358,910 468,696 1,268,005
2003 9,635,528 14,001 9,649,529 437,930 347,490 465,218 1,250,638
2004 6,687,799 14,001 6,701,800 437,930 347,490 450,867 1,236,287
Thereafter 13,596,898 140,010 13,736,908 7,562,881 4,720,072 5,840,111 18,123,064
Total Payments $73,784,486 $20,335  $267,260 $74,082,0 10,107,416 6,690,111 8,400,225 25,197,752
Less: Imputed Interest 6,413,838 4,310,062 3,800,396 14,524,296
Total Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments $3,86%678 $2,380,049 $4,599,829 $10,673,456

The schedule below is an analysis of assets under capital leases as of June 30, 1999:

General Colleges Fixed Assets
Fixed Asset Proprietary and Under Capital
Account Group Funds Universities Leases
Land $321,482 $321,482
Building 3,000,111 $2,500,000 $6,045,000 11,545,111
Machinery and Equipment 844,536 1,032,416 1,436,150 3,313,102
Improvements Other Than Buildings 608,911 608,911
Total Capital Leases $4,775,040 $3,532,416 $7,480,15 $15,788,606

B. State as Lessor
Non-state parties rent land and buildings from the State under operating leases from the Departments of

Health and Welfare, Lands, Parks and Recreation, the Historical Society, and the Lava Hot Springs
Foundation. At June 30, 1999, the State |eased the following:
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Fair Market Value

Asset Class at Date of Acquisition

Land $2,016,463

Buildings 345,181
Total $2,361,644

The Department of Lands participatesin a Zero Service Lease. A Zero Service Lease is an operating

lease, which the lessee pays the State a market rent for use of the real property with no other services
provided by the State. The lessee bears the responsibility for actual operating costs associated with the
services necessary to operate the property, with the exception of property damage and casualty insurance
which the State maintains as part of the State’s risk ggamant program. The actual cost of operating
the property does not affect the market rent under the. |&§ds=market rent paid by the lessee is
established by an independent appraisal.

The following is a schedule of minimum future rentals foerating leases as of June 30, 1999:

Year Ending June 30

2000 $4,088,067
2001 4,027,286
2002 4,065,757
2003 4,111,870
2004 4,120,421
Thereafter 6,740,141
Total minimum future rentals $27,153,542

Minimum future rentals do not include contingent rentalsictv may be received as stipulated in the
lease contracts. Contingent rentals amounted to $115588al year 1999.

NOTE 15. BONDS, NOTES, AND CONTRACTS PAYABLE

A. Primary Government and Blended Component Unit

The Idaho State Building Authority, a blended component unit reported as a special revande f

issues notes and bonds to finance construction orsatiguiof facilities for lease to the State subject to
prior legislative approval. Bonds payable, in thousaadsas follows:
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Maturity Interest Principal at

Bond Description Dates Rates June 30, 1999 Interest Tadta
1992 Series A Refunding Revenue Bonds 1993102002  4.95% to 5.40% $3,625 $349 $3,974
1992 Series B Refunding Revenue Bonds 1993102006  4.95% to 5.75% 2,330 526 2,856
1992 Series C Refunding Revenue Bonds 1993102008  0.00% to 5.70% 21,705 4,340 26,045
1992 Series D Revenue Bonds 1993102003  5.10% to 5.60% 675 87 762
1992 Series E Revenue Bonds 1993102003  5.20% to 5.60% 1,900 245 2,145
1994 Series Revenue Bonds 1995102008  5.00% to 5.90% 2,445 719 3,164
1995 Series Refunding Revenue Bonds 1996t0 2001  4.20% to 4.40% 3,070 153 3,223
1998 Series A Revenue Bonds 1999102025  3.90% to 5.05% 58,985 46,536 105,521
1998 Series B Refunding Revenue Bonds  1999t0 2012  3.70% to 4.75% 1,960 817 2,777
1998 Series C Refunding Revenue Bonds  1999t0 2012  3.70% to 4.75% 5,435 2,268 7,703

Total Bonds Payable $102,130 $56,040  $158,170
Sinking fund requirements, in thousands, for the fiscal years subsequent to June 30,1999 are as follows:
Bond Description 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 Thereafter Total
1992 Series A Refunding Revenue Bonds $993 $993 $995 $993 $3,974
1992 Series B Refunding Revenue Bonds 358 355 357 357 $361 $1,068 2,856
1992 Series C Refunding Revenue Bonds 2,437 2,430 2,467 2,468 2,471 13,772 26,045
1992 Series D Revenue Bonds 152 155 153 150 152 762
1992 Series E Revenue Bonds 429 430 431 429 426 2,145
1994 Series Revenue Bonds 317 317 317 315 318 1,580 3,164
1995 Series Refunding Revenue Bonds 1,211 1,203 809 3,223
1998 Series A Revenue Bonds 2,785 3,965 3,965 3,967 3,967 86,872 105,521
1998 Series B Refunding Revenue Bonds 102 101 100 100 104 2,270 2,777
1998 Series C Refunding Revenue Bonds 280 279 277 280 279 6,308 7,703

Total Bonds Payable $9,064 $10,228 $9,871 $9,0569 $8,07$111,870  $158,170

All bonds referred to above are direct obligations of the Authority payable from and secured by a pledge

of lease revenues and other funds and reserves held under the bond resolutions. The Authority has surety
bonds in amounts up to the reserve requirements for all outstanding bonds. No amounts were outstanding
at June 30, 1999, under these surety bonds.

The Authority has defeased several bonds by placing governmental securities into irrevocable trusts that
are sufficient to provide for al future debt service payments on these bonds. Consequently, the related

liability was appropriately removed from the financial statementsin the year of defeasance. The
remaining outstanding debt payable by the trust as of June 30, 1999, for each bond issue follows:

State of Idaho

65

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



State of Idaho

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Bond Issue Amount Defeased Remaining Liability
1978 Series A $15,284,300 $8,555,000
1992 SeriesD 1,820,000 1,820,000
1992 SeriesE 5,090,000 5,090,000

The advance refunding of the 1992 Series D and Series E bonds allowed the Authority to reduce its
aggregate debt service payments by approximately $128,000 and $279,000 over the remaining term of the
bond. The refunding on the 1992 Series D and Series E bonds also resulted in an economic gain of
approximately $89,000 and $402,000. The economic gain is defined as the difference between the
present values of the old and new debt service payments.

The Idaho Water Resource Boardssued bonds, which are reported in a specia revenue fund, in fiscal
year 1999. The Board is authorized to issue and sell revenue bonds under provisionsin Idaho Code,
Sections 42-1739 through 42-1749. The bonds were issued for the Dworshak Hydroelectric Project and
the revenues that the board shall derive from this project are pledged in order to pay its costs of planning,
financing, acquisition, construction, operation, and maintenance of the water project. These bonds are not
considered general obligations of the State. Bonds payable are:

Maturity Interest Balance
Bond Description Date Rate June 30, 1999

Water Resource Development
Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 2001t0 2019 6.50% to 7.75% $5,000,000

Principal maturities on bonds payable, for future years ending June 30 are as follows:

Years Principal Payable
2001 $10,000
2002 25,000
2003 40,000
2004 60,000
2005 80,000

Thereafter 4,785,000
Total $5,000,00

Various Governmental fundshave contract retentions in the amount of $2,540,671. The funds will be
released to the contractors once the construction projects are completed to a certain stage of satisfaction.

The State’s colleges and universitigsave entered into a number of long-term debt obligations for the

purpose of funding various projects. The schools have the following debt, in thousands, secured by land,
equipment, and student fees:
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Maturity Interest Balance at

Bonds Payable Dates Rates June 30, 1999
SeriesA 1967 to 2004 3.63% $265
Series 1992 1993 to 2014 4.90% to 6.40% 8,000
Series 1993 1994 to 2017 4.40% to 5.50% 10,840
Series 1994 1995 to 2019 4.50% to 6.50% 15,160
Series 1995 1996 to 2020 4.65% to 5.80% 5,825
Series 1996 1997 to 2013 4.10% to 5.85% 26,935
Series 1997 1998 to 2022 4.10% to 6.85% 33,055
Series 1998 1999 to 2023 3.65% t0 5.20% 50,450
Series 1999 2000 to 2025 3.60% to 6.50% 32,215

Total Bonds Payable $182,745
Notes Payable
Secured by Future Revenues 7/20/1999 8.20% $5
Secured by Future Revenues 1994 to 2004 5.43% 330
Secured by Future Revenues 1999 to 2009 4.99% 1,525
Unsecured 1987 to 2010 3.00% 115
Unsecured 1996 to 2016 5.14% 4,689
Other notes payable through the year 2017 with interest

rates ranging from 5% to 10% 2,044
Total Notes Payable 8,708

Total Bonds and Notes Payable without Premium $191,453
Premium on Bonds 611

Grand Total Bonds and Notes Payable $192,064

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures.

Principal maturities on notes and bonds payable, in thousands, for future years ending June 30 are as
follows:

Years Principal Payable
2000 $6,262
2001 6,934
2002 7,319
2003 7,760
2004 7,765

Thereafter 155,413
Total $191,453

At June 30, 1999, debt in the amount of $16,870,281 for the University of Idaho is considered
extinguished through refunding of prior issues by a portion of current issues. Sufficient proceeds were
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invested in government securities and placed in escrow to assure timely payments of the maturities of
those prior issues. Neither the debt nor the escrowed assets are reflected in the financial statements.

The University of Idaho has an unsecured revolving line-of -credit with a bank for the purchase of real
property, equipment, and other capital expenditures. The University may borrow at a variable or fixed
rate based on the five-year U.S. Government Treasury Note Index less 1.35 percent. The minimum
interest rate is 5.0 percent, and interest is due semi-annually on any outstanding balance. The maximum
availablelineis $1,500,000 with $858,799 in outstanding borrowings at June 30, 1999.

University of Idaho and Boise State University have bonds payable premiums in the amount of $287,613
and $323,385, respectively.

On June 29, 1999, Boise State University issued $4,480,000 in tax-exempt general obligation bonds with
an average interest rate of approximately 4.8 percent. The purpose of the bond issuance was to advance
refund the outstanding 1994 Series Student Fee Revenue Bonds. As aresult of the issuance,
approximately $4,600,000 (after payment of $136,592 in underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance
costs) were used to purchase U.S. Treasury securities (State and Local Government Series). These
securities were deposited in an irrevocabl e trust with an escrow agent to provide for future debt service
payments on $4,480,000 principal of the 1994 Series bonds. As aresult, these amounts are considered to
be defeased and the liability had been removed from the bonds payable of the University.

Boise State University advance refunded the 1994 Series bonds to decreaseitstotal debt service payments
over the next 18 years by approximately $1,100,000 to obtain an economic gain (the difference between
the present values of the debt service payments on the old debt and the debt service payments on the new
debt) of approximately $256,000.

At June 30, 1999, debt in the amount of $16,615,000 (including amounts discussed above) for Boise State
University is considered extinguished through refunding of prior issues by a portion of current issues.
Sufficient proceeds were invested in government securities and placed in escrow to assure timely
payments of the maturities of these prior issues. Neither the debt nor the escrowed assets are reflected in
the financial statements.

The State Lottery, reported as an enterprise fund, has an agreement with GTECH Corporation (GTECH)
to install and operate the state lottery system. The agreement, which was amended on February 19, 1999,
expires February 18, 2003, and is renewable for additional periods. The agreement provides for the
Lottery to purchase certain computer hardware and a software license from GTECH and for GTECH to
provide ongoing servicesto the Lottery.

In connection with the computer hardware purchase, the agreement requires that, commencing July 1,
1999, the Lottery pay GTECH atotal of $888,000, together with interest thereon at the rate of 7.95 percent
per year, payable in monthly installments for a period of three years. In connection with the software
license purchase, the agreement requires that, commencing February 19,1999, the Lottery pay GTECH a
total of $2,080,000 payable in weekly installments of $10,000 for a period of four years. These payments
have been discounted at 7.95 percent. The unamortized discount is $252,155 at June 30, 1999.

The remaining payments required to GTECH under the agreement to purchase hardware and the software
license are asfollows:
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Fiscal Year Ending June 30,

2000 $700,559

2001 734,008

2002 770,210

2003 331,068

2,535,845

Less current portion (700,559)
Total $1,835,286

See Note 22 for further information on the State Lottemgi®ement with GTECH for facilities
management services

B. Discretely Presented Component Unit

Idaho Housing and Finance Association (IHFA) bonds weteis$o provide sources of capital for
housing persons of low or moderate incomes. The bond®aneed by mortgages and repayments are

made from the mortgage proceeds.

Bonds payable, in thousands, are as follows:

Delivery Due Average Bond
Bond Types Dates Dates Yield Amount
Single Family Mortgage Purchase Bonds 3/78t03/83 1980102015 5.80% to 9.56% $7,925 *
Single Family Mortgage Bonds 4/88t06/99 1990t02030 4.65%t0 8.34% 1,351,501 *
FHA Insured Housing Revenue Bonds 12/86t012/98 1993t02039  5.19% to 8.46% 18,143
Insured Section 8 Assisted Housing Bonds 7/77t06/79 1980t02021  5.75% to 6.80% 18,565 *
Multifamily Housing/Refunding Bonds 5/94 1995t02013 6.57%108.17% 37,855
General Obligation Bonds 3/94 2004 5.00% 3,620
Interest Payable 40,699
Total $1,478,308

*The Idaho Legislature has authorized a continuing apiatapr from the Idaho state sales tax account

to the extent necessary to restore an annual deficierthg @apital Reserve Funds. Of the
$1,351,501,000 in Single Family Mortgage Bonds showherabove table, $28,320,000 is subject to an
appropriation of the state sales tax account to restoaarmmal deficiency in the capital reserve funds
associated with these bonds. The Capital Reserve Fumdsstablished out of the proceeds of the
previously identified bonds and are security for thoselbormhe bonds currently backed by the capital
reserve fund totaled $54,810,000. The total principalarnof the bonds outstanding that are secured by
a capital reserve fund and are entitled to a continuipgogpiation from the state sales tax account shall
not exceed $89,000,000. However, the amount will neveeedxte current outstanding bond total of
$54,810,000.

Following is a schedule of IHFA principal debt maturitiesthousands, (not including interest payable)
for the fiscal years subsequent to June 30, 1999:
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Bonds 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 Thereafter Total

Single Family Mortgage Purchase Bonds $950 $985 $1,030 $1,045 $615 $3,300 $7,925
Single Family Mortgage Bonds 99,799 33,697 35,675 37,335 39,989 1,105,006 1,351,501
FHA Insured Housing Revenue Bonds 177 209 207 210 228 17,112 18,143
Insured Section 8 Assisted Housing Bonds 610 645 685 720 765 15,140 18,565
Multifamily Housing/Refunding Bonds 765 835 910 1,000 1,090 33,255 37,855
General Obligation Bonds 3,620 3,620

Total $102,301 $36,371  $38,507 $40,310  $42,687 $1,8%,4 $1,437,609

Each bond issue is secured by the pledge of repayments of mortgage |oans purchased with the bond
proceeds and of dl revenue earned relating to those bonds.

Serial bonds and term bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the Association and subject to the
terms of the respective bond indenture or bond resolution, in whole or in part, on various dates at
prescribed redemption prices ranging from 100 to 103 percent. The bonds are also subject to special
redemption from (1) unexpended proceeds of the bonds not committed to purchase mortgage loans, (2)
forfeited commitment fees, and (3) early recoveries of principal and pledged receipts at any time. The
par value of the Single Family Mortgage Bonds redeemed for the year ended June 30, 1999, was
$111,625,000.

Costs of issuing bonds are capitalized in the respective bond funds and amortized over the term of the
bonds. During the year ended June 30, 1999, $3,287,000 of financing costs were capitalized. The
Association had special bond redemptions on January 1, 1999, and July 1, 1998. The deferred bond
financing costs related to these specia redemptions were written off and are shown separately in the
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings/Fund Balances as Other
Non-operating Expenses.

IHFA also holds commercial paper in the amount of $15,000,000. This provides fundsto purchase single
family mortgage loans on an interim basis as well as financing for multifamily construction loans.
Maturities range from 15 to 112 days and one to ten days and have aweighted average interest rate of
5.055 and 5.585 percent, respectively.

Conduit debt obligations are certain limited obligation debt instruments issued for the express purpose of
providing capital financing for a specific third partytlis not a part of the issuer’s financial reporting
entity. From time to time the Association has issued btingeovide financial assistance to entities for
the construction of facilities deemed to be in the pubtierest. The bonds are secured by the property
financed and are payable solely from payments receiveldeounderlying investments. Upon repayment
of the bonds, ownership of the constructed facilitiessfieas to the entity served by the bond issuance.
The Association is not obligated in any manner for repaymithese bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are
not reported as liabilities in the accompanying finahsiatements.

As of June 30, 1999, there were four series of bondsandisg that meet the description of conduit debt
obligations. They had an aggregate principal amountabayd $18,640,000.
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NOTE 16. GRAND PRIZES PAYABLE

The State Lottery participatesin a Multi-State Lottery Association (MUSL). Concurrent with the grand
prize awards, MUSL purchased annuities to settle each of the grand prize obligations. The annuities were
purchased at a discount from the total value of future payments. The discount is amortized over the 19-
year life of the underlying annuity.

In each instance, the winner is paid one-twentieth of the prize amount in the first year and receives 19
equal annual installments comprising the balance.

The following sets forth the remaining payments required under the grand prize obligations:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Amount
2000 $9,370,000
2001 9,370,000
2002 9,370,000
2003 9,370,000
2004 9,370,000
2005 and thereafter 92,301,000
139,151,000
Amount Representing Interest (51,695,476)
Total $87,455,524

NOTE 17. CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

The changesin the General Long-Term Debt Account Group for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, are
summarized as follows:

Balances at

July 1, 1998 Balances at

(as adjusted) Increases Decreases June 30, 1999
Compensated Absences $31,105,318 $3,974,078 $35,079,396
Capital Leases 4,106,389 18,949 $431,760 3,693,578
Notes and Bonds 106,510,000 5,000,000 4,380,000 107,130,000
Contracts Payable 1,776,578 800,294 36,201 2,540,671

Totals $143,498,285 $9,793,32 $4,847,961 $148,443,645

NOTE 18. FUND EQUITY

A. Contributed Capital

During fiscal year 1999, contributed capital changed by the following amount:
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Internal Service

Contributed Capital, July 1, 1998 $2,976,807
Additions:
Donated Fixed Assets 5,040
Contributed Capital, June 30, 1999 $2,981,847

B. Retained Earnings and Fund Balances

Reservations of fund equity represent amounts that are legally segregated and that cannot be
appropriated in subsequent years. Designations of unreserved fund equity reflect tentative
management plans or intent for future use of available financial resources.

Retained Earnings
At June 30, 1999, the following amounts of Retained Earnings were reserved.

Reservations of Retained Earnings

Internal Service Component Units
Retained Earnings Reserved for:
Contract Requirements $10,464,768
Bond Indentures $52,853,000

The following subsections contain further descriptive information regarding the above reserved
components of Retained Earnings.

Reserved for Contract Requirements — an account used to segregate a portion of fund equity for
the contractually required life and health insurancee@ges.

Reserved for Bond Indentures — an account used to segaggaitton of fund equity in the Idaho
Housing and Finance Association for amounts restricgeabbd indentures.

In addition to the above specific reservations, mamege: intends to use $7,423,810 reserved
retained earnings in the Group Insurance Fund (inteemaice fund) as a buffer to protect the
insured against significant increases in insuranceipramates. The Board of Idaho Housing
and Finance Association (discretely presented componéhhas resolved to allocate
$60,276,501 of the unreserved retained earnings tmalterserve accounts in order to sustain
expected debt issuance patterns and to maintain bongsraticurrent or higher levels.
Management also intends to use $11,219,000 of the UneesRetained Earnings for
programmatic uses in connection with the Affordable HugiSirust Investment Fund.

Fund Balances
At June 30, 1999, the following amounts of fund balanceweserved or designated:
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Reservations and Designations of Fund Balances

Colleges
Special Trust and and
General Revenue Agency Universities Totals
Fund Balances Reserved for:
Bond Indentures $13,505,334 $13,505,334
Capital Outlay $10,887,152 10,887,152
Debt Service 2,587,970 2,587,970
Encumbrances $31,160,138 52,772,462 83,932,600
Employees Pension Benefits $6,464,750,451 6,464,750,451
Loans and Notes 75,393 52,345,034 2,596,400 23,727,837 78,744,664
Endowment Principal 766,153,348 80,650,922 846,804,270
External Investment Fund Participants 698,813,231 698,813,231
Total Reserved Fund Balances $31,235,531 $BR,618 $7,932,313,430 $117,884,093 $8,200,025,672
Unreserved Fund Balances
Designated for:
Contingencies $1,483,301 $1,483,301
Plant Funds $21,328,792 21,328,792
Other Specified Purposes 12,407,742 12,407,742
Total Unreserved, Designated Fund Balances 883,301 $33,736,534 $35,219,835
Changes in Reservations in Fund Balances
Colleges
Special Trustand and
General Revenue Agency Universities Totals
Reserved Fund Balances - Beginning $18,875,696 $195,537,432 $7,176,744,826 $115,551,662 $7,506,709,616
Increase (Decrease) in
Reserved Fund Balances 12,359,835 (76,944,814) 755,568,604 2,332,431 693,316,056
Reserved Fund Balances - Ending $31,235,531 $118,5986 $7,932,313,430 $117,884,093 $8,200,025,672

The following subsections contain further descriptive information regarding the above reserved

and designated components of fund balance.

Reserved for Bond Indentures — an account used to segregate a portion of fund balance fo
College and University Funds, which relates to bond indeas.

Reserved for Capital Outlay — an account used to segregatéan f fund balance for the

blended component unit, Idaho State Building Authorityictwhelates to capital outlay.

Reserved for Debt Service — an account used to segregattizoa pf fund balance for the
blended component unit, Idaho State Building Authorityictvinelates to debt service.
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Reserved for Encumbrances — an account used to segregate a portion of fund bdance
commitments related to unperformed contracts.

Reserved for Employees’ Pension Benefits — an accountaisegtegate a portion of fund
balance for the specific future use of the retirensgatems’ members.

Reserved for Loans and Notes — an account used to segagg@aittion of fund balance to reflect
the amounts bound by contractual obligations and nokadl&ifor current appropriations.

Reserved for Endowment Principal — an account used tegaggra portion of fund balance to
indicate the principal amount of nonexpendable trusd$ithat is legally restricted for a specific
future purpose.

Reserved for External Investment Fund Participants —@vuat used to segregate a portion of
fund balance for the investments related to exteradicipants in the Joint Exercise of Powers
Trust Fund.

Designated for Contingencies — the amount of the unreséume balance the management of
the Wheat Commission and the Idaho State Bar intensketdon contingencies.

Designated for Plant Funds — the amount of the unresermddfalance in the College and
University Funds management intends to use to financactigisition, construction,
improvement, renewal, or replacement of physical pta@serand to pay debt service and retire
indebtedness on institutional properties.

Designated for Other Specified Purposes — the amouheafrtreserved fund balance in the
College and University Funds management intends to usaffi@ous operating purposes specific
to individual higher education institutions.

NOTE 19. SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The following enterprise funds are intended to be selpstjmg through sales and user fees charged for
various services to the general public, state, and gthernmental entities:

Correctional Industries - provides employment for the inmates of the Department oEClion
by producing and selling a wide range of products to whtdesand state agencies.

Liquor Dispensary - controls the sale and distribution of liquor productthe State.

State Lottery - accounts for the operation of a state lottery to gemeeaenues for state
buildings and public schools.

Segment information for these enterprise fundsiisrearized below:
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Enterprise Funds Segment Information

Correctional Liquor State
Industries Dispensary Lottery Total

Operating Revenues $6,950,854  $61,170,472  $91,007,996  $159,129,322
Depreciation 182,806 131,565 761,177 1,075,548
Operating Income 67,937 8,369,854 21,449,136 29,886,927
Operating Transfers Out (8,295,000)  (20,500,000) (28,795,000)
Net Income 180,189 120,654 949,136 1,249,979
Property, Plant, and Equipment:

Increase 118,062 202,457 5,185,040 5,505,559

Decrease (235,511) (138,136) (761,177) (1,134,824)

Net Increase (Decrease) (117,449) 64,321 4,423,863 4,370,735
Net Working Capital 2,405,710 (628,936) 12,848,655 14,625,429
Total Assets 5,854,468 17,590,721 114,823,457 138,268,646
Bonds and Other Long-Term Liabilities 2,154,040 89,290,810 91,444,850
Total Equity 5,132,869 6,229,098 19,836,854 31,198,821

NOTE 20. LITIGATION

InISEEOQ, et al. v. Evans, et ., the plaintiffs allege that the current public school system does not

provide a “thorough” education as required by the Idahcsttation. Plaintiffs allege that

approximately $700 million to $1 billion in constructierpenditures will be needed to bring public
schools up to standards. The case has been dismissedirtmes by the district court and appealed to the
Supreme Court. The Supreme Court has remanded the clge bae district court, each time providing
additional directions.

The State vigorously contests both the allegation thabldgublic school system is not thorough and

the alleged costs asserted by the plaintiffs. Howevthreiplaintiffs were ultimately successful in
obtaining a declaratory judgment requiring substantipérditures, the legislature would need to address
the declaratory judgment by either raising revenuesatiomating expenditures.

The State is also a defendant in numerous legal proggeplartaining to matters incidental to the
performance of routine governmental operations. Sughtiibn includes, but is not limited to, claims
asserted against the State arising from alleged toegeallbreaches of contracts, condemnation
proceedings, and other alleged violations of state eaetél laws. It is not possible, at the present time,
to estimate the ultimate outcome or liability, if anf/ttee State in respect to the various proceedings;
however, it is believed that any ultimate liability rdégug from these suits will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial condition of the State.

In American Trucking Assn., et al. v. Idaho Transportafiepartment, et al., the State is involved in a
dispute over previously collected taxes in which tlenpiff claims Idaho’s motor carrier use fee system
is discriminatory. The State vigorously contests therchid in the opinion of the Office of the Attorney
General, it is unlikely that the State would be requiceafund an estimated $120,000,000 of prior tax
payments claimed.
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Four separate companies have filed suit against the Idaho Potato Commission claiming damages under
the anti-trust provisions of the United State Code in the amounts of $10,000,000 to $90,000,000 each.
Thecaseisintheinitia stages of procedural motions to determine whether the Commission is entitled to
assert state sovereignty or state action immunity against the adverse parties. Thetrial court ruled that the
Idaho Potato Commission was not entitled to the sovereign immunity defense and that the state action
immunity defense could not be decided until discovery was completed. These determinations are being
appealed to the Second Circuit Court of Appeals, which will hear the case after January 24, 2000. The
Commission is vigorously defending these claims and is being assisted in its defense by the Department
of Administration, Division of Risk Management. The Commission believesthere is no basisfor the
claim for damages.

NOTE 21. CONTINGENCIES

A contingent liability exists for the Department of Insurance, regarding Investment Premium Tax Credits,
Premium Tax Refunds, and Retaliatory Taxes on Foreign Insurers. This contingent liability has not
changed status (with the exception of the amount of the potential liability) from the prior year. Last
year’s estimated range of $15,490,000 to $27,117,000haaged to $17,204,000 to $30,587,000.

Idaho Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association hbassessed or accrued for all potential
shortfall for several insolvent insurers. The totdlility relating to these insolvencies is not yet
determined. However, management’s best estimate of futweeorded shortfall at this time is
$6,200,000 for Executive Life and $140,000 for Kentuckypital. Assessments for the shortfall will be
made in future periods as amounts become due, if necessary.

Idaho Petroleum Clean Water Trust Fund has claim liads|itivhich include actuarial estimates for both
reported claims and claims incurred but not reported. idrghaim liabilities of $4,251,760 and loss
adjustment expenses of $1,703,288 have been estimatstilgam a consulting actuary’s study. The
unpaid loss adjustment expense is determined by estinfatimg expenses to be incurred in settlement
of claims.

Revenue from federal grants includes amounts for theeegof overhead and other costs. The State
may be required to make refunds of federal reimbursenasragesult of audits. The opinion of the State
is that these refunds, if any, will not have a significdietot on the financial position of the State.

NOTE 22. COMMITMENTS

The Department of Administration estimates there will fygreximately $30,591,981 of additional costs
to complete state buildings and other assets curremtlgriconstruction. The Departments of Parks and
Recreation, Transportation, and Water Resources haerdivision of Military have a total of
$150,406,216n outstanding commitments for construction projects omdg at year-end, of which
$138,389,890 is for infrastructure.

The Department of Correction has entered into a threeepediract with Correctional Corporation of

America to operate a 1,200-bed prison that is under cmtisin. The contract is estimated to go into
effect July 2000. Cost per inmate is $36.25 per day, withtential cost for a full year at full occupancy
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of $15,877,500. Total potential cost for the three-year term of the contract is $47,632,500. The
Department of Correction also renewed a contract for one year on October 1, 1999, with Correctional
Medical Servicesfor $7,496,616.

The Idaho State Building Authority signed a contract for $49,986,944 with Corrections Corporation of
Americafor the development and construction of anew prison facility. Of this amount, $42,754,311 has
been expended as of June 30, 1999. The Authority also signed a $1,168,000 contract with CRSS
Constructors, Inc., for project management services. Of this amount, $734,656 has been expended as of
June 30, 1999.

The Department of Health and Welfare administers the State Revolving Fund (SRF). Thisfund provides
afinancing source for the construction of publicly owned water pollution control facilities. As of June
30, 1999, the Clean Water SRF had loan commitments of $18,227,419 that are funded with approximately
83 percent federal funds and 17 percent state matching dollars. The Drinking Water SRF had $4,881,222
of loan commitments that are funded with approximately 80 percent federal funds and 20 percent state
matching dollars.

On June 30, 1999, the Commissioners of the State L ottery approved atotal transfer of $20,600,000 to the
School District Building Fund and the State Permanent Building Fund. The transfers were made in July
and August, 1999.

The Dairy Products Commission has entered into various agreements that commit it to $461,750 in future
advertising, promotion, and research services. In addition, the Commission annually commits to
participate in anational advertising pool administered by Dairy Management, Inc. The Commission has
specified that its 1999 advertising pool commitment will not exceed $3,163,885.

The accrua basis of accounting provides that expenditures include only amounts associated with goods
and services received and liabilities include only the unpaid amounts associated with such expenditures.
Accordingly, approximately $2.68 million of outstanding purchase orders and purchase commitments are
encumbered by PERSI but not reported in the genera purpose financial statements.

The State Lottery has contracted with GTECH, Inc., to install and operate the on-line lottery system. The
contract, which was amended on February 19, 1999, expires February 18, 2003. In addition to
agreements related to hardware and software purchases, which are discussed in Note 15, the State L ottery
agreed to pay GTECH, Inc. 2.99 percent of gross, weekly on-line ticket sales plus $16,000 per week and
$75 per instant ticket vending machine placed in service per month for ongoing management services.
The State Lottery paid $2,487,342 to GTECH, Inc. for the year ended June 30, 1999.

NOTE 23. ADJUSTED BEGINNING BALANCES
For the fiscal year 1999, additional information became available that required the restatement of fund

equity amounts. The following is asummary of prior period adjustments, which were reported in the
accompanying financial statements for the year ended June 30, 1999:
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Adjusted Beginning Balances

Special
General Revenue Enterprise

General Long-
Internal Nonexpendable  Investment  General Fixed Term Debt
Service Trust Fund Trust Fund Assets Account Group

A $262,264,002 $414,482,771  $29,863,817

B 6,809,595 3,420,081 85,025

$29,151,518 $725,519,669  $572,932,787 $676,404,473 $140,983,226

550,984 2,346,176 (6,007,925) 3,083,907 2,515,059

C $269,073,597 $417,902,852  $29,948,842

$29,702,502 $727,865,845  $566,924,862  $679,488,380 $143,498,285

A. Beginning Balances, as previously reported.
B. Accounting corrections related to prior years.
C. Beginning Balances as adjusted.

NOTE 24. SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED

COMPONENT UNITS

The State has three proprietary-type component units. Component units are organizations that are legally
separate, but the State is ultimately financially accountable, or the nature and significance of their
relationship with the State are such that exclusionldvoause the State’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The component units are reportedeparate column to emphasize that they
are legally separate from the State and governed by sepaerds or commissions. The three
component units are described in the following paragraph

The Idaho Housing and Finance Associatidrhe Idaho Housing and Finance Association was
created by the Idaho Legislature in Idaho Code, TitleOsiapter 62, for the purpose of building
and rehabilitating residential housing for persons of lmwoine. The Governor appoints the
Board to fixed overlapping four-year terms. A financiatdfd/burden relationship exists
between the State and the Association. The Associatemitied to appropriation from the state
sales tax account to back certain capital reserve fund®hds outstanding. After January 1,
1996, the Association was precluded from issuing debtdoblok an appropriation from the state
sales tax account. As of June 30, 1999, the outstandimg lentitled to a continuing
appropriation from the state sales tax accountettd54,810,000. The Association is presented
discretely as an enterprise fund. Their audit replated August 27, 1999, was issued under
separate cover for the year ended June 30, 1999.

Idaho Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Associatidhe Idaho Life and Health Insurance
Guaranty Association is a nonprofit organization aritieal by the Idaho Life and Health
Insurance Guaranty Association Act of 1977, Idaho Cddke 41, Chapter 43. The Act was

passed to provide a mechanism for the payment of coveximalsalinder certain insurance
policies where the insurer becomes insolvent. The Aatespto direct and supplemental life and
disability policies and annuity contracts. All insuranompanies, which sell the type of
insurance covered under the Act, are required to be merabtire Association as a condition of
their authority to transact insurance business in Iddtme Board members are selected by
member insurers; however, the director of Insurance hagester and may dismiss

management at will. Insurers may offset assessments tiffgingpremium taxes to the extent of
twenty percent of the amount of such assessment for e#tth ftfe calendar years following the

State of Idaho 78 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



State of Idaho

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

year in which the assessment was paid. An allowable offset, or portion thereof, not used in any
calendar year cannot be carried over or back to any other year. Thisimposes adirect financial
burden on the State. The Association is presented discretely as an enterprise fund. Their audit
report, dated March 23, 1999, was issued under separate cover for the year ended December 31,
1998.

Petroleum Clean Water Trust Funttaho Code, Title 41, Chapter 49, created the Petroleum
Clean Water Trust Fund to provide pollution liability insurance to eligible owners and operators
of petroleum storage tanks. The Fund is subject to the direction and supervision of the manager of
the State Insurance Fund. The State approves and may modify the Fund's annual budget and
thereby has the ability to impose its will on the Fund. The Fund is presented discretely as an
enterprise fund. Their audit report, dated August 4, 1999, was issued under separate cover for the
year ended December 31, 1998.

The following component unit financia statements include condensed information for the above
component units:
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Balance Sheet
Discretely Presented Component Units - Proprietaryrunds
June 30, 1999
Idaho Housing Idaho Life and Petroleum
and Finance Health Insurance Clean Water
Association Guaranty Association  Trust Fund Total

Assets

Cash Equity with Treasurer $5,075,227 $5,075,227

Cash and Cash Equivaents $29,375,000 $2,577,203 31,952,203

Investments 382,787,000 7,544,067 37,837,125 428,168,192

Deferred Bond Financing Costs 18,037,000 18,037,000

Notes and Mortgages Receivable, Net 1,207,778,000 1,207,778,000

Other Assets 2,000,000 69,341 419,389 2,488,730

Fixed Assets - Net 9,025,000 496 32,294 9,057,790
Total Assets $1,649,002,000 $10,191,107 $43,364,035 701,557,142
Liabilities and Fund Equity
Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $5,248,000 $398,334 $1,836,084 $7,482,418

Deposits 14,063,000 14,063,000

Deferred Revenue 4,266 4,266

Notes, Bonds, and Contract Payable 1,493,308,000 1,493,308,000

Policy Claim Liabilities 225,132 4,251,760 4,476,892
Total Liabilities 1,512,619,000 627,732 6,087,844 1,519,334,576
Fund Equity
Retained Earnings

Reserved 52,853,000 52,853,000

Unreserved 83,530,000 9,563,375 37,276,191 130,369,566
Total Fund Equity 136,383,000 9,563,375 37,276,191 183,222,566
Total Liabilities and Fund Equity $1,649,002,000 $1091,107 $43,364,035 $1,702,557,142
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes inde¢d Earnings
Discretely Presented Component Units - Proprietaryrunds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Idaho Housing Idaho Life and Petroleum
and Finance Health Insurance Clean Water
Association ~ Guaranty Association  Trust Fund Total

Operating Revenues

Licenses, Permits, and Fees $6,804,000 $1,873,601 $8,677,601

Sales of Services, Goods, and Property $39,401 39,401

Interest and Other Investment Income 78,438,000 78,438,000

Miscellaneous Income 612,000 1,470,379 92,096 2,174,475
Total Operating Revenues 85,854,000 1,509,780 1,965,697 89,329,477
Operating Expenses

Personnel Costs 4,202,000 78,972 4,280,972

Services 3,006,000 60,367 1,969,312 5,035,679

Insurance, Utilities, and Rent 11,720 11,720

Miscellaneous 716,000 146,755 862,755

Depreciation 746,000 574 3,482 750,056

Awards and Claims 299,572 1,981,088 2,280,660
Total Operating Expenses 8,670,000 597,960 3,953,882 13,221,842
Operating Income (Loss) 77,184,000 911,820 (1,988,185) 76,107,635
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest Income 637,206 637,206

Investment Income 16,828,000 2,709,072 19,537,072

Net Inc (Dec) in Fair Value of Investments (5,909,000) (42,654) (213,853) (6,165,507)

Interest Expense (82,370,000) (82,370,000)

Other (1,622,000) (1,622,000)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (73,073,000) 594,552 2,495,219 (69,983,229)
Net Income (Loss) 4,111,000 1,506,372 507,034 6,124,406
Beginning Retained Earnings, as Adjusted 132,272,000 8,057,003 36,769,157 177,098,160
Ending Retained Earnings $136,383,000 $9,563,375 $362191 $183,222,566

NOTE 25. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to June 30, 1999, the Idaho Housing and Finance Association issued Single Family Mortgage
Bonds 1999 Series E and Single Family Mortgage Bonds 1999 Series F, each in the amount of
$30,000,000. The Association also issued Multifamily Housing Bonds 1999 Series A and B in the

amount of $7,000,000 and Multifamily Housing Bonds Series 1999 in the amount of $4,700,000. Special
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redemptions on Single Family Mortgage Bonds were made on July 1, 1999, with a par value of
$71,945,000. Write-offsrelated to special bond redemption for July 1, 1999, totaled $1,224,000.

Subsequent to June 30, 1999, the State expects to receive approximately $32 million in fiscal year 2000

from the tobacco settlement. The first payment, in the amount of $8,969,075 was received on December

14, 1999. The payments are to be received into perpetuity (dependent upon the health of the tobacco
industry and the success of the state’s smoking cessforts), with the State to receive approximately
$25-$30 million per year in the first 25 years of paymeneipts. There will be an additional 10-year
payment stream starting in 2008 to reimburse the Statedakcosts. The cost reimbursement will total
approximately $65 million. The federal government happed its claim to any portion of the states’
tobacco settlement. Since the state recognizes revdrareitlbecomes measurable and available, the
anticipated revenue is not included in the financetieshents.
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Schedules of Funding Progress

For the Fiscal Years 1994 — 1999

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

(1)
Actuarial
Market
Value
of Assets

(2
Accrued
Liability (AAL)

Entry Age

PERSI Plan (dollars in millions)

7/1/94
7/1/95
7/1/96
7/1/97
7/1/98
7/1/99

$2,591.4
3,087.3
3,761.2
4,609.8
5,488.2
6,172.1

$3,666.1
4,077.8
4,461.5
4,801.9
5,060.0
5,536.8

3
PV of

Future ORP
Contributions

$34.1
384
60.8
63.2
65.7
68.9

Firemen’s Retirement Fund (dollars in millions)

711194
7/1/95
7/1/96
7/1/97
7/1/98
7/1/99

$100.6
100.6
132.1
132.1
179.0
179.0

$240.4
240.4
246.7
246.7
284.0
284.0

FRF actuarial valuations are performed biennially.

Judges’ Retirement Fund (dollars in millions)

7/1/94
7/1/95
7/1/96
71197
7/1/98
7/1/99

$27,075
39,720

60,589

$25,999
29,544

34,574

JRP actuarial valuations are performed biennially.

State of Idaho

(4)
Unfunded
AAL (UAAL)

$1,040.6
952.1
639.5
128.9
(493.9)
(704.2)

$139.8
139.8
114.6
114.6
105.0
105.0

no valuation
$(1,076)

no valuation
(10,176)

no valuation
(26,015)

(5)

Funded
Ratios

@2-0)-B 1:(2-3)

71.3%

76.4
85.5
97.3
109.9
112.9

41.8%

41.8
53.5
53.5
63.0
63.0

104.1%

134.4

175.2

(6)

Annual
Covered

Payroll

$1,402.0

1,525.0
1,497.4
15755
1,627.7
1,7335

$22.6

22.6
24.6
24.6
28.0
28.0

$3,304
3,611

3,961

(7)
UAAL as a
Percentage
of Covered
Payroll

(4):(6)

74.2%
62.4
427

8.2

(30.3)

(40.6)

618.6%
618.6
465.9
465.9
375.0
375.0

0.0%
0.0

0.0
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State of Idaho

Schedules of Employer Contributions
For the Fiscal Years 1994 — 1999

PERSI Plan
Employer Contributions (dollars in millions)
Year Annual Annual
Ended Required Required Percentage
June 30  Contribution Contribution Contributions
1994 $146.2 10.43% 100.0%
1995 $173.6 11.39% 100.0%
1996 $176.5 11.63% 100.0%
1997 $185.9 11.64% 100.0%
1998 $172.3 10.41% 100.0%
1999 $173.2 9.80% 100.0%

Firemen’s Retirement Fund
Employer Contributions (dollars in millions)

Year Annual Annual
Ended Required Required Percentage
June 30  Contribution Contribution Contributions
1996 $7.25 15.40% 100.0%
1997 $9.45 15.40% 79.2%
1998 $9.45 17.24% 84.7%
1999 $8.64 17.24% 99.1%

FRF actuarial valuations are performed biennialy.

Judges’ Retirement Fund
Employer Contributions (dollars in millions)

Year Annual Annual
Ended Required Required Percentage
June 30  Contribution Contribution Contributions

1994 no valuation

1995 $1,288 39.0% 100.0%
1996 no valuation

1997 $1,495 41.4% 100.0%
1998 no valuation

1999 $1,545 39.0% 100.0%

Judges’ actuarial valuations are performed biennially.
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State of Idaho

Notes to the Required Supplementary Schedules
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

The required supplementary information presented in this report was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations as of the datesindicated. The following tables present the notes to the required supplementary
information, which contain additional information as of the latest actuarial valuations:

1. Actuarial Information — The PERSI Plan and Firemen’s Rairement Fund

PERSI Plan FRF
Vauation date July 1, 1999 July 1, 1998
Actuaria cost method Entry Age Actuarial Cost Entry Age Actuarial Cost
Amortization method Level Percentage of Projected  Level Dollar
Payrall
Remai ning amorti zation period
under the open approach Not Applicable 18.8 years
Asset valuation method Market Value Market Value
Actuaria assumptions:
Investment rate of return 8.00% 8.00%
Projected salary increases 5.25% 5.25%
Postretirement benefit increase 1.00% 5.25%
Inflation rate 4.25% 0.00%

2. Actuarial Information — Judges’ Retirement Fund

Vauation date July 1, 1999
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Cost
Amortization method Level Percentage of Projected
Payrall

Remai ning amorti zation period

under the open approach Not Applicable
Asset valuation method Market Vaue
Actuaria assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.50%

Projected salary increases 5.00%

Postretirement benefit increase 4.00%

Inflation rate 0.00%
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State of Idaho

Year 2000 Disclosure
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

In October 1998, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Technical Bulletin
98-1, “Disclosures about Year 2000 Issues.” It was ameindddrch of 1999 by Technical Bulletin
99-1. The provisions of the GASB technical bulletins,ctite for financial statements on which the
auditor’'s report is dated after October 31, 1998, ireghe State to make disclosures about its state-
of-readiness in addressing Year 2000 issues for itiateomputer systems and equipment. The
following required disclosure is provided under the mioris of Year 2000 Information and
Readiness Disclosure Act, Public Law 105-271, which ersgas the disclosure and exchange of
information about computer-related issues in conneetitmthe transition to the Year 2000 and
constitutes a Year 2000 readiness disclosure undernie sa

The Year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in migayrenic data processing systems and
other electronic equipment that may adversely affectalrergment’s operations in the year 1999 and
beyond. The Year 2000 issue refers to the fact that mangutenprograms use only the last two
digits to refer to a year. Therefore, both 1900 and 2Gflddibe referred to as “00.” Computer
programs have to be adjusted to recognize the differegtegebn those two years or the programs will
fail or create errors. Also, some programs may not be abbedgnize that 2000 is a leap year.
Further, the Year 2000 issue could affect electrogigmment containing computer chips that have
date recognition features.

The State of Idaho has taken action relative to the Year @@®0em, starting as far back as 1995.
The Information Technology Resource Management Co(iR&MC) began efforts to identify,
monitor, and provide assistance to state agencies oromigd#iical systems from a statewide
perspective. These activities included inventory ctibe, awareness training, reporting to the
Legislature on Year 2000 budget requirements, mailingermed vendor/customer questionnaires
and third party compliance letters, and developing a Y&20 20dit program. By April 1997,
ITRMC began its monthly agency Year 2000 project statustieggrocess and is currently
maintaining regular contact with individual state ages@nd private industry on their respective
progress.

The State has completed an inventory of computer sgsaeh other electronic equipment that may be
affected by the Year 2000 issue and is subjecting thosensysind equipment that are critical to
conducting state operations to the following stages ok wwoaddress the Year 2000 issue:

Awareness Stage Encompasses establishing a budget gaat plan for dealing
with Year 2000 issues.

Assessment Stage The process of identifying all crisigsems and individual
components of these systems which may be affected by Year
2000 issues.

Remediation Stage The process of making the changes ¢onsyahd equipment.

This stage deals primarily with the technical issues of
converting existing systems or switching to Year 2000yea
systems. Decisions are made on how to address the systems
and the changes are made.
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State of Idaho

Year 2000 Disclosure
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Vadidation/Testing The process of validating and testing the changes made during
the conversion process. Thisinvolves the development of test
data and test scripts, the running of test scripts, and the review
of test results. If the testing results show anomalies, the tested
areais corrected and retested.

The State’s Year 2000 work for its mission-critical systemd electronic equipment are in the
following stages of work:

Statewide accounting and payroll systends of June 30, 1999, the State was in the validation and
testing stage for its statewide accounting and payroksyst

Statewide emergency communication systefvssof June 30, 1999, the Statewide Microwave
Services System, which provides emergency two-way contation services, was remediating its
system. As of September 30, 1999, the State was validatingsting this system.

High frequency long-range local communication systém of June 30, 1999, the State was
validating and testing the high frequency long-rangel lo@@munication system relied upon as
backup for the National Guard.

Wide Area Network (WAN) systemfis of June 30, 1999, the State’s primary WAN system, wikich
the hub of interagency connectivity and centralized rietieworking resources, was in the validation
and testing stage.

Health and Welfare system#s of June 30, 1999, the State was remediating the distdland
embedded systems that are mission critical systemsdétaits health and welfare programs. It was
validating and testing its mainframe applications. €mstems included:

FISCAL — Financial Information Systems with Cost Allocatigvhich is the agency accounting
system used to monitor budget management, reportingededaf grant accounting. Major
subsystems include cost allocation, cash management, fidled assets, and recipient-level
trust management.

MMIS — Medicaid Management Information Systems, whichésHilling and payment system
used to track Medicaid provider claims.

EPICS - Eligibility Program Integrated Computer Systeatsch is the primary eligibility
system that tracks participants and processes caslepts/m

ICSES - Idaho Child Support Enforcement Systems, which track court orders and payments
relating to child support.

Tax revenue and refund processing, and collection syst&mef June 30, 1999, the State was
remediating its revenue, refund, and collection systems.

State ofldaho 88 Comprehensive Annual Financial Repor



State of Idaho

Year 2000 Disclosure
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Warrant processing systemas of June 30, 1999, the State was validating and testing its warrant
redemption interface and ACH interface systems.

Transportation-related system#\s of June 30, 1999, the transportation-related mainframe distributed
and embedded systems were in the process of validation and testing. As of June 30, 1999, contracted
amounts committed to this project totaled $1,274,417.

Employment-related serviceg\s of June 30, 1999, the State’s unemployment insutaeroefits
payment system and the employment service system, whicii@sdasic placement services and
data tracking, were in the process of validation artthtes

Idaho Law Enforcement Telecommunications System ([LEASof June 30, 1999, the State was
remediating the two major components of the ILETS systemof/eptember 30, 1999, the software
upgrades were being validated and tested and the datersimms continued to be remediated. As of
June 30, 1999, contracted amounts committed to thisgbttofaled $671,200.

Security systems and hardware upgrad&se Department of Correction hardware upgrades and
security system were being validated and tested at Jui®©39,

Idaho Juvenile Offender Systenfs of June 30, 1999, the State was remediating the jevafender
system. By September 30, 1999, the State was to begiati@icnd testing.

Membership/benefit systemAs of June 30, 1999, the Public Employee Retirement Sysftéshaho
(PERSI) was remediating the system. As of September 30, PERSI was validating and testing
the system.

State Lottery -As of June 30, 1999, the administrative hardware and software was in the remediation
stage. The Lottery has received assurance from the on-line game contractor that the major software
and hardware is compliant and that the less critical systems are in the testing and validating stage.
However, there can be no tota assurance that the failure of their contractors or suppliersto address
Y2K issues will not have a material adverse effect on bgg@perations. As of June 30,1999,
contracted amounts committed to this project totale82&1000.

Boise State University and Idaho State University arbaérrémediation stage. Lewis-Clark State
College, Eastern Idaho Technical College, and Univeositgaho are in the validation and testing
stage.

Individual agencies are solely responsible for the Y8a0Zompliance of their systems and
equipment. Because of the unprecedented nature of #re2¥80 issue, its effects and the success of
related remediation efforts will not be fully determinabigil the year 2000 and thereafter.
Management cannot assure that the State and its compuoriesrdre or will be Year 2000 ready, that
the State’s remediation efforts will be successful in @lwolin part, or that parties with whom the
State and its component units do business will be Year r2z@1y.
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State of Idaho

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS account for specific revenues designated to finance specific
functions of government. The following provides a brief description of significant specia

revenue funds.

The FISH AND GAME FUND accounts

for revenues and expenditures associated

with enforcing and administering the fish

and game laws in Idaho and to perpetuate

and manage the State’s wildlife resources.
Funding is provided from dedicated user
fees and federal grants.

The HEALTH AND WELFARE FUND
accounts for revenues and expenditures
associated with administering public
assistance, medical care, foster care, child
support enforcement, and other relief to the
eligible citizens of Idaho. Funding is

provided from the General Fund, federal
grants, dedicated user fees, and various other
sources.

The TRANSPORTATION FUND

accounts for revenues and expenditures
associated with highway construction and
maintenance. Funding is provided from
motor vehicle related taxes and user fees, as
well as various federal highway
administration funds.

The FEDERAL FUND accounts for a

portion of the revenues and expenditures
associated with federal grants received by
the State. Federal grants are also included in
the Fish and Game Fund, Health and
Welfare Fund, and Transportation Fund.

State of Idaho 93

The REGULATORY FUND accounts for
revenues and expenditures associated
with various professional licensing and
monitoring functions. The major source of
funding is license fees.

The AGRICULTURE AND NATURAL
RESOURCES FUNDaccounts for

revenues and expenditures associated with
the maintenance, preservation, and
regulation of the State’s parks, water, and
agricultural resources. Funding is provided
from dedicated user fees, sale of services or
goods, and various other sources.

The MISCELLANEOUS FUND accounts

for revenues, expenditures, and other
financial activities associated with general
government services where the major source
of funding is provided by fees, sale of
services or goods, or other income restricted
to expenditure for specific purposes.

The IDAHO STATE BUILDING
AUTHORITY accounts for construction

and financing of facilities, such as office
buildings and parking garages to be used by
the State. The Building Authority is a
blended component unit.
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State of Idaho

Combining Balance Sheet
Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 1999

Health and
Fish and Game Welfare Transportation Federal

Assets

Cash Equity with Treasurer $10,684,530 $75,642,015 $131,917,255 $5,388,873

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments 4,656,455 173,635

Accounts Receivable, Net 163,561 8,216,489 13,900,753 17,600

Due from Other Funds 8,995 9,202 25,544 231,216

Due from Other Entities 4,098,747 80,155,023 10,748,250 12,332,229

Notes/Mortgages Receivable, Net 43,464,191

Other Assets 143,529 460,844 85,058
Total Assets $19,755,817 $207,947,764 $156,765,437 $18,054,976
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $1,373,632 $102,269,018 $44,223,132 $7,789,608

Payroll and Compensated Absences Payable 1,876,416 11,732,692 4,998,985 3,133,156

Deposits 6,000 3,578,681 173,635

Dueto Other Funds 41,210 828,282 330,148 419,814

Dueto Other Entities

Deferred Revenue 3,592,000 1,543,989 2,582,251
Total Liabilities 3,297,258 122,000,673 51,269,889 13,924,829
Fund Balances

Reserved 832,831 43,558,625 41,185,203 2,224,094

Unreserved 15,625,728 42,388,466 64,310,345 1,906,053
Total Fund Balances 16,458,559 85,947,091 105,495,548 4,130,147
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $19,755,817 $207,947,764 $156,765,437 $18,054,976
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Agriculture and Idaho State

Regulatory Natural Resources Miscellaneous Building Authority Total
$40,033,051 $70,460,243 $40,386,152 $374,512,119
1,983,446 3,383,800 4,300,872 $7,972,483 17,640,601
4,321,848 12,799,652 13,131,988 35,083,578
209,410 2,159,596 1,365,588 26,032,997
33,642 139,830 448,429
258,755 441,293 108,034,297
71,177 8,809,666 52,345,034
45,534 277,394 2,569 341,483 1,356,411
$46,698,108 $98,149,106 $46,636,304 $21,445,954 $615,453,466
$433,593 $1,947,822 $1,513,815 $3,263,039 $162,813,659
1,016,141 1,373,761 1,517,092 25,648,243
5,331,029 7,617,963 500 16,707,808
115,120 261,418 53,805 2,049,797
2,535 2,535
830,398 7,261,602 987,176 16,797,416
7,726,281 18,465,101 4,072,388 3,263,039 224,019,458
448,445 15,754,740 1,113,558 13,475,122 118,592,618
38,523,382 63,929,265 41,450,358 4,707,793 272,841,390
38,971,827 79,684,005 42,563,916 18,182,915 391,434,008
$46,698,108 $98,149,106 $46,636,304 $21,445,954 $615,453,466
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State of Idaho

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Charge Fund Balances

Special Revenue Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Fish and Health and
Game Welfare Transportation Federal
Revenues
Sales Tax $4,800,000
Other Taxes 15,354,809 $236,280,819
Licenses, Permits, and Fees $24,220,750 7,349,410 63,205,438 $27,255
Sale of Services, Goods, and Property 150,026 43,983,533 10,783,760 508,188
Grants and Contributions 21,474,561 560,568,570 139,317,582 200,777,972
Interest and Other Investment Income 927,123 2,081,355 6,421,359 74,455
Rent and Lease Income 6,721 66,503 451,097 406
Miscellaneous Income 2,948,574 18,823,214 182,733 360,108
Net Inc (Dec) in Fair Vaue of Investments (103,189)
Total Revenues 49,624,566 653,027,394 456,642,788 201,748,384
Expenditures
Current
General Government 22,720,198 393,210
Public Safety and Correction 15,723,807
Agriculture and Economic Development 80,000 51,079,990
Natural Resources 42,136,485 24,598,732 3,220,798
Health 600,542,545
Public Education 11,276,855
Human Services 222,578,596 499,474
Transportation 240,370,166
Capital Outlay 4,865,318 7,692,500 196,538,376 7,470,112
Intergovernmental 50,000 31,935,781 3,443,902 111,665,152
Total Expenditures 47,131,803 910,068,352 440,352,444 201,329,398
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 2,492,763 (257,040,958) 16,290,344 418,986
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In 254,387,882
Operating Transfers Out (854,136) (13,251,026) (119,263)
Proceeds from Bond Issues
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 253,533,746 (13,251,026) (119,263)
Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing
Uses 2,492,763 (3,507,212) 3,039,318 299,723
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year, as
Adjusted 13,965,796 89,454,303 102,456,230 3,830,424
Fund Balances - End of Year $16,458,559 $85,947,091 $105,495,548 $4,130,147

State of Idaho
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Agriculture and Idaho State

Regulatory Natural Resources Miscellaneous Building Authority Total
$130 $4,800,130
$52,312,061 23,660,154 $21,277,605 348,885,448
29,341,491 25,163,212 9,450,362 158,757,918
522,126 7,135,488 12,854,971 75,938,092
56,260 5,382,029 7,558,626 935,135,600
621,148 4,261,101 1,121,269 $2,044,949 17,552,759
7,655 1,142,800 250,508 6,303,590 8,229,280
749,133 2,614,073 8,649,973 34,327,808
(3,298) (106,487)
83,609,874 69,355,689 61,163,314 8,348,539 1,583,520,548
1,297,141 1,854,696 6,627,714 9,291,767 42,184,726
7,223,366 27,722,161 50,669,334
32,346,781 30,342,613 15,338,085 129,187,469
514,867 15,112,160 2,143,259 87,726,301
600,542,545
5,323,967 16,600,822
108,967 223,187,037
68,973 240,439,139
1,060,107 7,969,738 3,150,954 39,222,278 267,969,383
5,595,288 11,245,954 163,936,077
35,218,896 68,166,834 71,661,061 48,514,045 1,822,442,833
48,390,978 1,188,855 (10,497,747) (40,165,506) (238,922,285)
1,093,096 13,769,600 269,250,578
(47,111,260) (501,987) (61,837,672)
5,040,535 5,040,535
(47,111,260) 6,133,631 13,267,613 212,453,441
1,279,718 7,322,486 2,769,866 (40,165,506) (26,468,844)
37,692,109 72,361,519 39,794,050 58,348,421 417,902,852
$38,971,827 $79,684,005 $42,563,916 $18,182,915 $391,434,008
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State of Idaho

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Charg@ Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) - Special Revenue Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Fish and Game

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Sales Tax
Other Taxes
Licenses, Permits, and Fees $24,125,223 $24,125,223
Sale of Services, Goods, and Property 150,005 150,005
Grants and Contributions 20,024,177 20,024,177
Interest and Other Investment Income 855,512 855,512
Rent and Lease Income 5,721 5,721
Miscellaneous Income 2,296,689 2,296,689
Total Revenues 47,457,327 47,457,327
Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety and Correction
Agriculture and Economic Development 100,003 80,000 $20,003
Natural Resources 61,851,619 46,698,428 15,153,191
Health
Public Education
Human Services
Transportation
Total Expenditures $61,951,622 46,778,428 $15,173,194
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 678,899
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out
Proceeds from Bond Issues
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 678,899
Reconciling Items
Changes Effected by Accrued Revenues 2,167,239
Changes Effected by Accrued Expenditures (353,375)
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year, as Adjusted 13,965,796
Fund Balances - End of Year $16,458,559
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Continued

Health and Welfare Transportation
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$4,800,000 $4,800,000
15,335,249 15,335,249 $241,599,195 $241,599,195
7,240,554 7,240,554 63,221,743 63,221,743
42,060,432 42,060,432 10,501,730 10,501,730
539,365,280 539,365,280 142,063,833 142,063,833
2,353,568 2,353,568 6,437,113 6,437,113
65,171 65,171 211,463 211,463
12,487,304 12,487,304 386,552 386,552
623,707,558 623,707,558 464,421,629 464,421,629
31,467,630 30,674,289 $793,341
36,731,541 31,706,624 5,024,917
687,609,635 666,522,609 21,087,026
35,724 35,724
154,744,309 142,144,003 12,600,306
536,358,026 430,274,837 $106,083,189
$910,588,839 871,083,249 $39,505,590 $536,358,026 430,274,837 $106,083,189
(247,375,691) 34,146,792
254,387,882
(854,136) (13,251,026)
253,533,746 (13,251,026)
6,158,055 20,895,766
29,319,836 (7,778,841)
(38,985,103) (20,077,607)
89,454,303 102,456,230
$85,947,091 $105,495,548
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State of Idaho

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Charg@ Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) - Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Federal
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Sales Tax
Other Taxes
Licenses, Permits, and Fees $26,005 $26,005
Sale of Services, Goods, and Property 159,717 159,717
Grants and Contributions 199,034,807 199,034,807
Interest and Other Investment Income 74,455 74,455
Rent and Lease Income 406 406
Miscellaneous Income 173,159 173,159
Total Revenues 199,468,549 199,468,549
Expenditures
General Government 472,400 394,182 $78,218
Public Safety and Correction 32,962,965 23,286,613 9,676,352
Agriculture and Economic Development 77,030,083 67,860,753 9,169,330
Natural Resources 6,912,037 3,949,538 2,962,499
Health
Public Education 110,275,545 99,850,574 10,424,971
Human Services 5,905,200 5,246,490 658,710
Transportation
Total Expenditures $233,558,230 200,588,150 $32,970,080
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,119,601)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out (119,263)
Proceeds from Bond Issues
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (119,263)
Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (1,238,864)
Reconciling Items
Changes Effected by Accrued Revenues 2,279,835
Changes Effected by Accrued Expenditures (741,248)
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year, as Adjusted 3,830,424
Fund Balances - End of Year $4,130,147
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Continued

Regulatory Agriculture and Natural Resources
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$52,313,374 $52,313,374 $23,661,929 $23,661,929
29,300,940 29,300,940 25,305,883 25,305,883
521,741 521,741 7,180,113 7,180,113
56,260 56,260 5,680,246 5,680,246
621,148 621,148 4,417,856 4,417,856
7,650 7,650 1,167,644 1,167,644
737,730 737,730 2,219,153 2,219,153
83,558,843 83,558,843 69,632,824 69,632,824
1,297,141 1,297,141 2,852,851 2,092,973 $759,878
11,841,022 6,860,410 4,980,612
32,552,336 30,586,586 $1,965,750 33,880,359 30,904,461 2,975,898
629,049 515,513 113,536 43,108,411 26,241,955 16,866,456
67,411 67,411
$34,478,526 32,399,240 $2,079,286 $91,750,054 66,167,210 $25,582,844
51,159,603 3,465,614
1,093,096
(47,111,260)
5,040,535
(47,111,260) 6,133,631
4,048,343 9,599,245
51,031 (277,135)
(2,819,656) (1,999,624)
37,692,109 72,361,519
$38,971,827 $79,684,005
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State of Idaho

Combining Statement Revenues, Expenditures, and Changeskund Balances
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) - Special Revenue Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Miscellaneous

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Sales Tax
Other Taxes $19,044,834 $19,044,834
Licenses, Permits, and Fees 9,289,332 9,289,332
Sale of Services, Goods, and Property 8,339,011 8,339,011
Grants and Contributions 6,451,199 6,451,199
Interest and Other Investment Income 1,010,423 1,010,423
Rent and Lease Income 270,178 270,178
Miscellaneous Income 8,503,024 8,503,024
Total Revenues 52,908,001 52,908,001
Expenditures
General Government 6,969,922 6,825,426 $144,496
Public Safety and Correction 32,510,141 29,041,255 3,468,886
Agriculture and Economic Development 22,327,582 18,622,452 3,705,130
Natural Resources 10,519,325 8,663,864 1,855,461
Health
Public Education 40,188,086 7,126,663 33,061,423
Human Services 185,300 125,783 59,517
Transportation
Total Expenditures $112,700,356 70,405,443 $42,294,913
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (17,497,442)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating Transfers In 13,769,600
Operating Transfers Out (501,987)
Proceeds from Bond Issues

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 13,267,613

Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (4,229,829)

Reconciling Items

Changes Effected by Accrued Revenues 8,255,313
Changes Effected by Accrued Expenditures (1,255,618)
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year, as Adjusted 39,794,050
Fund Balances - End of Year $42,563,916
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Idaho State Building Authority Total
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$4,800,000 $4,800,000
351,954,581 351,954,581
158,509,680 158,509,680
68,912,749 68,912,749
912,675,802 912,675,802
$2,044,949 $2,044,949 17,815,024 17,815,024
6,303,590 6,303,590 8,031,823 8,031,823
26,803,611 26,803,611
8,348,539 8,348,539 1,549,503,270 1,549,503,270
48,514,045 48,514,045 91,573,989 89,798,056 $1,775,933
77,314,128 59,188,278 18,125,850
165,890,363 148,054,252 17,836,111
159,751,982 117,775,922 41,976,060
687,609,635 666,522,609 21,087,026
150,499,355 107,012,961 43,486,394
160,834,809 147,516,276 13,318,533
536,425,437 430,342,248 106,083,189
$48,514,045 48,514,045 $2,029,899,698 1,766,210,602 $263,689,096
(40,165,506) (216,707,332)
269,250,578
(61,837,672)
5,040,535
212,453,441
(40,165,506) (4,253,891)
34,017,278
(56,232,231)
58,348,421 417,902,852
$18,182,915 $391,434,008
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State of Idaho

ENTERPRISE FUNDS account for the operations of state agencies that provide goods or servicesto the
general public and finance their operations through user charges. The following provides a brief
description of the significant enterprise funds.

CORRECTIONAL INDUSTRIES The STATE LOTTERY was established

provides employment for prisoners of the by the Legislature in 1988. The State

Idaho State Prison. Correctional Industries Lottery’s purpose is to adopt rules and

manufactures and sells avariety of items, regulations governing the establishment and

including license plates, furniture, highway operation of lottery games, ensure its

signs, printing services, dairy and meat integrity, and to maximize the net income of

products, and other miscellaneous products the lottery for the benefit of the State.

and services. Annually the State Lottery’s surplus net
income is distributed evenly between state

The LIQUOR DISPENSARY was buildings and public schools.

established by the Legidlature in 1939. The
Dispensary’s purpose is to conduct, license,
and regulate the sale of alcoholic beverages.
Funding is provided through the sale of
products. A portion of the surplus from the
Fund is transferred to the State’s General
Fund, the Public School Income Fund, and
other funds as dictated by Idaho Code. The
balance, after the above authorized transfers,
is then distributed 40% to counties and 60%
to cities.
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State of Idaho

Combining Balance Sheet
Enterprise Funds
June 30, 1999

Correctional Liquor State
Industries Dispensary Lottery Tota

Assets

Cash Equity with Treasurer $2,497,506 $8,512,796 $15,530,893 $26,541,195

Cash and Cash Equivalents 24,750 193,437 218,187

Accounts Receivable, Net 155,935 41,101 2,820,118 3,017,154

Due from Other Funds 473,868 473,868

Grand Prizes Receivable 87,455,524 87,455,524

Other Assets 1,280,640 5,832,740 3,172,206 10,285,586

Fixed Assets, Net 1,446,519 3,179,334 5,651,279 10,277,132
Total Assets $5,854,468 $17,590,721 $114,823,457 $138,268,646
Liabilities and Fund Equity
Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $434,106 $8,421,546 $5,473,743 $14,329,395

Payroll and Compensated Absences Payable 284,530 697,710 222,050 1,204,290

Deposits 11,000 11,000

Dueto Other Funds 2,963 64,704 67,667

Deferred Revenue 12,623 12,623

Notes/Bonds/Contracts Payable 1,835,286 1,835,286

Grand Prizes Payable 87,455,524 87,455,524

Capital Leases 2,154,040 2,154,040
Total Liabilities 721,599 11,361,623 94,986,603 107,069,825
Fund Equity

Retained Earnings

Unreserved 5,132,869 6,229,098 19,836,854 31,198,821

Total Fund Equity 5,132,869 6,229,098 19,836,854 31,198,821
Total Liabilities and Fund Equity $5,854,468 $17,590,721 $114,823,457 $138,268,646
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State of Idaho

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Retained Earnings - Enterprise Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Correctional Liquor State
Industries Dispensary Lottery Total

Operating Revenues

Licenses, Permits, and Fees $1,000 $1,000

Sale of Services, Goods, and Property $6,860,740 61,160,941 $90,406,823 158,428,504

Miscellaneous Income 90,114 8,531 601,173 699,818
Total Operating Revenues 6,950,854 61,170,472 91,007,996 159,129,322
Operating Expenses

Personnel Costs 1,923,788 5,635,760 1,920,923 9,480,471

Services 253,556 393,641 10,790,573 11,437,770

Travel 17,040 52,888 69,928

Supplies 3,959,574 33,355,782 2,416,678 39,732,034

Insurance, Utilities, and Rent 419,837 1,561,523 946,407 2,927,767

Miscellaneous 126,316 1,380,314 400,685 1,907,315

Depreciation 182,806 131,565 761,177 1,075,548

Awards and Claims 52,322,417 52,322,417

Payment as Agent 10,289,145 10,289,145
Total Operating Expenses 6,882,917 52,800,618 69,558,860 129,242,395
Operating Income (Loss) 67,937 8,369,854 21,449,136 29,886,927
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest Income 112,252 376,612 488,864

Interest Expense (323,667) (323,667)

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (7,145) (7,145)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 112,252 45,800 158,052
Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers 180,189 8,415,654 21,449,136 30,044,979

Operating Transfers Out (8,295,000) (20,500,000) (28,795,000)
Net Income (Loss) 180,189 120,654 949,136 1,249,979
Beginning Retained Earnings, as Adjusted 4,952,680 6,108,444 18,887,718 29,948,842
Ending Retained Earnings $5,132,869 $6,229,098 $19,836,854 $31,198,821
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State of Idaho

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Enterprise Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Correctional Liquor State
Industries Dispensary Lottery Total
Increase (Decrease) in Cash, Cash Equivalents, afidsh
Equity with Treasurer
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers, Loan Interest, and Fees $1,879,041 $61,158,683 $89,260,840 $152,298,564
Receipts from State Agency Customers 5,147,885 5,147,885
Payments to Suppliers (4,291,300) (36,442,978) (13,657,595) (54,391,873)
Payments to Employees for Services and Benefits (1,820,434) (5,613,521) (1,921,930) (9,355,885)
Payments to State Agency Suppliers (75,868) (173,085) (248,953)
Payments of Awards and Claims (52,322,417) (52,322,417)
Payments as Agent (6,776,237) (6,776,237)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 839,324 12,152,862 21,358,898 34,351,084
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out (8,295,000) (20,500,000) (28,795,000)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Atvities (8,295,000) (20,500,000) (28,795,000)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Actiities
Proceeds from Disposition of Capital Assets 1,150 1,150
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (61,695) (865,262) (3,199,403) (4,126,360)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Fancing (61,695) (864,112) (3,199,403) (4,125,210)
Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Receipt of Interest and Dividends 112,252 376,612 488,864
Other Investing Activities (150,351) (150,351)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 112,252 376,612 (150,351) 338,513
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Cash
Equity with Treasurer 889,881 3,370,362 (2,490,856) 1,769,387
Beginning Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Cash
Equity with Treasurer 1,607,625 5,167,184 18,215,186 24,989,995
Ending Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Cash
Equity with Treasurer $2,497,506 $8,537,546 $15,724,330 $26,759,382
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Correctional Liquor State
Industries Dispensary Lottery Total
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $67,937 $8,369,854 $21,449,136 $29,886,927
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
(Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities
Depreciation 182,806 131,565 761,177 1,075,548
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable, Net 104,248 (10,639) (1,747,156) (1,653,547)
(Increase) Decrease in Grand Prize Receivables 3,376,743 3,376,743
(Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Funds (28,175) (28,175)
(Increase) Decrease in Other Assets 765,253 (424) (119,678) 645,151
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities (354,386) 3,580,714 1,016,426 4,242,754
Increase (Decrease) in Grand Prizes Payable (3,376,743) (3,376,743)
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue 8,910 8,910
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds (1,713) 50,643 48,930
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences 103,354 22,239 (1,007) 124,586
Total Adjustments 771,387 3,783,008 (90,238) 4,464,157
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $839,324 $12,152,862 $21,358,898 $34,351,084

Noncash Transactions:

Noncash transactions are investing and financing activities that affect assets and liabilities but do not result in cash receipts or payments. The
following noncash transaction occurred during the year: The State Lottery reported accretion of grand prize annuities receivable from the
Multi-State Lottery Association, with acorresponding increase in the Grand Prizes Payable, totaling $5,993,257 for the current fiscal year.
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State of Idaho

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS account for the operation of state agencies, which provide goods or

services to other state agencies and other governmental units on a cost reimbursement basis. The

following provides a brief description of operationsincluded in these significant internal service funds.

The GENERAL SERVICES FUND
accounts for statewide accounting, auditing,
payroll and treasury services, surplus
property redistribution and sale, copying
services, purchasing, mail servicesfor state
agencies, and voice and data communication
Services.

The DATA PROCESSING SERVICES
FUND accounts for data processing services
provided by the Office of the State
Controller to the various state agencies. In
addition, the State Department of Education
provides data processing servicesto local
school districts and some state agencies.

State of Idaho
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The GROUP INSURANCE FUND
administers the Group Insurance Act by
providing health insurance to all state
employees and optional coverage for
dependents and retirees. The Fund also
provides life insurance and short-term and
long-term disability coverage.

The RISK MANAGEMENT FUND
accounts for insurance coverage and loss
prevention to al state agencies. Coverageis
provided using an optimal combination of
self-insurance and private excess insurance.
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State of Idaho

Combining Balance Sheet
Internal Service Funds
June 30, 1999

Data
General Processing Group Risk
Services Services Insurance Management Total

Assets

Cash Equity with Treasurer $3,783,362 $379,008 $42,248,546 $17,184,694 $63,595,610

Accounts Receivable, Net 164,913 9,576 216 608,096 782,801

Due from Other Funds 788,539 835,858 8 206,864 1,831,269

Other Assets 969,050 1,158,464 60,450 2,187,964

Fixed Assets, Net 4,191,967 1,249,827 18,367 5,460,161
Total Assets $9,897,831 $3,632,733 $42,267,137 $18,060,104 $73,857,805
Liabilities and Fund Equity
Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $570,839 $10,352 $1,452,171 $128,663 $2,162,025

Payroll and Compensated Absences Payable 1,661,247 387,902 18,274 32,655 2,100,078

Dueto Other Funds 209,640 20,977 1,342 148,975 380,934

Deferred Revenue 149,786 7,910 5,297,537 5,455,233

Policy Claim Liabilities 19,814,600 14,509,326 34,323,926

Capital Leases 148,276 77,733 226,009
Total Liabilities 2,739,788 504,874 26,583,924 14,819,619 44,648,205
Fund Equity

Contributed Capital 2,962,307 19,540 2,981,847

Retained Earnings

Reserved 10,464,768 10,464,768
Unreserved 4,195,736 3,108,319 5,218,445 3,240,485 15,762,985

Total Fund Equity 7,158,043 3,127,859 15,683,213 3,240,485 29,209,600
Total Liabilities and Fund Equity $9,897,831 $3,632,733 $42,267,137 $18,060,104 $73,857,805
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State of Idaho

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Retained Earnings - Internal Service Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Data
General Processing Group Risk
Services Services Insurance Management Total

Operating Revenues

Other Taxes $42,513 $42,513

Licenses, Permits, and Fees $16,210 16,210

Sale of Services, Goods, and Property 20,903,380 $6,432,537 84,152,063 $4,177,277 115,665,257

Rent and Lease Income 5,095,338 5,095,338

Miscellaneous Income 4,321,898 1,239,150 11,329 5,572,377
Total Operating Revenues 30,336,826 6,432,537 85,433,726 4,188,606 126,391,695
Operating Expenses

Personnel Costs 13,823,837 2,838,760 218,896 318,625 17,200,118

Services 11,088,224 1,975,598 211,795 28,143 13,303,760

Travel 185,031 31,326 5,179 221,536

Supplies 1,172,809 458,029 29,000 153,249 1,813,087

Insurance, Utilities, and Rent 1,911,570 15,632 8,203 1,232,045 3,167,450

Miscellaneous 1,257,283 19,023 27,559 136,738 1,440,603

Depreciation 1,254,726 922,453 6,358 2,183,537

Awards and Claims 86,671,308 5,734,875 92,406,183

Payment as Agent 34,605 34,605
Total Operating Expenses 30,693,480 6,260,821 87,207,724 7,608,854 131,770,879
Operating Income (Loss) (356,654) 171,716 (1,773,998) (3,420,248) (5,379,184)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest Income 317,850 73,630 2,177,576 936,214 3,505,270

Interest Expense (17,309) (31,289) (48,598)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 300,541 42,341 2,177,576 936,214 3,456,672
Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers (56,113) 214,057 403,578 (2,484,034) (1,922,512)

Operating TransfersIn 41,005 41,005

Operating Transfers Out (1,593,242) (1,593,242)
Net Income (Loss) (1,608,350) 214,057 403,578 (2,484,034) (3,474,749)
Beginning Retained Earnings, as Adjusted 5,804,086 2,894,262 15,279,635 5,724,519 29,702,502
Ending Retained Earnings $4,195,736 $3,108,319 $15,683,213 $3,240,485 $26,227,753
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State of Idaho

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Data
Genera Processing Group
Services Services Insurance

Increase (Decrease) in Cash Equity with Treasurer
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from Customers, Loan Interest, and Fees $4,402,078 $5,316,941

Receipts from State Agency Customers 25,682,980 $6,145,241 79,843,438

Payments to Suppliers (12,126,813) (2,281,552) (217,498)

Payments to Employees for Services and Benefits (13,787,710) (2,760,461) (214,668)

Payments to State Agency Suppliers (3,456,518) (77,367) (58,538)

Payments of Awards and Claims (87,327,602)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 714,017 1,025,861 (2,657,927)
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

Operating TransfersIn 41,005

Operating Transfers Out (1,593,242)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Aivities (1,552,237)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Actiities

Proceeds from Disposition of Capital Assets 11,938

Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (1,236,692) (1,417,302) (20,213)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Fancing Activities (1,224,754) (1,417,302) (20,213)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Receipt of Interest and Dividends 317,846 73,630 2,177,576
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 317,846 73,630 2,177,576
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Equity with Treasurer (1,745,128) (317,811) (500,564)
Beginning Cash Equity with Treasurer 5,528,490 696,819 42,749,110
Ending Cash Equity with Treasurer $3,783,362 $379,008 $42,248,546
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Continued

Risk
Management Total
$23,125 $9,742,144
3,350,581 115,022,240
(1,159,112) (15,784,975)
(314,305) (17,077,144)
(75,689) (3,668,112)
(2,664,134) (89,991,736)
(839,534) (1,757,583)
41,005
(1,593,242)
(1,552,237)
11,938
(9,207) (2,683,414)
(9,207) (2,671,476)
936,214 3,505,266
936,214 3,505,266
87,473 (2,476,030)
17,097,221 66,071,640
$17,184,694 $63,595,610
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State of Idaho

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Data
Genera Processing Group
Services Services Insurance
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) ($356,654) $171,716 ($1,773,998)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
(Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities
Depreciation 1,254,726 922,453 6,358
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable, Net 89,213 (5,839) (208)
(Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Funds (29,027) (279,902) 8)
(Increase) Decrease in Other Assets (508,331) (121,649)
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities 201,399 176,785 107,559
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue 46,536 (1,590) (273,131)
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds (20,962) 14,629 (3,327)
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences 37,117 149,258 4,228
Increase (Decrease) in Policy Claim Liabilities (725,400)
Total Adjustments 1,070,671 854,145 (883,929)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $714,017 $1,025,861 ($2,657,927)

Noncash Transactions:
Noncash transactions are investing and financing activities that affect assets and liabilities but do not result in cash receipts or payments. The

following noncash transactions ocurred during the year: Data processing services received contributions of fixed assets with a fair market value of
$5,040. General Services acquired fixed assets through capital lease in the amount of $54,139.
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Risk

M anagement Total

($3,420,248) ($5,379,184)

2,183,537

(608,046) (524,880)
(206,854) (515,791)
191,106 (438,874)
(329,540) 156,203
(228,185)

128,834 119,174
4,320 194,923
3,400,894 2,675,494
2,580,714 3,621,601
($839,534) ($1,757,583)
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State of Idaho

TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS are fiduciary in nature and are maintained to antéor assets
held by the State acting in the capacity as trustegjent. The following provides a brief
description of the State’s significant trust andrexyefunds.

The TRUST FUNDS:

The EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

pays claims for unemployment to eligible
recipients through employer contributions,
employer reimbursements, and federal
grants

The INVESTMENT TRUST FUND

is used to account for the investments of
external participants in the Joint Exercise of
Powers.

The NONEXPENDABLE TRUST

FUNDS account for land grants and the sale
or lease of such lands received from the
federal_Enabling Act The principal in the
fund is perpetual with the earnings used to
support education, mental health,
corrections, and public buildings.

The PENSION TRUST FUNDSaccount
for transactions, assets, liabilities, and net
assets available for plan benefits of the
State’s retirement systems.

State of Idaho 119

The AGENCY FUNDS:

Other Custodial accounts for the receipts
and disbursements of monies collected by
the State and distributed to other entities.
This includes deposits of securities by banks
and insurance companies doing business in
the State.

Payroll accounts for state and federal
withholding, social security taxes, and
voluntary employee deductions related to
the State’s payroll.

The Sick Leave/Insurance Reserve Fund
provides payment of postretirement health
insurance premiums on behalf of school
districts in Idaho based on unused
accumulated sick leave at their retirement
date. The Fund accounts for the receipts and
disbursements related to the above.
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State of Idaho

Combining Balance Sheet
Trust and Agency Funds
June 30, 1999

Expendable Investment
Trust Fund Trust Fund
Unemployment Joint Exercise Nonexpendable Pension Trust
Compensation of Powers Trust Funds Funds

Assets

Cash Equity with Treasurer $16,430,125 $150,953,284 $1,279,810 $1,194,003

Cash and Cash Equivalents 248,217,115 1,451,915

Investments 67,487,286 543,884,511 759,001,985 6,526,064,960

Accounts Receivable, Net 29,759,266 4,193,401 13,312,788

Notes/Mortgages Receivable, Net 2,596,400

Other Assets 366,895 7,004,503 749,321 113,483,908

Fixed Assets, Net 2,346,176 7,765,969
Total Assets $362,260,687 $701,842,298 $770,167,093 $6,663,273,543
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $183,457 $3,029,067 $1,417,345 $198,523,092

Payroll and Compensated Absences Payable

Deposits

Dueto Other Entities

Deferred Revenue 7,132,944
Total Liabilities 7,316,401 3,029,067 1,417,345 198,523,092
Fund Balances

Reserved 698,813,231 768,749,748 6,464,750,451

Unreserved 354,944,286
Total Fund Balances 354,944,286 698,813,231 768,749,748 6,464,750,451
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $362,260,687 $701,842,298 $770,167,093 $6,663,273,543
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Agency Funds Total
$19,667,301 $189,524,523
1,289,010 250,958,040
185,115,909 8,081,554,651
724,963 47,990,418
2,596,400
121,604,627
10,112,145
$206,797,183 $8,704,340,804
$6,236,114 $209,389,075
16,417 16,417
133,763,248 133,763,248
66,781,404 66,781,404
7,132,944
206,797,183 417,083,088
7,932,313,430
354,944,286
8,287,257,716
$206,797,183 $8,704,340,804
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State of Idaho

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonexpendable Trust Funds
June 30, 1999

Public School Pooled Total
Endowment Endowments Endowment

Assets

Cash Equity with Treasurer $1,260,946 $18,864 $1,279,810

Investments 521,404,178 237,597,807 759,001,985

Accounts Receivable, Net 3,242,650 950,751 4,193,401

Notes/M ortgages Receivable, Net 2,346,388 250,012 2,596,400

Other Assets 511,920 237,401 749,321

Fixed Assets, Net 1,994,250 351,926 2,346,176
Total Assets $530,760,332 $239,406,761 $770,167,093
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $1,417,345 $1,417,345
Total Liabilities 1,417,345 1,417,345
Fund Balances

Reserved 529,342,987 $239,406,761 768,749,748
Total Fund Balances 529,342,987 239,406,761 768,749,748
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $530,760,332 $239,406,761 $770,167,093
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State of Idaho

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonexpendable Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Public School Pooled Total
Endowment Endowments Endowment
Operating Revenues

Sale of Services, Goods, and Property $39,785,490 $16,765,305 $56,550,795
Total Operating Revenues 39,785,490 16,765,305 56,550,795
Operating Income (Loss) 39,785,490 16,765,305 56,550,795
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Net Inc (Dec) in Fair Vaue of Investments (11,131,127) (4,535,765) (15,666,892)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (11,131,127) (4,535,765) (15,666,892)
Net Income (Loss) 28,654,363 12,229,540 40,883,903
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year, as
Adjusted 500,688,624 227,177,221 727,865,845
Fund Balances - End of Year $529,342,987 $239,406,761 $768,749,748
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State of Idaho

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Nonexpendable Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Public School Pooled Total
Endowment Endowments Endowment

Increase (Decrease) in Cash Equity with Treasurer
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from Customers, Loan Interest, and Fees $41,516,149 $17,161,834 $58,677,983
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 41,516,149 17,161,834 58,677,983
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Receipt of Interest and Dividends 380,681 137,080 517,761

Purchase of Investments (3,796,189,088) (1,896,704,750) (5,692,893,838)

Redemption of Investments 3,755,553,204 1,879,364,670 5,634,917,874
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (40,255,203) (17,203,000) (57,458,203)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Equity with Treasurer 1,260,946 (41,166) 1,219,780
Beginning Cash Equity with Treasurer 60,030 60,030
Ending Cash Equity with Treasurer $1,260,946 $18,864 $1,279,810
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Public School Pooled Total
Endowment Endowments Endowment

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities:

Operating Income (Loss) $39,785,490 $16,765,305 $56,550,795
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
(Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable, Net 1,140,254 361,400 1,501,654

(Increase) Decrease in Notes and Mortgages Receivable 590,405 35,129 625,534
Total Adjustments 1,730,659 396,529 2,127,188
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $41,516,149 $17,161,834 $58,677,983
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State of Idaho

Combining Statement of Plan Net Assets
Pension Trust Funds

June 30, 1999

Public Employee Firemen's Idaho Super
Retirement System Retirement Saver - 401(k)
of ldaho Plan Fund Plan

Assets

Cash Equity with Treasurer $1,124,735

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,372,628 $79,287

Investments 6,252,429,134 198,503,679 $14,826,756

Accounts Receivable, Net 12,599,536 546,281

Other Assets 110,196,928 2,976,563

Fixed Assets, Net 7,765,969
Total Assets $6,385,488,930 $202,105,810 $14,826,756
Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $192,424,370 $6,054,069
Total Liabilities 192,424,370 6,054,069
Net Assets Held in Trust for Employees’ Pension Befits $6,193,064,560 $196,051,741 $14,826,756
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Judges’

Retirement

Fund Total
$69,268 $1,194,003
1,451,915
60,305,391 6,526,064,960
166,971 13,312,788
310,417 113,483,908
7,765,969
$60,852,047 $6,663,273,543
$44,653 $198,523,092
44,653 198,523,092
$60,807,394 $6,464,750,451
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State of Idaho

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Balance Balance
July 1, 1998 Additions Deductions June 30, 1999

Other Custodial
Assets

Cash Equity with Treasurer $22,326,605 $2,171,595,069 $2,174,705,232 $19,216,442

Cash and Cash Equivalents 865,550 2,142,709 1,731,100 1,277,159

Investments (161,000) 119,326,242 119,165,242
Total Assets $23,031,155 $2,293,064,020 $2,176,436,332 $139,658,843
Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $4,753,914 $23,854,063 $22,815,159 $5,792,818

Deposits 18,159,189 122,158,364 6,554,305 133,763,248

Dueto Other Entities 118,052 4,251,981 4,267,256 102,777
Total Liabilities $23,031,155 $150,264,408 $33,636,720 $139,658,843
Payroll
Assets

Cash Equity with Treasurer $105,057 $930,183,958 $929,838,156 $450,859
Total Assets $105,057 $930,183,958 $929,838,156 $450,859
Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $87,840 $124,518,266 $124,171,664 $434,442

Payroll and Compensated Absences Payable 17,217 809,467,783 809,468,583 16,417
Total Liabilities $105,057 $933,986,049 $933,640,247 $450,859
Sick Leave/lnsurance Reserve
Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents $2,236 $8,594,939 $8,585,324 $11,851

Investments 52,346,486 13,604,181 65,950,667

Accounts Receivable, Net 700,511 8,604,821 8,580,369 724,963
Total Assets $53,049,233 $30,803,941 $17,165,693 $66,687,481
Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $6,762 $34,846 $32,754 $8,854

Dueto Other Entities 53,042,471 16,717,396 3,081,240 66,678,627
Total Liabilities $53,049,233 $16,752,242 $3,113,994 $66,687,481
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Balance Balance

July 1, 1998 Additions Deductions June 30, 1999
Total for all Agency Funds
Assets
Cash Equity with Treasurer $22,431,662 $3,101,779,027 $3,104,543,388 $19,667,301
Cash and Cash Equivalents 867,786 10,737,648 10,316,424 1,289,010
Investments 52,185,486 132,930,423 185,115,909
Accounts Receivable, Net 700,511 8,604,821 8,580,369 724,963
Total Assets $76,185,445 $3,254,051,919 $3,123,440,181 $206,797,183
Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $4,848,516 $148,407,175 $147,019,577 $6,236,114
Payroll and Compensated Absences Payable 17,217 809,467,783 809,468,583 16,417
Deposits 18,159,189 122,158,364 6,554,305 133,763,248
Dueto Other Entities 53,160,523 20,969,377 7,348,496 66,781,404
Total Liabilities $76,185,445 $1,101,002,699 $970,390,961 $206,797,183
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State of Idaho

ALL COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS account for the financial position and operations of the
State’s colleges and universities in accordance witieg authoritative accounting and reporting
principles as prescribed in the AICPA Industry Guide. okdingly, college and university funds are an

aggregation of the following funds:

The CURRENT FUNDS account for
resources that will be expended for
performing the primary and support
objectives of the institution, i.e., instruction,
academic support, student services,
institutional support, operations and
maintenance of plant, scholarships and
fellowships, and auxiliary activities.

STUDENT LOAN FUNDS account for
transactions of related resources obtained
and used for loans to students.

ENDOWMENT FUNDS account for
resources held by the institutions that must
be administered in accordance with trust
agreements.

State of Idaho 131

PLANT FUNDS account for resources
available for acquisition, renewal and
replacement of institutional properties,
resources available to service debt incurred
to acquire such properties, and the fixed
assets acquired or constructed for use by the
institutions.

AGENCY FUNDS account for amounts

held in custody for students, institution-
related organizations, and others.
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State of Idaho

Combining Balance Sheet

All College and University Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Current Funds

Student
Unrestricted Auxiliary Restricted Loan
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $25,527,906 $17,144,419 (%$2,179,081) $1,965,296
Investments 21,960,979 40,592 790,134
Accounts Receivable, Net 18,199,698 2,440,844 22,120,943 204,450
Due from Other Funds 9,533,761 1,125,772 2,318,914 95,314
Deferred Bond Financing Costs 2,453,749 47,219
Notes/Mortgages Receivable, Net 20,388,984
Other Assets 2,412,369 3,236,160 400,914
Fixed Assets, Net
Total Assets $80,088,462 $24,035,006 $22,260,776 $23,845,092
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $38,014,250 $4,207,348 $8,789,865 $2,065
Deposits 1,281 635,791 115,190
Due to Other Funds 829,515 3,325,472 5,998,671
Deferred Revenue 7,027,055 1,688,057 18,638
Notes/Bonds/Contracts Payable
Capital Leases
Total Liabilities 45,872,101 9,856,668 14,807,174 117,255
Fund Balances
Investment in General Fixed Assets
Reserved 23,727,837
Unreserved 34,216,361 14,178,338 7,453,602
Total Fund Balances 34,216,361 14,178,338 7,453,602 23,727,837
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $80,088,462 $24,035,006 $22,260,776 $23,845,092
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Endowment Plant Agency Total
$5,183,412 $51,392,782 $508,434 $99,633,168
74,857,967 48,213,632 7,565,834 153,429,138

20,807 126,074 236,826 43,349,642

625 2,070 13,076,456

4,712,036 7,213,004

1,524,317 21,913,301

1,729,731 363,244 8,142,418

887,643,838 887,643,838

$83,316,234 $992,452,231 $8,403,164 $1,234,400,965

$260,605 $4,598,505 $8,403,164 $64,275,802

752,262

2,404,707 518,091 13,076,456

8,733,750

192,064,208 192,064,208

4,599,829 4,599,829

2,665,312 201,780,633 8,403,164 283,502,307

755,837,472 755,837,472

80,650,922 13,505,334 117,884,093

21,328,792 77,177,093

80,650,922 790,671,598 950,898,658

$83,316,234 $992,452,231 $8,403,164 $1,234,400,965
State of Idaho 133 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



11111 E ;%&L ﬁin:

:ii u::u_




Component Units

Boise Police Department, ca early 1900°s.
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State of Idaho

The DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS — PROPRIETARY FUNDS are
organizations, which are legally separate from the State of 1daho for which the State is financially
accountable, or for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the State are such that
exclusion would cause the State’s financial statentertis misleading or incomplete.

The IDAHO HOUSING and FINANCE
ASSOCIATION is empowered by Idaho
Code, Title 67, Chapter 62, to issue notes
and bonds in furtherance of its purpose of
providing safe and sanitary housing for
persons of limited income residing in the
State of Idaho.

The IDAHO LIFE and HEALTH
INSURANCE GUARANTY
ASSOCIATION perldaho Code, Title 41,
Chapter 43, is a nonprofit organization
formed by the Idaho Life and Health
Insurance Guaranty Association Act of
1977. The Act was passed to provide a
mechanism for the payment of covered
claims under certain insurance policies
where the insurer becomes insolvent. The
Act applies to direct and supplemental life
and health policies and annuity contracts.

All insurance companies, which sell the type

of insurance covered under the Act, are
required to be members of the Association
as a condition of their authority to transact
insurance business in Idaho.

State of Idaho 137

The PETROLEUM CLEAN WATER

TRUST FUND per ldaho Code, Title 41,
Chapter 49, provides pollution liability
insurance to eligible owners and operators of
petroleum storage tanks.
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State of Idaho

Combining Balance Sheet

Discretely Presented Component Units - Proprietary Funds

June 30, 1999

Idaho Housing Idaho Life and
and Finance Health Insurance Petroleum Clean
Association Guaranty Association Water Trust Fund Tota

Assets

Cash Equity with Treasurer $5,075,227 $5,075,227

Cash and Cash Equivalents $29,375,000 $2,577,203 31,952,203

Investments 382,787,000 7,544,067 37,837,125 428,168,192

Deferred Bond Financing Costs 18,037,000 18,037,000

Notes/Mortgages Receivable, Net 1,207,778,000 1,207,778,000

Other Assets 2,000,000 69,341 419,389 2,488,730

Fixed Assets, Net 9,025,000 496 32,294 9,057,790
Total Assets $1,649,002,000 $10,191,107 $43,364,035 $1,702,557,142
Liabilities and Fund Equity
Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $5,248,000 $398,334 $1,836,084 $7,482,418

Deposits 14,063,000 14,063,000

Deferred Revenue 4,266 4,266

Notes/Bonds/Contracts Payable 1,493,308,000 1,493,308,000

Policy Claim Liabilities 225,132 4,251,760 4,476,892
Total Liabilities 1,512,619,000 627,732 6,087,844 1,519,334,576
Fund Equity

Retained Earnings

Reserved 52,853,000 52,853,000
Unreserved 83,530,000 9,563,375 37,276,191 130,369,566

Total Fund Equity 136,383,000 9,563,375 37,276,191 183,222,566
Total Liabilities and Fund Equity $1,649,002,000 $10,191,107 $43,364,035 $1,702,557,142
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State of Idaho

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings
Discretely Presented Component Units - Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Idaho Housing Idaho Lifeand Petroleum
and Finance Health Insurance Clean Water
Association Guaranty Association Trust Fund Total

Operating Revenues

Licenses, Permits, and Fees $6,804,000 $1,873,601 $8,677,601

Sale of Services, Goods, and Property $39,401 39,401

Interest and Other Investment Income 78,438,000 78,438,000

Miscellaneous Income 612,000 1,470,379 92,096 2,174,475
Total Operating Revenues 85,854,000 1,509,780 1,965,697 89,329,477
Operating Expenses

Personnel Costs 4,202,000 78,972 4,280,972

Services 3,006,000 60,367 1,969,312 5,035,679

Insurance, Utilities, and Rent 11,720 11,720

Miscellaneous 716,000 146,755 862,755

Depreciation 746,000 574 3,482 750,056

Awards and Claims 299,572 1,981,088 2,280,660
Total Operating Expenses 8,670,000 597,960 3,953,882 13,221,842
Operating Income (Loss) 77,184,000 911,820 (1,988,185) 76,107,635
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest Income 637,206 637,206

Investment Income 16,828,000 2,709,072 19,537,072

Net Inc (Dec) in Fair Value of Investments (5,909,000) (42,654) (213,853) (6,165,507)

Interest Expense (82,370,000) (82,370,000)

Other (1,622,000) (1,622,000)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (73,073,000) 594,552 2,495,219 (69,983,229)
Net Income (Loss) 4,111,000 1,506,372 507,034 6,124,406
Beginning Retained Earnings, as Adjusted 132,272,000 8,057,003 36,769,157 177,098,160
Ending Retained Earnings $136,383,000 $9,563,375 $37,276,191 $183,222,566
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State of Idaho

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Discretely Presented Component Units - Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Idaho Housing Idaho Life and Petroleum
and Finance Health Insurance Clean Water
Association Guaranty Association Trust Fund Total
Increase (Decrease) in Cash, Cash Equivalents, afidsh
Equity with Treasurer
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers, Loan Interest, and Fees $84,033,000 $1,447,805 $1,962,313 $87,443,118
Loan Principal Payments 162,339,000 162,339,000
Payments to Suppliers (1,239,000) (89,561) (1,975,466) (3,304,027)
Payments to Employees for Services and Benefits (4,202,000) (78,972) (4,280,972)
Payments of Awards and Claims (5,479,008) (1,981,088) (7,460,096)
Loan Principal Additions (235,851,000) (235,851,000)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 5,080,000 (4,199,736) (1,994,241) (1,113,977)
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Deferred Bond Financing Cost (3,287,000) (3,287,000)
Interest Paid (79,099,000) (79,099,000)
Payment of Bonds (145,476,000) (145,476,000)
Bonds Issued 256,265,000 256,265,000
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Aivities 28,403,000 28,403,000
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Actiities
Proceeds from Disposition of Capital Assets 49 49
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (668,000) (668,000)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Fancing (668,000) 49 (667,951)
Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of Investments (1,300,352,000) (3,885,084) (28,734,889) (1,332,971,973)
Redemption of Investments 1,250,589,000 9,339,000 31,125,013 1,291,053,013
Investment Income 2,705,688 2,705,688
Other Investing Activities 16,234,000 725,439 16,959,439
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (33,529,000) 6,179,355 5,095,812 (22,253,833)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Cash
Equity with Treasurer (714,000) 1,979,619 3,101,620 4,367,239
Beginning Cash, Cash Equivaents, and Cash
Equity with Treasurer 30,089,000 597,584 1,973,607 32,660,191
Ending Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Cash
Equity with Treasurer $29,375,000 $2,577,203 $5,075,227 $37,027,430
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Idaho Housing Idaho Life and Petroleum

and Finance Health Insurance Clean Water
Association Guaranty Association Trust Fund Total
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $77,184,000 $911,820 ($1,988,185) $76,107,635
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
(Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities
Amortization of Deferred Loan Discounts (2,230,000) (2,230,000)
Depreciation 746,000 574 3,482 750,056
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable, Net (216,000) (216,000)
(Increase) Decrease in Notes and Mortgages Receivable 162,339,000 162,339,000
(Increase) Decrease in Other Assets 1,767,000 199,594 1,966,594
(Increase) Decrease in Customer Loan Principal (235,851,000) (235,851,000)
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities (5,112,130) 85,797 (5,026,333)
Increase (Decrease) in Interest Payable 716,000 716,000
Increase (Decrease) in Deposits 625,000 625,000
Increase (Decrease) in Policy Claim Liabilities (294,929) (294,929)
Total Adjustments (72,104,000) (5,111,556) (6,056) (77,221,612)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $5,080,000 ($4,199,736) ($1,994,241) ($1,113,977)
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State of Idaho

Schedule 1 - Revenues by Source
General Governmental Revenues

Fiscal Years 1993-1999

% 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993*
Sales Taxes 19.96%  $712,313,789 $663,853,087  $623,959,683 $605,411,579  $575,751,536 $541,502,894 $481,357,865
Individual & Corp. Income Taxes 31.08%  1,109,126,415  1,053,058,815 971,289,474 947,764,467 877,443,490 774,013,653 692,813,852
Other Taxes 10.80% 385,481,193 377,753,377 368,926,269 303,609,358 424,512,185 414,493,763 370,835,449
Licenses, Permits, & Fees 4.71% 168,189,480 158,195,562 143,406,694 151,296,763 141,958,958 123,267,206 105,966,763
Sales of Services, Goods, & Property 2.31% 82,273,470 65,628,212 42,817,941 44,156,317 42,555,089 38,991,497 23,669,227
Grants & Contributions 26.35% 940,359,689 903,019,402 895,013,029 805,440,878 724,364,466 676,788,795 634,969,669
Interest & Other Invest. Income 2.90% 103,305,156 97,611,588 80,233,205 72,386,195 63,264,871 22,190,217 24,082,507
Rent and Lease Income 0.41% 14,723,246 13,511,766 12,320,261 5,155,123 6,998,254 11,173,620 10,771,374
Miscellaneous Income 1.48% 52,756,713 57,195,065 41,997,956 89,625,995 95,064,332 121,591,734 88,297,287
TOTAL REVENUES 100.00% _$3,568,529,151 $3,389,826,874 $3,179,964,512 $3,024,846,675 $2,951,913,181 $2,724,013,379 _ $2,432,763,993

This schedule was prepared on a budgetary basis for years prior to 1996 and on a GAAP basis for 1996-1999.

* The State of Idaho converted to a new accounting system that was fully implemented in FY 93. Comparable information for prior yearsis not available.

Schedule 2 - Expenditures by Function
General Governmental Expenditures

Fiscal Years 1993-1999

% 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993+

General Government 1054%  $378,707,943  $413320,914  $383,209,137  $350,097,056  $358,242,784  $316,548,733  $300,495,156
Public Safety & Corrections 531% 190,624,680 174,167,058 157,465,319 137,896,622 128,787,631 104,678,504 95,926,701
Agriculture & Econ. Development 4.34% 156,068,706 144,528,919 137,852,628 111,593,306 141,439,539 120,435,892 119,022,911
Natural Resources 325% 116,564,327 108,869,327 110,698,917 113,096,458 139,543,089 114,435,265 102,221,944
Health & Human Services 23.26% 835,527,706 772,569,087 736,386,951 698,069,406 637,770,958 566,482,282 563,747,114
Education 31.58% 1,134,474,508  1,005,488,377 989,014,311 938,745,436 999,299,701  1,036,956,975 969,223,655
Transportation 6.92% 248,535,707 224,352,261 251,156,403 199,094,940 383,907,339 311,694,499 293,952,674
Capital Outlay** 9.03% 324,187,547 266,672,080 258,696,798 251,088,976

Intergovernmental** 5.77% 207,332,229 220,346,150 189,671,236 197,942,396

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 100.00% $3,592,023,353 _ $3,330,314,173 _ $3,214,151,700 $2,997,624,596 $2,788,991,041 $2,571,232,150 _$2,444,590,155

This schedule was prepared on a budgetary basis for years prior to 1996 and on a GAAP basis for 1996-1999.

*  The State of Idaho converted to a new accounting system that was fully implemented in FY 93. Comparable information for prior yearsis not available.
** Classification structure changed in FY 96 and data from prior years for these new classifications is not available.
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State of Idaho

Schedule 3 - Property Taxes by Taxing District and Category of Property

The State of Idaho does not levy property taxes.nformation is for other taxing entities within the State.

Property Taxes by Taxing District

Tax Levy Years 1991-1998 (dollarsin millions)

1998 1997 1996 1995* 1994 1993 1992 1991

County $188.8 $180.4 $172.7 $162.3 $155.3 $146.9 $134.9 $118.3
City 169.0 159.2 149.1 136.8 127.3 116.5 109.6 100.6
School 346.6 327.7 301.2 277.0 285.3 253.1 2339 217.9
Roads/Highways 44.8 42.3 40.6 38.8 36.2 34.2 335 317
Community College 9.3 9.0 9.8 9.5 9.4 8.7 7.4 6.6
All Others 48.5 45.1 41.6 39.8 38.1 33.8 30.3 27.6
Total Tax $807.0 $763.7 $715.0 $664.2 $651.6 $593.2 $549.6 $502.7
Property Taxes by Category of Property

Tax Levy Years 1991-1998

1998 1997 1996 1995* 1994 1993 1992 1991

Residential 54.4 % 54.8 % 54.9 % 54.4 % 52.1 % 50.3 % 493 % 479 %
Commercial/lndustrial 31.2% 30.4 % 30.0 % 30.2 % 31.0% 323 % 32.6 % 331%
Agricultural 6.5 % 6.6 % 6.8 % 73 % 8.0 % 85 % 9.1% 95 %
Timber 17% 1.6 % 15% 14% 15% 12% 11% 11%
Mining 03 % 03 % 03 % 03 % 0.2 % 0.4 % 0.4 % 0.8 %
Operating 5.9 % 6.3 % 6.5 % 6.4 % 7.2 % 7.3 % 7.5 % 7.6 %
Total 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
Urban 60.8 % 60.3 % 60.6 % 59.7 % 58.9 % 59.4 % 59.1 % 58.3 %
Rural 39.2 % 39.7 % 39.4 % 40.3 % 411 % 40.6 % 40.9 % 41.7 %
% Change Total Tax Collections 5.7 % 6.8 % 7.6 % 1.9 % 9.8 % 8.0 % 9.3 % 9.1%
Amount Tax Collections (millions) $807.0 $763.7 $715.0 $664.2 $651.6 $593.2 $549.5 $502.7
Amount Market Value (billions) $55.5 $52.9 $48.8 $44.2 $38.7 $34.7 $31.5 $29.5
Average Tax Rate 1.445 % 1.444 % 1.466 % 1.502 % 1.683 % 1.708 % 1.744 % 1.702 %

*HB156 became law in 1995. Thisincluded $40.8M of school Maintenance and Operations (M&O) property tax relief as aresult
of reducing the maximum M& O tax rate from .4% to .3%. Also other local M& O taxing district budgets were capped at a 3%
increase plus the previous year's M& O tax rate times the taxable value of any new construction. The school tax relief was paid

by state sales tax collections.

Source: Associated Taxpayers of |daho
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Schedule 4 - State Sales Tax Revenues

Fiscal Years 1990 -1999 (dollarsin millions)

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
Total Sales $38,350 $36,572 $34,900 $32,338 $29,615 $26,911 $24,866 $22,277 $20,240 $19,058
Nontaxable 25,100 24,398 23,230 21,167 18,992 16,834 15,936 14,142 12,714 11,938
Net Taxable 13,250 12,174 11,670 11,171 10,623 10,077 8,930 8,135 7,526 7,120
Use Tax 844 795 764 802 768 670 654 536 502 489
Total Taxable $14,094 $12969 $12,434 $11,973 $11,391  $10,747 $9,584 $8,671 $8,028 $7,609
Tax Amount Received $700 $652 $624 $600 $574 $540 $475 $421 $398 $374

Source: 1daho State Tax Commission

Schedule 5 - Total Resident Population and Components of Cinge

Calendar Years 1990 -1999

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 9941 1993 1992 1991 1990
Population (in thousands) 12519 1231.0 12110 1,18.7 11599 11310 1,0984 10681 10375 1,010.7
Population % Change 1.7% 1.7% 20% 23% 26% 3.0% 28% 29% 27% 1.4%
Births Number 19,706 19,188 18,599 18,482 17,915 17,690 17,575 17,197 16,741 16,423
Deaths Number 9,260 9,105 8,953 8,679 8,553 8,478 8,277 7,887 7,644 7,358
Net Migration Number 10,481 9,966 14,572 16,982 19,563 23,411 20,977 21,365 17,628 4,984

Note: 1999 numbers are estimates.
Source: Division of Financial Management, Economic Analysis Bureau, Vol. XXI, No. 4, October, 1999

Schedule 6 - Residential Building Activity
Housing Starts

Calendar Years 1990 -1999

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
Idaho 10125 10,113 8,862 9,214 9360 12,767 11,457 9,583 6,600 5,831
% Change 01% 141% (38% (L6)% (267% 114% 196% 452% 132% 248%
National (millions) 1.668 1.623 1.476 1.469 1.361 1.446 1.292 1.201 1.009 1.203
% Change 28% 100% 05% 79% (59% 120% 76% 190% (161)% (13.0/%

Note: 1999 numbers are estimates.
Source: Division of Financial Management, Economic Analysis Bureau, Vol. XXI, No. 4, October, 1999
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Schedule 7 - Domestic Financial Institutions Deposits

Calendar Years 1991-1998 (dollars in thousands)

Institution Type No. of Branches 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991
Banks 330 $8,797,811 $8,549,643 $9,129,082 $9,014,815 $8,447,918 $7,872,072 $7,493972  $7,246,733
Savings & Loans 56 1,027,538 911,840 898,827 854,042 860,648 865,864 869,357 824,832
Credit Unions 81 1,202,512 1,190,898 1,129,960 1,004,723 966,977 913,315 891,843 821,089
FDIC Savings Banks 14 171,633 48,718 21,296 821 - - - -
Total for Idaho 481 $11,199,494  $10,701,099 $11,179,165 $10,874,401  $10,275,543 $9,651,251 $9,255,172  $8,892,654

Source: 1999/Sheshunoff Information Services, Inc.

Schedule 8 - Ten Largest Private Employers in Idaho

Dec 1, 1998

Major Idaho Employers Employees
Albertsons, Inc. Over 5,000
Lockheed Idaho Martin Technologies Co. Over 5,000
Micron Technology Over 5,000
Hewlett-Packard Co. 3,000-5,000
JR. Simplot Co. 3,000-5,000
Potlatch Corporation 3,000-5,000
Boise Cascade 1,500-3,000
First Security Bank of Idaho 1,500-3,000
Fred Meyer Shopping Centers 1,500-3,000
Micron Electronics 1,500-3,000

Source: Idaho Department of Labor

Schedule 9 - Employment Comparison

Calendar Y ears 1989-1998

1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 1989

Idaho Civilian Labor Force 653,056 633,600 619,304 601,194 591,463 547,678 531,994 508,687 492,619 489,000

% Change 31% 23% 3.0% 16 % 8.0 % 29 % 4.6 % 33% 0.7 % 21%
U.S. Civilian Labor Force

(in thousands) 137,673 136,297 133,943 132,304 131,056 129,200 128,105 126,346 125,840 123,869

% Change 1.0 % 1.8 % 12 % 1.0 % 14 % 0.9 % 14 % 0.4 % 16 % 18 %
Idaho Employment 620,217 599,800 586,874 568,801 558,589 513,653 497,343 477,070 463,484 464,000

%Change 3.4 % 22 % 32% 18 % 8.7 % 3.3% 42 % 29 % (0.1)% 29 %
U.S. Employment

(in thousands) 131,463 129,558 126,708 124,900 123,060 120,259 118,492 117,718 118,793 117,342

% Change 15 % 22% 14 % 15% 23 % 15% 0.7 % (0.99% 12% 21 %

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics, |daho Department of Labor
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Schedule 10 - Labor Force and Enployment by Sector

Cdeda Years1983-1998

1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 1989
Resident Gvilian Labor Force and Enrployment in Iddno

Qvilian Labor Force 63086 633600 619304 601194 901463 547678 531994 508687 42619 430000
Unarployment 280 330 AN P3B  PFA ACS  HAKGL 3617 H91H 500
Net Errployment 60217 5080 5684 568801 5850 513663 497343 47700 463484 464000
Unarployment Rroatage Rete 50% 53% 52% 54% 56% 62% 65% 62%  59% 51%

Nonagricuitral Wage and Salary Workers Enployed indaho

Goods Producing Industries

Mining 292 3088 3067 275 248 218 268 306 38 3677
Corgtrudtion 2B 380 65 XL D07 460 215 NI 18 16119
ManUfacturing- Durable Goods 4A71 45567 M08 L1 L5 IR ATB B3 A0 I
Manufaturing-Noncurable Goods BHU 2012 BB BA7 36 A DWW DR BT BAR
Total Goods Producing Industries 11,242 109517 10656 10338 103311 %618 D44 B3  H0L AR

Senvice Producing Industries

Trangportation, G, ard UKlit. DA A7 BAO 207 282 N80 03 0@ 1970 1962
Trade 1260 10197 1519 12148 1U67M8 1035 106916 10000 9702  9B10
Firence Ineurance, and Reel Extate 290 K40 BB 4B\l 418 27 244 04 1986 1929
Svice 872 1255 16019 110130 1083 9724 03IV ST 8RR BAR
Sateand Locd Goamrrart F75 MU9B  W5R 868 00 BSH  MARA TIAR B3R 65188
Fedkrdl Govemmrert P75 9L 1286 13100 1346 13572 13465 1298 136l 12708

Total Senvice Producing Industries 030 30207 3H287 348 38077 3060 B0 36D X0AB 2578

NorfarmWge & Salary Employnent 150 S8 L83  AT7A13  A6L38  4AB817 416604 38083 IBAU  BBIN

Source Idsho Depatat of Labar
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Schedule 11 - Average Annual Wage

Calendar Y ears 1990 -1999

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
Idaho $27,100  $25,790  $24,798  $24,106  $23,628  $22,748 $21,980 $21,472  $20,549  $19,755
% Change 51 % 4.0 % 29 % 20% 39% 35% 2.4 % 45 % 4.0 % 4.6 %
National $34,327  $32,987  $31,709  $30,362  $29,257  $28,393 $27,912 $27,501  $26,120  $25,205
% Change 41 % 4.0 % 44 % 3.8% 3.0% 1.7 % 1.5 % 53 % 3.6 % 47 %
Note: 1999 numbers are estimates.
Source: Division of Financial Management, Economic Analysis Bureau, Vol. XXI, No. 4, October, 1999
Schedule 12 - Personal Income Comparison
Idaho vs. National
Calendar Years 1990 -1999

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
In Current Dollars
Idaho (millions) $27,480  $25901  $24,651  $23,418  $22,062  $20,628 $19,591 $17,765  $16,313  $15,551
% Change 6.1 % 51 % 53 % 6.1 % 7.0 % 5.9 % 10.3 % 8.9 % 49 % 9.4 %
Nationa (billions) $7,483 $7,126 $6,784 $6,425 $6,072 $5,758 $5,481 $5,266 $4,982 $4,804
% Change 5.0 % 5.0 % 5.6 % 5.8 % 55 % 51% 4.1 % 57 % 37% 6.7 %
In 1992 Dollars
Idaho (millions) $24,012  $22,981  $22,047  $21,336  $20,509  $19,615 $19,080  $17,763  $16,848  $16,737
% Change 45 % 42 % 33% 4.0 % 4.6 % 34 % 7.4 % 54 % 0.7 % 41 %
National (billions) $6,539 $6,323 $6,068 $5,854 $5,645 $5,476 $5,339 $5,266 $5,145 $5,171
% Change 3.4 % 42 % 3.6 % 3.7 % 31% 2.6 % 14 % 23 % (0.5)% 16 %

Note: 1999 numbers are estimates.

Source: Division of Financial Management, Economic Analysis Bureau, Vol. XXI, No. 4, October, 1999
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Schedule 13 - Personal Income by Component

Calendar Y ears 1990 -1999 (dollars in millions)
1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990

Total Personal Income $27,480 $25,901 $24,651 $23,418 $22,062 $20,628 $19,475 $17,700 $16,267 $15,528
% Change 6.1 % 51% 53% 6.1 % 7.0 % 59% 100% 88% 4.8 % 9.3%
Wage and Salaries 15,042 13995 13,116 12,336 11,742 10,926 9,994 9,309 8,531 7,969
% Change 75 % 6.7 % 6.3 % 51% 75 % 9.3% 74 % 9.1 % 7.0 % 10.0 %
Farm Proprietors Income 267 266 354 463 379 365 914 606 604 774
% Change 06% (248% (23.7)% 223% 37% (6000% 507% 04% (220% 13.0%
Nonfarm Proprietors Income 3,128 2,885 2,704 2,519 2,408 2,307 2,071 1,775 1,478 1,530
% Change 8.4 % 6.7 % 7.3 % 4.6 % 44% 114% 167% 202% (3.4)% 5.0 %
Dividends, Rent, Interest 4,453 4,295 4,166 3,920 3,583 3,303 3,007 2,814 2,773 2,680
% Change 37% 31% 6.3 % 9.4 % 85 % 9.8 % 6.9 % 15% 35% 7.0 %
Other Labor Income 1,421 1,360 1,329 1,322 1,365 1,361 1,218 1,088 964 867
% Change 45 % 23% 0.5% B-1)% 03% 11.7% 120% 128% 112% 148%
Govt. Transfers to Individuals 4,308 4,154 3,991 3,814 3,510 3,222 3,038 2,790 2,539 2,278
% Change 37 % 41 % 4.6 % 8.7 % 8.9 % 6.0 % 8.9 % 99% 115% 92%
Contribution for Social Insurance 1,428 1,329 1,257 1,169 1,109 1,017 919 850 787 719
% Change 7.4 % 5.8 % 75 % 5.4 % 91% 106% 82% 8.0 % 9.4 % 8.8 %
Residence Adjustment 289 277 248 212 185 161 151 167 165 150
% Change 42 % 116% 170% 147% 151 % 6.6 % (9.9)% 12% 100% 156 %

Note: 1999 numbers are estimates.
Source: Division of Financial Management, Economic Analysis Bureau, Vol. XXI, No. 4, October, 1999
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Schedule 14 - Per Capita Personal Income Comparison
Idaho vs. National

Calendar Y ears 1990-1999

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990

In Current Dollars

Idaho $21,949 $21,040 $20,355 $19,732 $19,018 $18,236 $17,727 $16,569 $15,679 $15,363
% Change 4.3 % 34 % 3.2% 3.8% 4.3 % 29% 7.0 % 57 % 21% 7.8 %
National $27,421 $26,337 $25295 $24,177 $23,058 $22,069 $21,212 $20,589 $19,688 $19,196
% Change 4.1% 4.1 % 4.6 % 4.9 % 4.5 % 4.0 % 3.0% 4.6 % 2.6 % 5.6 %

In 1992 Dollars

Idaho $19,180 $18,667 $18,206 $17,979 $17,681 $17,342 $17,266 $16,569 $16,194 $16,536
% Change 2.7 % 25% 1.3 % 17 % 20% 0.4 % 4.2 % 23 % 2.1D)% 2.6 %
National $23,961 $23,369 $22,624 $22,029 $21,437 $20,988 $20,661 $20,553 $20,274 $20,624
% Change 25% 33% 27 % 28 % 21% 16 % 0.5% 1.4 % 1.7% 0.5 %

Note: 1999 numbers are estimates.
Source: Division of Financial Management, Economic Analysis Bureau, Vol. XXI, No. 4, October, 1999

Schedule 15 - Full-Time Equivalent Positions - State Emplegs

Fiscal Years 1990-1999

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990

State Board of Education 4,809 4,757 4,692 4,683 4,605 4,502 4,436 4,383 4,252 4,077
Department of Health and Welfare 3,624 3,621 3,623 3,657 4,105 4,073 3,856 3,804 3,163 2,853
Idaho Transportation Department 1,784 1,745 1,813 1,811 1,820 1,814 1,812 1,781 1,773 1,758
Department of Correction 1,362 1,312 1,109 1,150 1,078 1,046 922 899 883 752
Executive Office of the Governor * 470 680 666 652 650 656 636 623 595 557
Department of Fish and Game 500 501 505 523 523 521 526 486 476 440
Department of Law Enforcement 496 494 488 486 489 486 489 495 471 454
Department of Revenue and Taxation 419 378 378 376 375 372 370 381 369 352
All Other 2,494 2,473 2,408 2,368 2,160 2,123 2,095 2,058 1,926 1,880
State Total 15,958 15,961 15,682 15,706 15,805 15,593 45,1 14,910 13,908 13,123

Source: Executive Budget FY 2000, FY 1999, FY 1997, FY 1995, FY 1993
* State Insurance is no longer included under the Executive Office of the Governor due to a change in Idaho Code
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Schedule 16 - Public School Enrollment Grades K-12

Academic Y ears 1989/90 - 1998/99
1998-99 1997-98 1996-97  1995-96  1994-95 1993-94  1992-9391-9® 1990-91  1989-90

Elementary 131,018 130,080 129,525 129,570 129,031 128,339 126,562 124,959 125,782 124,209
Secondary 113,605 114,323 115,727 113627 111,417 108,435 105,106 100,721 96,887 93,060
Total All Grades 244,623 244,403 245252 243,197 240,448 236,774 231,668 225680 222,669 217,269

* Starting in academic year 1997/98 the reporting date changed from the last Friday in September to the first Friday in November.

Source: Idaho Department of Education

Schedule 17 - Public Higher Education Enrollment

Student Headcount (Calendar Y ears 1990-1999)

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
Boise State University 16,209 15,744 15,467 15,137 14,969 15,099 15,296 14,908 14,254 13,529
Idaho State University 12,650 12,232 11,870 12,139 12,027 11,875 10,781 10,755 10,048 9,139
University of Idaho 11,305 11,437 11,027 11,133 11,727 11,730 11,543 11,448 10,941 10,544
Lewis-Clark State College 2,815 2,972 3,008 2,967 3,118 3,330 3,226 3,029 2,816 2,667
Total Colleges and Universities 42,979 42,385 41,372 41,376 41,841 42,034 40,846 40,140 38,059 35,879
College of Southern Idaho 5,056 4,871 4,872 4,270 4,359 4,108 3,820 3,523 3,128 2,827
North Idaho College 3,894 3,469 3,597 3,610 3,276 3,317 3,339 3,074 3,093 2,989
Total Community Colleges 8,950 8,340 8,469 7,880 7,635 7,425 7,159 6,597 6,221 5,816
Eastern Idaho Technical College 653 601 540 374 409 368 297 339 327 315
Total System 52,582 51,326 50,381 49,630 49,885 49,827 48,302 47,076 44,607 42,010

Note: Total Headcount includes academic full-time, academic part-time, and vocational.
Source: Idaho State Board of Education
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Schedule 18 - Number of Teachers, Average Salary, and Number of High School Graduates

Academic Y ears 1988 -1997

1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 1989 1988

Number of Teachers?

Elementary 6.7 6.6 6.5 6.3 6.2 6.1 6.1 5.9 5.6 54
Secondary 6.4 6.2 6.1 5.7 5.6 55 5.1 5.2 4.9 4.9
Total 13.1 12.8 12.6 12.0 11.8 11.6 11.2 111 10.5 10.3

Average Annual Teachels Salary?

Elementary $31.8 $30.8 $29.7 $27.6 $268 $26.0 $25.0 $234 $223 $22.0

Secondary $31.9 $31.0 $29.9 $279 $27.2 $268 $26.0 $243 $234 $23.6

All Teachers $31.8 $309 $298 $27.8 $27.0 $264 $255 $239 $229 $22.8
Rank Among All States? 40 41 42 45 46 47 45 45 44 44
Number of High School Graduatest 15.62 14.52 14.2 13.3 13.0 12.7 12.0 12.0 12.5 12.4

1In thousands

2|n thousands of dollars
3Includes Washington D.C.
aEstimate

Source: Statistical Abstract of the United States 1988 -1997

Schedule 19 - 1998 School District Information

School District Number of Total Student- Expenditure
Size Districts Enrollment Teacher Ratio Per gident*

Over 5,000 Students 12 128,098 19.1 $4,414
2,500 to 4,999 Students 14 50,156 18.4 4,321
1,000 to 2,499 Students 29 43,634 17.9 4,412
500 to 999 Students 20 13,486 15.8 5,127
Less than 500 Students 37 9,249 13.5 5,945
Statewide Total 112 244,623 18.3 $4,493

Source: 1999 Idaho Fiscal Facts, Legislative $es/Office
*SDOE Sources (Uses FY 1998 financial data as maséent available.)
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Schedule 20 - Idaho’s Rank in the Nation’s Agriculture

Calendar Y ear 1998

Commodity Rank Among States Production Unit % of U.S.
Crops:

Potatoes 1 139,650,000 cwt. 29 %
Austrian Winter Peas 1 98,000 cwt. 94 %
Wrinkled Seed Peas 2 248,000 cwt. 37%
Lentils 2 644,000 cwt. 33%
Dry Edible Peas 2 1,139,000 cwt. 19 %
Sugarbeets 2 5,501,000 ton 17 %
Barley 2 59,280,000 bu. 17%

All Mint 3 2,201,000 Ib. 17%
Hops 3 4,529,400 Ib. 8%
Prunes and Plums (Fresh)* 3 4,500 ton 18 %
Onions (Summer Storage) 4 4,640,000 cwit. 13%
Other Spring Wheat 5 39,270,000 bu. 7%
Alfalfa Hay 6 4,859,000 ton 6 %
Sweet Cherries 6 2,200 ton 1%
Sweet Corn for Processing 6 144,900 ton 4%
Dry Edible Beans 6 2,112,000 cwit. 7%
Winter Wheat 8 63,140,000 bu. 3%
Apples 9 170,000,000 Ib. 1%
All Wheat 9 102,410,000 bu. 4%
All Hay 10 5,549,000 ton 4%
Livestock and Livestock Products:

Foodsize Trout? 1 41,000,000 Ib. 74 %
American Cheese 4 469,781,000 Ib. 14 %
Milk Production 6 5,765 mil. Ib. 4%
Milk Cows® 8 292,000 head 3%
All Sheep and Lambs? 9 265,000 head 4%
Wool 9 2,093,000 Ib. 4%
Honey 10 6,000,000 Ib. 3%
All Cattle and Calves 16 1,900,000 head 2%

*Includes only Idaho, Washington, Michigan, and @regFresh basis.
“Foodsize fish are defined as being 12 inches lofgnger.

$January 1, 1999, inventory.

“Average number during year; excluding heifers rabtfgesh.

Source: Idaho Agricultural Statistics Service
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Schedule 21 - Expenditure and Inmate Population Growth

Fiscal Years 1990-1999

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
Expenditures $87,879,500 $82,044,500 $71,125,800 $64,408,500 $59,754,800 $47,991,100 $43,710,600 $42,362,700 $36,380,100  $29,363,300
% Change 7.11% 15.35% 10.43% 7.79% 24.51% 9.79% 3.18% 16.44% 23.90% 26.66%
Inmate Population 4,018 4,007 3,681 3,268 2,903 2,491 2,427 2,241 2,040 1,822
% Change 0.97% 8.86% 12.64% 12.57% 16.54% 2.64% 8.30% 9.85% 11.96% 20.28%

Source: 1999 Idaho Fiscal Facts

Schedule 22 - Idaho’s Gross Domestic Product

Calendar Years 1990 -1999 (dollarsin hillions)

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
Current Dollars $8,948.6 $8,511.0 $8,110.9 $7,661.6 $7,269.6 $6,947.0 $6,558.1 $6,244.5 $5,916.7 $5,743.8
% Change 51% 49% 59% 54 % 4.6 % 59% 5.0% 55% 3.0% 5.6 %
1992 Chain-Weighted $7,841.3 $7,551.9 $7,269.8 $6,994.8 $6,761.7 $6,610.7 $6,389.5 $6,244.4 $6,079.4 $6,136.3
% Change 3.8 % 39 % 39 % 34 % 23 % 35% 23 % 2.7 % (0.9% 12%

Note: 1999 numbers are estimates.
Source: Division of Financial Management, Economic Analysis Bureau, Vol. XXI, No. 4, October, 1999
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Schedule 23 - Idaho’s 1996* Tax Ranking Among the 50 States and D.C.

Lower ranking equals higher taxes, with 1 being the highest and 51 being the lowest.

Income Basis for Ranking Per @#a Basis for Ranking

Type of Tax StateswiTax | FY 96 | FYy 95| Fyo4 | Fr o3| Fro2 | Fyoi] Froe | Fryos| Froa| Fro3 | Fr92 | Fy o1
Property 51 34 35 37 37 37 35 35 37 38 38 39 37
Sdles 47 25 25 22 27 24 28 36 36 34 34 35 36
Individual Income a4 15 16 15 16 15 13 27 27 24 26 25 24
Corporate Income 47 10 15 21 25 24 26 15 18 24 28 24 28
Motor Vehicle 51 9 9 6 6 7 9 13 16 9 12 13 1
Overall 51 24 23 25 33 29 28 40 40 38 39 40 42
Per Capita Income Ranking 41 42 40 40 40 45

*1996 Most Current Year Available
Source: Idaho Tax Commission

Schedule 24 - Revenue from the Lottery

Fiscal Years 1990-1999

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990

Type of Ticket (millions)

Scratch $56.3 $58.8 $61.2 $63.7 $57.4 $42.2 $31.3 $32.8 $36.6 $58.6
On-Line $32.3 $29.2 $238 $254 $289 $285 $24.3 $17.4 $14.6 $7.4
Break Open $15 $1.6 $2.0 $2.0 $1.7 $14 $1.2 $15 - -
Other Income (thousands) $601  $544  $662  $501  $474  $395 $349 $326  $321  $281
Gross Revenudmillions) $91.1 $90.1 $87.6 $91.6 $884 $725 $57.1 $519 $514  $66.2
Prizes $52.3 $524  $53.3 $55.2 $529 $41.3 $314 $28.1 $258 $321
Administration $17.3 $17.1 $159 $166 $16.9 $15.6 $132 $11.2 $106 $10.8
Proceeds $21.4 $20.6 $184 $198 $186 $15.6 $125 $126 $150 $233

Source: Idaho State Lottery
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Schedule 25 - Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Balances

General Fund Accounts
June 30, 1999

State Permanent Warrant
General Building Deficiency Budget Constitutional
Account Fund Fund Legislative Reserve Defense Func

Assets

Cash Equity with Treasurer $63,993,847 $66,669,154 ($210,777) $2,731,712 $36,030,195 $809,453

Cash and Cash Equivaents 85,370

Investments 40,976,002

Accounts Receivable, Net 93,984,978 884,387 9,541

Due from Other Funds 488,877

Due from Other Entities

Notes/Mortgages Receivable, Net

Other Assets 169,213
Total Assets $199,209,410 $68,042,418 ($201,236) $2,731,712 $36,030,195 $809,453
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $10,171,402 $2,536,845 $187,799 $35,032

Payroll and Compensated Absences Payable 51,376,886 60,799 77,117 113,364

Deposits 624,862

Due to Other Funds 676,974 29,106 200 8,391

Dueto Other Entities

Deferred Revenue 89,852 7,092,162
Total Liabilities 62,939,976 9,718,912 265,116 156,787
Fund Balances

Reserved 8,144,452 39,878

Unreserved 128,124,982 58,283,628 (466,352) 2,574,925 $36,030,195 $809,453
Total Fund Balances 136,269,434 58,323,506 (466,352) 2,574,925 36,030,195 809,453
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $199,209,410  $68,042,418  ($201,236)  $2,731,712  $36,030,195 $809,453
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Income

Catastrophic Governor's Endowment Tax

Hesalth Care Residence Earnings Sales Tax Refunds Miscellaneous Total
$4,502,121 $1,148,672 $15,470,207 $23,869,951 $1,635,143 $4,363,156 $221,012,834
85,370
16,145,766 1,023,143 58,144,911
1,011,189 10,763,546 12,948,193 119,601,834
2,230 491,107
464,574 464,574
75,393 75,393
7,489,846 7,659,059
$4,502,121 $1,148,672 $40,192,401 $34,633,497 $14,583,336 $5,853,103 $407,535,082
$120,840 $165,072 $61,524 $5,275,901 $2,338,492 $20,892,907
23,236 262,470 51,913,872
248,412 873,274
12,357 19,247 746,275
16,574,274 16,574,274
1,897,506 9,079,520
120,840 18,920,857 61,524 5,275,901 2,620,209 100,080,122
22,908,840 142,361 31,235,531
4,381,281 $1,148,672 (1,637,296) 34,571,973 9,307,435 3,090,533 276,219,429
4,381,281 1,148,672 21,271,544 34,571,973 9,307,435 3,232,894 307,454,960
$4,502,121 $1,148,672 $40,192,401 $34,633,497 $14,583,336 $5,853,103 $407,535,082
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State of Idaho

Schedule 26 - Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fundd@ees

General Fund Accounts
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

State Permanent Warrant
General Building Deficiency Budget Constitutional
Account Fund Fund Legislative Reserve Defense Fund
Revenues
Sales Tax $584,282,598 $500,000
Individual and Corporate Taxes 875,153,490 5,377,547
Other Taxes 14,991,337 7,914,759
Licenses, Permits, and Fees 6,590,602 $89,679
Sale of Services, Goods, and Property 305,484 880,794 105,981 $39,927
Grants and Contributions
Interest and Other Investment Income 32,170,299 1,982,986
Rent and Lease Income 164,255 112,999
Miscellaneous Income 413,990 12,737,003 862,224
Total Revenues 1,514,072,055 29,506,088 1,057,884 39,927
Expenditures
Current
General Government 52,955,986 4,324,002
Public Safety and Correction 137,760,819
Agriculture and Economic Development 14,932,651 94,394
Natural Resources 26,071,215 2,205,414
Health 8,272,700
Public Education 252,212,773
Human Services 595,239
Transportation 1,967,765 6,109,880
Capital Outlay 19,710,362 35,455,508 132,934
Intergovernmental 37,252,520
Total Expenditures 551,732,030 41,565,388 2,299,808 4,456,936
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 962,340,025 (12,059,300) (1,241,924) (4,417,009)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In 116,270,639 13,443,242 951,142 4,350,000
Operating Transfers Out (1,068,027,542)
Capital Leases Incurred 18,949
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (951,737,954) 13,443,242 951,142 4,350,000
Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing
Uses 10,602,071 1,383,942 (290,782) (67,009)
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 125,667,363 56,939,564 (175,570) 2,641,934 36,030,195 809,453
Fund Balances - End of Year $136,269,434 $58,323,506 ($466,352) $2,574,925 $36,030,195 $809,453
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Income

Catastrophic Governor’s Endowment Tax

Health Care Residence Earnings Sales Tax Refunds Miscellaneous Total
$117,475,500 $2,777,144 $2,478,417 $707,513,659
226,786,307 1,809,071 1,109,126,415
$4,719,734 8,969,915 36,595,745
1,109,282 1,641,999 9,431,562
$1,367,166 394,875 3,241,151 6,335,378
12,183 5,211,906 5,224,089
633,991 $62,667 50,847,774 54,680 85,752,397
1,200 6,143,518 71,994 6,493,966
2,535,594 1,986,581 18,535,392
2,001,157 63,867 65,762,960 117,475,500 238,533,366 16,495,799 1,985,008,603
42,523 3,276,314 105,590,464 166,447,932 3,885,996 336,523,217
1,958,869 235,658 139,955,346
11,329,584 524,608 26,881,237
561,397 28,838,026
2,930,185 11,202,885
855,062,805 10,598,108 1,117,873,686
595,239
18,923 8,096,568
576,255 343,105 56,218,164
6,143,632 43,396,152
11,329,584 42,523 863,823,351 105,590,464 166,447,932 22,292,504 1,769,580,520
(9,328,427) 21,344 (798,060,391 11,885,036 72,085,434 (5796,705) 215,428,083
10,135,700 797,560,000 10,204,852 952,915,575
(56,757,869) (5,195,833)  (1,129,981,244)
18,949
10,135,700 797,560,000 (56,757,869) 5000,019  (177,046,720)
807,273 21,344 (500,391) 11,885,036 15,327,565 (787,686) 38,381,363
3,574,008 1,127,328 21,771,935 22,686,937 (6,020,130) 4,020,580 269,073,597
$4,381,281 $1,148,672 $21,271,544 $34,571,973 $9,307,435 $3,232,894 $307,454,960
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State of Idaho

Schedule 27 - Miscellaneous Statistics

State Capitol: Boise
Admitted to the Union: July 3, 1890
Nickname: The"Gem State"
Motto: "Esto Perpetua’ (Let It Be Perpetua)
1998 Population Estimate: 1,228,684
Highest Elevation Point:

Mt. Borah; 12,662 Feet Above Sea Level
Lowest Elevation Point:

Snake River, Lewiston; 770 feet Above Sea Level
Number of Lakes. More Than 2,000
State Song: "Here We Have Idaho”
State Insect: Monarch Butterfly
State Fish: Cutthroat Trout
State Bird: Mountain Bluebird
State Horse: Appaloosa
State Tree: Western White Pine
State Gem Stone: Idaho Star Garnet
State Flower: Syringa

Source: Idaho Blue Book, 1997-1998
Idaho Department of Commerce (Population Estimate)

LAND AREA AND USE
(in square miles)

Total Area 84,437
Land Area: 83,557
Water Area: 880
Federal Land: 52,699
Total Non-Federal Land: 30,858
Total Rural Land: 78,768
Agricultura Land: 12,170
Range Land: 34,353
Forest Land: 32,245

*Land Area and Use amounts were converted from square acres
to square miles at 640 acres to the mile.

Source: Idaho Blue Book, 1999 - 2000
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COMMUNITIES IN IDAHO WITH
POPULATIONS OVER 10,000

Boise 157,452
Pocatello 53,074
Idaho Falls 48,122
Nampa 41,951
Twin Falls 33,296
Coeur d'Alene 32,565
Lewiston 30,363
Meridian 25,377
Caldwell 22,340
M oscow 19,312
Post Falls 15,732
Rexburg 14,303
Blackfoot 10,453

Mountain Home 10,202

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, July 1,1998, estimate

The Following Statistics are from Calendar Year 1998

Number of:
Licensed Hospitals: 48
Optometrists: 173
Chiropractic Physicians: 303
Physicians: 2,063
Dentists: 800
Public Schools
Elementary: 355
Secondary: 259
*Non-Public Schools
Elementary: 56
Secondary: 26
Colleges and Universities: 10
Public Libraries: 145

Source: Idaho Department of Commerce, State Library
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STATE OF IDAHO WEBSITES & PHONE NUMBERS

OFFICE

Administration, Department of

Aging, Commission on

Agriculture, Department of

Arts Commission

Attorney General, Office of
Commerce, Department of

Consumer Protection Unit ( 1-800-432-3545)
Correction, Department of
Developmental Disabilities Council (1-800-544-2433)
Education, Board of

Education, Department of

Engineers and Land Surveyors, Board of Professional
Finance, Department of (1-800-346-3378)
Financial Management, Division of
Fish and Game, Department of
Governor, Office of

Health and Welfare, Department of
Health Districts Conference Office
Hispanic Affairs, Commission on
Historical Society, Idaho State

Human Resources, Division of

Human Rights Commission
Humanities Council

Independent Living Council

Industrial Commission

INEEL Oversight Program
Information Technology Resource Mgmt. Council
Insurance Fund, State

Insurance, Department of

Judicial Branch/Supreme Court
Juvenile Corrections, Department of
Labor, Department of

Lands, Department of

Law Enforcement, Department of
Legislative Branch

Legislative Districts

Library, Idaho State

Lieutenant Governor, Office of
Lottery Commission

Military, Division of

Nursing, Board of

Outfitters and Guides Licensing Board
Parks and Recreation, Department of
Public Employees Retirement System
Public Television; Idaho

Public Utilities Commission
Purchasing, Division of

Rural Development Council

State of Idaho

Tax Commission-Forms
Transportation, Idaho Department
Unclaimed Property

Vocational Rehabilitation, Division of
Water Resources, Department of
Women's Commission

WEB ADDRESS

http://www.state.id.us/adm/
http://www2.state.id.us/icoa/
http://www.agri.state.id.us/
http://www.state.id.us/arts/index.htm
http://www2.state.id.us/ag/
http://www.idoc.state.id.us/
http://www2.state.id.us/ag/consumer/consumer.htm
http://www.corr.state.id.us/
http://www.state.id.us/icdd/index.htm
http://www.sde.state.id.us/osbe/board.htm
http://www.sde.state.id.us/Dept/
http://www.state.id.us/ipels/index.htm
http://www.state.id.us/finance/dof.htm
http://www.state.id.us/dfm/dfm.htm
http://www.state.id.us/fishgame/fishgame.html
http://www2.state.id.us/gov/govhmpg.htm
http://www.state.id.us/dhw/hwgd_www/home.html
http://www.state.id.us/phd/hdcopage.htm
http://www2.state.id.us/icha/
http://www.state.id.us/ishs/index.htm
http://www.ipc.state.id.us/
http://www2.state.id.us/ihrc/ihrchome.htm
http://www2.state.id.us/ihc/
http://wwwnt.state.id.us/silc/
http://www.state.id.us/iic/index.htm
http://www2.state.id.us/deqinel/main_op.htm
http://wwwnt.state.id.us/itrmc/
http://www.state.id.us/isifindex.htm
http://www.doi.state.id.us/
http://www.state.id.us/judicial/judicial. html
http://wwv.dje.state.id.us/
http://www.doe.state.id.us/
http:/iwwwnt.state.id.us/lands/
http:/lwww2.state.id.us/dle/dle htm
http://ww.state.id.us/legislat/legislat:html
http://www.state.id.us/legislat/csgnews/
http://www.state.id.us/isl/hp.htm
http://www2.state.id-us/gov/Igo/ltgov.htm
http://www.idaholottery.com/
http://www2.state.id.us/mil/cover.htm
http://www.state.id.us/ibn/ibnhome.htm
http://www.state.id.us/oglb/oglbhome.htm
http://www.idahoparks.org/
http://www.persi.state.id.us/
http://www.idptv.state.id.us/
http://www.puc.state.id.us/
http://www.state.id.us/adm/purchasing/default.htm
http://www.rurdev.usda.gov/nrdp/id.-html
http:/fwww.state.id.us
http://www.state.id.us/tax/forms.htm
http://www.state.id.us/itd/itdhmpg.htm
http://www2.state.id.us/tax/unclaimed.htm
http://www2.state.id.us/idvr/idvrhome.htm
http://www.idwr.state.id.us
http://www2.state.id.us/women/

Office of the State Controller
700 West State Street
Boise, Idaho 83720-2674
(208)334-3100
http://www.sco.state.id.us

PHONE NUMBER

332-1824
334-3833
332-8500
334-2119
334-2400
334-2470
334-2424
658-2000
334-2178
334-2270
332-6800
334-3860
332-8000
334-3900
334-3700
334-2100
334-5500
334-3566
334-3776
334-2682
334-2263
334-2873
334-3844
334-3800
334-6000
373-0498
332-1876
334-2370
334-4250
334-2246
334-5100
334-6252
334-0200
884-7000
1-800-626-0471

334-2150
334-2200
334-2600
4224272
334-3110
327-7380
334-4199
334-3365
373-7220
334-0300
327-7465
334-6113
334-2411
334-7660
334-8000
334-7627
334-3390
327-7900
334-4673



